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Corporate Structure (Cont’d)
2\l 2Rk (48)

Note 1: China Beijing Tong Ren Tang Group Co,, Ltd. (FF EI1E R A= % (%2 ) G R & (£ 7 F]) (‘'Tong Ren Tang Holdings’) is the ultimate holding
company of Tong Ren Tang Technologies Co. Ltd. (1L R A= ZF} 5 % /# R 17 B R 2~ 7]) (‘'Tong Ren Tang Technologies’ or the "Company’).

i1 PEHERECE (EE) EREF AR ([FBAF]) B FALCERBEERGERA G ([AECERE] 3 [ LG HRK
AR 2N E] ©

Note 2: Beijing Tong Ren Tang Company Limited (1t 5 [E1{= 2 & 17 B IR 22 &) (‘Tong Ren Tang Ltd.’) (stock code: 600085.5H) was incorporated in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") in 1997 and listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange in June of the same year. Tong Ren Tang Ltd. is the direct
holding company of Tong Ren Tang Technologies.

32 ARECERGERAE([F-ZZREG]) (BREAR - 600085.5H) R—ANEFEFPEARLERNE ([FE])FMAT - BIFN
RELEBFLZ G LT BACERAEEFER A A]

Note 3: Bejjing Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine Company Limited (1t % [f]{= % 1 % 7 £ 72 7]) (‘Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine’) (stock code:
3613.HK) was incorporated in Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC ("Hong Kong’) in 2004, listed on the Growth Enterprise Market
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the "Hong Kong Stock Exchange’) in May 2013, and transferred to the Main Board of the Hong

' Kong Stock Exchbnge in May 2018. Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine is a subsidiary of the Company.

3 RACEREGR A ([A-EEE]) (BREARR © 3613HK) R = ETNFEHEEBFFITTRE ([ EMKs - R=
EZFRAGBTEBERSIARL G ([ EEBBXA) BIRZREE LT - WR=ZF—\FRABEZE BB ER LT
RARE]Z KB A]

¥ For full names of the subsidiaries, please refer to Note 1 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

As at 31 December 2019, the directors of the Company (each
the "Director”) of the board (the “Board”) are as follows:

Executive Directors

Gu Hai Ou (Chairman)
Huang Ning

Wu Le Jun

Wu Qian

Wang Yu Wei

Fang Jia Zhi

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Ting Leung Huel, Stephen
Chan Ching Har, Eliza
Zhan Yuan Jing

SUPERVISORS

Su Li (Chairman)
Wu Yi Gang
Dong Ke Man

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Wang Yu Wei (General Manager)
Yang De Chun

Fang Jia Zhi

Zhang Feng

Wang Yue

Dong Ling Yun

Zhang Jing Yan

COMPANY SECRETARY
Zhang Jing Yan

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Ting Leung Huel, Stephen (Chairman)
Chan Ching Har, Eliza
Zhan Yua'm_\Jing

-

REMUNF:R'ATION COMMITTEE

Zhan Yuan Jing (ghqifman)
Gu Hai Ou A '
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Corporate Information (Cont’d)

v B R (%)

NOMINATION COMMITTEE REZEZES
Gu Hai Ou (Chairman) EBE (£/E)
Chan Ching Har, Eliza PR BB
Zhan Yuan Jing ERER

STRATEGY AND PLANNING COMMITTEE  Bkmg B E 8% B &

Gu Hai Ou (Chairman) BREES (F/E)

Wang Yu Wei FEE

Ting Leung Huel, Stephen TRB

Chan Ching Har, Eliza BRIBE

Zhan Yuan Jing ERER

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES R

Gu Hai Ou EAS R

Zhang Jing Yan RRE

AUTHORIZED PERSON TO ACCEPT e Jom s 2 AR
SERVICE OF PROCESS AND NOTICE

Zhang Jing Yan RRE
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS 188 S A% BLRT
PricewaterhouseCoopers EEROKESFEN SRS
Certified Public Accountants and WESETAI R

Registered Public Interest Entity Auditor AMARF = EEBZEE
22nd Floor, Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong BAEFPRAKFAE2RE

LEGAL ADVISOR AS TO HONG KONG A v A 1 e 1

LAWS

DLA Piper Hong Kong BREEERNE AT

25/F, Three Exchange Square, 8 Connaught Place, Central Hong Kong B /B FIRFEZEEIS 8 SR R 5 B 15 3 Hi 25 1%
H SHARE REGISTRAR H B 18 3 488 5 6 e 0E

Hong Kong Registrars Limited BERAEFEZRLEBRAR

Shops 1712-1716, BEABET

17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, ERKNEFR 1835

183 Queen’s Road East, BRALI7H1712-1716 F

Wanchai, Hong Kong

Note: In 2019, Mr. Gao Zhen Kun resigned from the original positions i © ZZE—NFE @ ARAFARES RS RELEFTME - A7)
of the chairman of the Company; Mr. Bai Jian retired from the REZER  BFEFOESE  REQLEBREFRLZL
original positions of the Party Committee secretary and the RIRBBEIBBEBEFZTRIN - FFEEL2RARE (£
chief auditor; Ms. Liu Cun Ying and Ms. Guo Gui Qin, retired from FeREIEHEE  EEREREEAEBERE |WEH -

the original positions of the deputy general manager. For
details, please refer to the section “Changes of Directors,
Supervisors and Senior Management” in the “Report of the
Board of directors” section of the report.
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Financial Highlights
R/ T

A summary of the consolidated results and the consolidated balance sheet of the Company and its subsidiaries (hereafter
collectively referred to as the “Group”) for each of five years ended 31 December 2019, as extracted from the audited financial
statements of the Group, is set out below:

Revenue YA

Gross profit &)

Profit for the year 5 /& %18

Profit attributable to owners of the Company FE 5 BIR AR A Fig &
EBITDA B Wi E# sH AT 7B

Earnings per share (RMB) & & iz (A REETT)

Dividend per share (RMB) % 8 (A R#IT)

Gross profit ratio & Fi| &

Net profit ratio /% FI| &

Current ratio 7R &)tk &

Quick ratio R Bj b, 2
Liability/Asset ratio & £ & &%
Return on equity B 7K [B] 3§ &
Return on assets & & @] ¥R &

Total assets & E 425t
Total liabilities B &4 &
Equity attributable to owners of the Company ¥z 7B R AN A RIFT A &
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Financial Highlights (Cont’d)
S0 B2 (4

ZNAHEERERNE (HREAKELELRR)

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETTT
4,476,449 5,059,638 5,025,183 4,605,295 4,066,960
2,054,495 2427979 2,525,542 2,365,984 2,012,580
741,390 1,005,853 969,892 850,989 742,581
417,650 677815 666,666 595,654 541,032
1,124,592 1,310,469 1,273,398 1,114,013 977,384
0.33 0.53 0.52 047 042

0.16 0.18 0.17 0.16 0415

45.90% 47.99% 50.26% 50.71% 49.49%
16.56% 19.88% 19.30% 18.24% 18.26%
4.49 4.95 4.88 4.98 53
3.04 3.30 3.7 3.21 297
29.18% 25.52% 27.22% 28.09% 16.77%
10.00% 13.82% 15.01% 14.46% 14.38%
7.08% 10.30% 10.93% 10.40% 11.97%

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET T ARETT ARBTT ARET T ARETTT
10,469,970 9,769,866 8,875,657 8,184,166 6,203,281
3,055,396 2,493,017 2416115 2,299,058 1,040,245

5,527,255 5,316,652 4,816,620 4,403,184 3,969,302
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Chairman’s Statement
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I am pleased to present the annual report of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019 for shareholders’ review.

RESULTS OF THE YEAR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 (the “Reporting Period”), the Group’s revenue amounted to RMB4,476,449,000,
representing a decrease of 11.53% from RMB5,059,638,000 for the corresponding period of last year; net profit amounted to
RMB741,390,000, representing a decrease of 26.29% from RMB1,005,853,000 for the corresponding period of last year; net profit
attributable to owners of the Company amounted to RMB417,650,000, representing a decrease of 38.38% from RMB677,815,000
for the corresponding period of last year; earnings per share was RMB0.33 (2018: RMBO0.53); and dividend per share was RMB0.16
(2018: RMB0.18).

REVIEW OF THE YEAR

2019 was a year full of difficulties and challenges, and a year of struggling and laying a solid foundation. During the year, as the
downward pressure on the Chinese economy continued to increase, the reform of national medical system continued to intensify
and more stringent policies were adopted, competition in the pharmaceutical industry became even fiercer and profit growth
slowed further. At the same time, the Group has entered a transitional period between new and old production capacity, and was
faced with prominent problems such as insufficient production capacity of some products and new production capacity not being
released, which led to declines in both the production volume and value. With the completion of construction and
commencement of trial production and operation in succession of the newly built production bases, industrial operating cost and
depreciation of fixed assets have increased. All these have adverse effects on the Group's performance.

During the year, the Group thoroughly carried out the “Xi Jinping Thought on Socialism with Chinese Characteristics for a New Era”
and the spirit of the 19th National Congress of CPC, continued to strengthen the political leadership of the Communist Party,
continued to enhance ideological and political construction, organizational construction, cadre team construction and ideology
construction, integrated the construction of the Communist Party into all aspects of corporate governance and facilitated in-depth
integration of the construction of the Communist Party into production and operation. During the Reporting Period, taking the
opportunity of key project modification, the Company motivated the enthusiasm, initiative and creativity of party organization,
party members and staff at all levels, facilitated in-depth integration of the construction of the Communist Party into production
and operation, further strengthened risk investigation in the daily operation of the Company in production and supply, quality
management, marketing, brand management, safety and environmental protection, enhanced analysis and resolution of new
problems and conflicts and improved the ability of risk prevention and control. By improving the internal control system,
institutional system and quality system, the Company consolidated its basic management, created a long-term management
mechanism and improved the quality of management.

Success is often borne out of difficulties and hardship. During the Reporting Period, having long-term development in our mind,
we focused on the main idea of “quality management enhancement” during the year, overcame difficulties, forged ahead,
continuously improved the level of standardized management and cultivated development advantages. During the year, based on
the prospect of industrial development and the characteristics of its own operation, the Group further improved the marketing
organizational structure, continued to push forward marketing organization reform and strengthened marketing management
and control. Meanwhile, the Group expedited industrial layout adjustment, which began to take shape. The two new production
bases located in Daxing District in Beijing City and Yutian County in Tangshan City commenced production during the year, laying
a solid foundation for alleviating the pressure on product supply and demand and the Company's next stage of sustainable
development: -




A CENREREHARAA o ZFJLEFER

Chairman’s Statement (Cont’d)
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Chairman’s Statement (Cont’d)
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OUTLOOK AND PROSPECTS

2020 marks the end of the “13th Five-Year Plan”, and is the foundation year for the smooth start of the “14th Five-Year Plan”.
Opportunities coexist with challenges, and difficulties coexist with hopes.

In early 2020, the outbreak of the new coronavirus (COVID-19) pneumonia epidemic (the “Epidemic”) and its rapid spread across
the country posed additional challenges to the production and operation of the Group. Base on this situation, the Group has
closely monitored the development of the Epidemic, followed the decisions and arrangements of the Chinese government and
Beijing municipal government on prevention and control of the Epidemic, placed focus on both prevention and control of the
Epidemic and economic stability, mapped out overall plan with all factors being considered, continued to pay attention on the
impact of the Epidemic on production, sales and other aspects, and actively taken timely and effective response measures.

In the fight against COVID-19, traditional Chinese medicine has been proven to play an active role in prevention, treatment,
rehabilitation and other aspects, and its importance has been brought to a higher level. The Chinese government is expected to
provide more support for the traditional Chinese medicine industry. In addition, the Epidemic has once again raised public
awareness of health and healthcare, presenting new opportunities to the development of traditional Chinese medicine. We
believe that the status and role of traditional Chinese medicine will be further strengthened and recognized. Meanwhile, with the
continuous promotion and implementation of the Healthy China strategy and the focus changed from provision of medical
treatment to promotion of healthcare of citizens, China will continue its unremitting efforts to prevent and control major diseases,
actively address the problem of ageing population, boost fertility and provide all-round lifelong health services. A sound policy
atmosphere has been created for the development of the pharmaceutical industry and promoted the continuous development of
the industry.

On the other hand, the downward pressure on the macro economy and the challenges of the pharmaceutical industry in terms of
markets, receivables and costs will likely remain, putting us to a severe test. At the same time, regulatory policies in the
pharmaceutical sector are becoming more stringent. With the implementation of the new version of the Pharmaceutical
Administration Law of the People’s Republic of China, the supervision of the whole chain, whole cycle and whole process of
pharmaceutical products will be further strengthened, and the standardization of the pharmaceutical industry will be further
enhanced.

We are convinced that the pain caused by challenges and changes will definitely be turned into strength for long-term
development. A strong foundation has to be laid to pursue solid and sustainable development. In the future, facing the
intensifying pharmaceutical reform and the increasingly severe market conditions, we will, in addition to strengthening our own
development foundation, continue to adapt to the development of the industry, grasp major opportunities arising from the
encouragement and promotion of inheritance and innovation of traditional Chinese medicine by the Chinese government, closely
monitor market development, focus on market demand, highlight strengths in major businesses, capitalize on the trend and move
ahead pragmatically, with a view to realizing growth and transformation of the Group in the future.

| hereby would like to express my sincere gratitude to the members of the Board and all the staff of the Group for their excellent
performance and unremitting efforts; and to all the shareholders for their continuous support to and understanding of the
Company. As always, we will try our best to reward the shareholders.

Gu Hai Ou
Chairman

Beijing, the PRC {
30 March 2020
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2019, affected by intensified market competition, internal industrial layout adjustment and increase in costs, the Group had to
cope with sustained pressure in the process of production and operation, which led to declines in revenue and profits. For the year
ended 31 December 2019, the Group’s sales revenue amounted to RMB4,476,449,000, representing a decrease of 11.53% as
compared with RMB5,059,638,000 for the corresponding period last year; net profit amounted to RMB741,390,000, representing a
decrease of 26.29% from RMB1,005,853,000 for the corresponding period of last year; net profit attributable to the owners of the
Company amounted to RMB417,650,000, representing a decrease of 38.38% as compared with RMB677,815,000 for the
corresponding period last year.

2019 was a year of transition from the old to the new production capacity. Since the beginning of the first quarter, the Company
has been facing a shortage of production and supply of a number of series of products. The existing production lines of pills, liquid
preparations and other products in Yizhuang factory and Liujiayao factory were required to undergo GMP (Good Manufacturing
Practice) recertification. The two new production bases, namely Tong Ren Tang Technologies Tangshan in Yutian County in
Tangshan City of the Hebei Province and the Tong Ren Tang Technologies Daxing Production Base (‘Daxing Branch Factory”)
located in Da Xing Bio-Pharma Industrial Base of Zhongguancun Technology Park District, Beijing, passed the GMP certification in
April and July in 2019, respectively, but due to the time needed for product transfer from the old to the new production base,
production connection and commissioning of the new production lines, the two new production bases only commenced
operation in the second half of 2019, and the production capacities have not yet been released. As a result, the Company’s overall
production volume during the Reporting Period was limited, leading to a decline in the total production volume of Chinese patent
medicine in 2019 by more than approximately 20% as compared with the corresponding period last year. The production progress
of dosage products including pills and liquid preparation was particularly affected, which directly led to a decline in the production
volume of major products such as Liuwei Dihuang Pills (7SERH#E5 A1) series and Jinkui Shengi Pills (<& [E & 5.31) series, and thus
decreases in revenue and profits.

Despite all the pressures and difficulties, the Company remained optimistic and actively pushed forward production layout
adjustment based on its own strengths and advantages, with a focus on a long-term and healthy development in the future. In the
second half of 2019, based on the future development orientation and production planning, the Company transferred the
production of certain products such as Liuwei Dihuang Pills (7SR5 A1), Xihuang Pills (Fa 2 A1), and Shengmai Liquor (4 AR ER)
to Tong Ren Tang Technologies Tangshan and Daxing Branch Factory. In the above two new production bases, production lines of
pills, liquid preparations and other products successively commenced operation. At this point, the Group’s production of traditional
Chinese medicine products has begun to form a new pattern connecting Beijing and Hebei. Increasingly stable product supply is
expected to provide foundation of sufficient materials for the Company’s overall development in the future.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Cont’d)
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Meanwhile, the continuous growth in raw material procurement cost and energy consumption cost, coupled with the ever-
increasing industrial operating cost and rising unit manufacturing cost as a result of the commencement of operation of Daxing
Branch Factory and Tong Ren Tang Technologies Tangshan, as well as the increased depreciation expenses of fixed assets, have
led to a decline in profits of the Group compared with the same period last year.

Production and supply issues and market competition also affected product performance. The number of products that achieved
a sales amount of more than RMB5 million of the Group decreased from 53 last year to 51 in 2019. The number of products that
achieved a sales amount of more than RMB100 million was 9, which was the same as last year. Among our major products, the
sales amount of Liuwei Dihuang Pills (7XEk i #1) series, Niuhuang Jiedu Tablets (- ZE f# & Fr ) series and Xihuang Pills (FA & A1)
series decreased by 40.50%, 6.01% and 17.42%, respectively, as compared with the corresponding period last year. The sales
amount of Ganmao Qingre Granules (&% g /& 24 FE K1) series, Ejiao (P i) series and Jiawei Xiaoyao Pills (i Bk & #& #1) series
increased by 5.02%,1.56% and 18.26%, respectively, as compared with the corresponding period last year. In particular, Ejiao (Fi &)
series still lack sales momentum in retail terminals. To this end, the Company actively adjusted marketing strategies, optimized
channel structure, and continuously increased sales efforts in order to reduce channel inventory and drive terminal sales.

During the year, the Company closely focused on the main idea of “quality management enhancement”, consolidated the
foundation of development, forged ahead, continued to intensify the reform of marketing system, took into consideration the
prospect of industrial development and the characteristics of its own operation, further improved the marketing organizational
structure, established four product divisions and enhanced multidirectional control of products. Meanwhile, the Company
established sales promotion management department and strategic cooperation business department, and gradually improved
market operation capacity and operation quality. Faced with insufficient production and supply, the Company adopted a model of
direct connection of sales information with first-tier and second-tier distributors, effectively strengthened the cooperation with key
customers and in terms of products, collaborated with large pharmaceutical chain companies, promoted terminal promotions,
and sought breakthroughs in individual products as sales growth drivers.

In terms of scientific research on products, the Company is mainly committed to conducting secondary scientific research on
existing products, taking into consideration of the curative effects of existing products and exploring the potential of technological
improvement and upgrading. During the year, the Company continued to explore the characteristics of famous and outstanding
products and selected Jiawei Xiaoyao Pills (1IR3 # A1) as a representative product to undergo systematic and thorough study
on its curative effect on functional dyspepsia and premenstrual syndrome in order to provide reasonable guidance for clinical
medication; conducted in-depth research on the anti-tumor function of Xihuang Pills (FA& A1), to provide modern scientific
support for its effective inhibition of growth of tumor cells of esophageal cancer and breast cancer through multiple approaches
such as inhibiting the proliferation of tumor cells and inducing apoptosis in tumor cells, and to highlight its advantages in clinical
application. Also, the production process and therapeutic use of other products such as Anshen Jiannao Liquor (&t 2§ & ) and
Ertong Qingre Liquid ( 52 )5 24 0 AR ) were granted five national invention patents, which provides patent protection from the
perspective of intellectual property rights.
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The Company has over 40 domestic and overseas substantial subsidiaries which are engaged in manufacturing and distribution of
traditional Chinese medicine products, food and daily chemical products, production of Chinese medical raw materials, medical
services, distribution of medicine, etc.. In particular, located in Hong Kong, our principal subsidiary Tong Ren Tang Chinese
Medicine, primarily engaged in manufacturing, retail and wholesale of Chinese medicine products outside Mainland China. Tong
Ren Tang Chinese Medicine adopts a strategy of driving medicine demand by providing medical services and promoting culture
at first with its base in Hong Kong to build a global layout, aiming to continuously accelerate the internationalization of traditional
Chinese medicine. During the Reporting Period, due to the social event in Hong Kong, consumption sentiment of tourists visiting
Hong Kong and the public was weakened and retail sector in Hong Kong was hit hard. Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine was also
unfavorably impacted. Faced with a complex situation and economic environment, Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine adhered to
a prudent but expansive operation strategy, exercised strict control over product quality, optimized business layout, and strived to
overcome the adverse effects caused by various factors. As of 31 December 2019, it established 71 retail terminals in 20 countries
and regions outside Mainland China, with a view to building a global network by anchoring in Hong Kong, marching to overseas
and cultivating the main stream. As of 31 December 2019, the sales revenue of Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine and its
subsidiaries was RMB1,262,714,000, representing a decrease of 1.69% as compared with the corresponding period last year; net
profit attributable to owners of the Company amounted to RMB186,211,000, representing a decrease of 0.46% as compared with
the corresponding period of last year.

Founded in 2001, Tong Ren Tang WM has been devoted to the combination of natural herbal plants and modernization of Chinese
medicines and the application thereof, whose main products are masks, creams and daily chemical products. During the Reporting
Period, the development of Tong Ren Tang WM was obstructed at retail pharmacy channels in various provinces and cities in
China, with a decline in sales, resulting in a backlog of products in retail pharmacy channels. To this end, Tong Ren Tang WM
actively adjusted its sales strategy, pushed forward channel transformation, and accelerated the expansion of non-retail pharmacy
channels such as supermarkets and e-commerce. During the year, sales on e-commerce platforms increased compared to the
previous year, but due to limited scale of product sales and higher channel expansion costs, the benefits brought about by the
channel expansion have not yet appeared. As of 31 December 2019, the sales revenue of Tong Ren Tang WM was RMB83,742,000,
representing a year-on-year decrease of 37.21%; net loss amounted to RMB1,471,000.

Tong Ren Tang Second Traditional Chinese Medicine Hospital and Nansanhuan Zhonglu Drugstore are wholly-owned medical
institution and retail pharmacy of the Company. The two companies adhere to Tong Ren Tang's service principle of “Benefiting the
Mankind”, and serve customers with kindness. During the year, Tong Ren Tang Second Traditional Chinese Medicine Hospital
recorded an increase in overall operating cost and a decrease in gross profit margin, which greatly affected profitability. As of 31
December 2019, the two companies jointly achieved sales revenue of RMB237,491,000, representing a year-on-year increase of
2.79% and net profit reached RMB11,818,000, representing a year-on-year decrease 31.01%.

Six subsidiaries that engage in planting continued to capitalize on their geographical advantages, based on the local geographical
and climatic characteristics, followed the planting principle of “planting and harvesting specific to places of origin and seasons”
and adopted the partnership planting model based on actual needs of the Company, which ensured the stability of quality and
quantity of major medicinal materials including Cornel, Tuckahoe, catnip, Corydalis Bungeanae and Cortex Moutan. Meanwhile,
the subsidiaries continued to explore the advantages of native medicinal materials. As at 31 December 2019, six subsidiaries
engaging in production of Chinese medicinal raw materials recorded an aggregate sales revenue of RMB202,455,000, representing
a year-on-year decrease of 2.31%, and net profit of RMB12,762,000, representing a year-on-year decrease of 22.24%.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group has maintained a sound financial position. During the year of 2019, the Group’s primary source of funds was cash
generated from daily operating activities and borrowings.

The Group mainly uses Renminbi and Hong Kong dollars to make borrowings and loans and to hold cash and cash equivalents.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents amounted to RMB2,990,645,000 in total (31 December 2018:
RMB1,904,036,000).

As at 31 December 2019, the Group's short-term borrowings amounted to RMB35,000,000 (31 December 2018: RMB195,000,000),
carrying an interest rate of 4.534% per annum (2018: 4.501%), and current portion of non-current bank borrowing amounted to
RMB105,198,000 (31 December 2018: RMB5,146,000), totally accounting for 4.59% of the total liabilities (31 December 2018: 8.03%).
Long-term borrowings amounted to RMB1,223,571,000 (31 December 2018: RMB911,331,000), bearing annual interest rate of long-
term borrowings at 2.660% (2018: 1.202%), and the actual annual interest rate of bonds was 3.008% (2018: 3.008%), long-term
borrowings representing 40.05% of the total liabilities (31 December 2018: 36.56%). Of all the borrowings of the Group as at 31
December 2019, RMB140,198,000 will mature within one year and RMB1,223,571,000 will mature beyond one year.

On 31 July 2016, the Company issued corporate bonds on Shanghai Stock Exchange with aggregate principal amount of RMB800
million, a maturity of five years and a nominal interest rate of 2.95% per annum, also with the issuer’s option to adjust the coupon
rate and the investor’s resale option at the end of the third year. On 14 June 2019 and 26 June 2019, the Company published
announcements of the implementation of resale and resale results on the websites of the Shanghai Stock Exchange respectively,
which showed that no investor had resold the Bonds to the Company. On 19 June 2019, the Company published an
announcement on the website of the Shanghai Stock Exchange, in which the Company decided to raise the coupon rate of the
fourth year and the fifth year (from 31 July 2019 to 30 July 2021) to 4.35% with the method of interest calculation and interest
payment method remaining unchanged. The fair value of the bonds as at 31 December 2019 amounted to RMB811,600,000 (31
December 2018: RMB796,143,000) which is determined by reference to published price.

Capital Structure

The Group's capital management policy is to ensure the continuous operation of the Group with aim to provide returns for the
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

As at 31 December 2019, the total assets of the Group amounted to RMB10,469,970,000 (31 December 2018: RMB9,769,866,000).
The funds of the Group comprised non-current liabilities of RMB1,365,734,000 (31 December 2018: RMB1,000,690,000), current
liabilities of RMB1,689,662,000 (31 December 2018: RMB1,492,327,000), equity attributable to owners of the Company of
RMB5,527,255,000 (31 December 2018: RMB5,316,652,000) and non-controlling interests of RMB1,887,319,000 (31 December 2018:
RMB1,960,197,000).

In 2019, the Group's funds were mainly used for production and operation activities, construction projects, purchase of property,
plant and equipment, repayment of borrowings and payment of cash dividends, etc..
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Liquidity

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s liquidity ratio (the ratio of current assets to current liabilities) was 4.49 (31 December 2018:
4.95), reflecting that the Group had sufficient financial resources. The Group's quick ratio (the ratio of liquid assets to current
liabilities) was 3.04 (31 December 2018: 3.30), reflecting that the Group remained liquid. The Group’s trade receivables turnover
ratio (the ratio of revenue to the average of trade receivables balance) was 8.87 (31 December 2018: 11.43), reflecting that the
Group's trade receivables were liquid. The Group's trade payables turnover ratio (the ratio of cost of sales to the average of trade
payables balance) was 3.92 (31 December 2018: 3.98), reflecting that the Group had a relatively strong ability to use funding from
suppliers for nil consideration. The Group's inventory turnover ratio (the ratio of revenue to the average of inventory balance) was
1.91 (31 December 2018: 2.17), reflecting that the inventory had a high turnover rate.

Gearing Ratios

The Group monitors its capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s gearing ratio (the ratio of
total borrowings to equity attributable to owners of the Company) was 0.25 (31 December 2018: 0.21).

Expenses and Expense Ratio

As of 31 December 2019, the Group's distribution expenses amounted to RMB718,684,000 (2018: RMB866,651,000) and the
distribution expense ratio, i.e. the ratio of distribution expenses to revenue, was 0.16 (2018: 0.17). The decrease in distribution
expenses was mainly due to the decrease in business promotion and marketing expenses arising from advertising, exhibition
promotion, etc..

As of 31 December 2019, the Group’s administrative expenses amounted to RMB397,551,000 (2018: RMB364,248,000) and the
administrative expense ratio, i.e. the ratio of administrative expenses to revenue, was 0.09 (2018: 0.07). The increase in
administrative expenses was mainly due to the increase in depreciation and amortisation of long-term assets.

As of 31 December 2019, the Group's financial income amounted to RMB6,814,000 (2018: RMB17,067,000) and the financial income
ratio, i.e. the ratio of financial income to revenue, was 0.0015 (2018: 0.0034). The decrease in financial income was mainly due to
the increase in finance costs.

Gross Margin and Net Profit Margin

As of 31 December 2019, the gross margin of the Group was 45.90% (2018: 47.99%), while the net profit margin was 16.56% (2018:
19.88%).

Research and Development Expenses

As of 31 December 2019, the research and development expenses (excluding employee benefit expense, depreciation and
amortisation expense) of the Group were RMB28,316,000 (2018: RMB27,835,000), accounting for 0.38% of net assets (2018: 0.38%)
and 0.63% of revenue (2018: 0.55%), respectively. The research and development expenses including employee benefit expense,
depreciation and amortisation expense were RMB61,248,000 (2018: RMB55,889,000), accounting for 0.83% of net assets (2018:
0.77%) and 1.37% of revenue (2018: 1.10%), respectively.

Capital Expenditure

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group's capital expenditure incurred amounted to RMB276 million (2018: RMB379
million), primarily used for the construction of production base.
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Pledges over Assets of the Group

As at 31 December 2019, RMB9,438,000 (31 December 2018: RMB9,562,000) of the Group's assets was pledged as security for long-
term borrowing of RMB49,000 (31 December 2018: RMB48,000).

Contingent Liabilities
The Group had no contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2019 (31 December 2018: Nil).

Foreign Currency Risk

The Group operates internationally and foreign exchange risk arising from trading business, recognised assets and
liabilities, and net investments in foreign operations, primarily related to the HKD. The Group currently does not have
a foreign currency hedging policy. The Group mainly manages its foreign currency risk by closely monitoring the
fluctuation of the exchange rates.

Capital Commitments

As at 31 December 2019, the capital commitments of the Group relating to the constructions of production facilities, which had
been contracted for but had not been reflected in the consolidated financial statements of the Group, amounted to approximately
RMB215,523,000 (31 December 2018: RMB245,914,000).

Significant Investment

During the year of 2019, the Group did not have any significant investment. As of the date of this report, the Group does not have
any plan for material investments or purchase of capital assets.

Material Acquisition and Disposal of Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures and Associates

During the year of 2019, the Group did not have any material acquisition and disposal in relation to subsidiaries, joint ventures and
associates.
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PROSPECTS

In the future, the Group will unswervingly follow the path of high quality development, enhance performance of the “quality
management enhancement year”, and thoroughly implemented the philosophies of “strengthening Party construction and
promoting business, strengthening management and promoting development”, exercise more effective control on production,
supply and marketing, promote enhancement through adjustment and promote development through reform, to ensure a
successful conclusion of the “13th Five-Year Plan” and lay a solid foundation for a good start for the “14th Five-Year Plan”.

In the beginning of 2020, the epidemic broke out in a number of provinces and cities across the country. In order to control the
spread of the epidemic, the Chinese government adopted various emergency public health measures in a timely manner,
including measures to suspend production, restriction on work resumption, and home isolation during the epidemic. Since the
outbreak of the epidemic, the Group has paid close attention to its development and changes, acted in concert with the national
epidemic prevention and control work, resumed production, marketing, logistics and distribution systems in an orderly manner,
and initiated and implemented a series of prevention and control measures as soon as resumption of work to safeguard the health
and safety of employees. While carrying out its own epidemic prevention and control work, the Group has also guaranteed the
supply of medicines during the epidemic. At the same time, in order to render positive support for the prevention and control of
the epidemic and fulfil the responsibilities of a state-owned enterprise, the Group has actively donated products such as Chinese
patent medicines to Beijing Charity Association and other organizations to help the Communist Party and China win the fight
against the epidemic.

Meanwhile, the Chinese government has attached great importance to the characteristics and advantages of traditional Chinese
medicine in the prevention and control of outbreaks. Huoxiang Zhengaqi Liquid (2% IE&7K) and other products manufactured
by the Group have also been included in the national “Diagnosis and Treatment Plan for the Novel Coronavirus Pneumonia” (¥7 %!
T A R =5 B B I A 2 5 22 ). To this end, the Group will make more rapid response to market demand, actively carry out
activities under the theme of “Caring for Family and Caring for Health”, keep track of market development trends and adopt a
product-centric strategy. In respect of the four stages of “prevention, control, resistance, and maintenance” of traditional Chinese
medicine for the treatment of new coronavirus pneumonia, the Group has systematically selected more than 30 kinds of products
for treatment for cold, heat alleviating and health boosting , including Fangfeng Tongsheng Pills ([ @ 3822 ), Ganmao Qingre
Granules (&% 55 ZAFE K1 ), Banlangen Granules (1R B4R ¥4 ), Qiguanyan Pills (58 4 }1.), Xiaoer Qingrening Granules (/N5278
EEFR), Linyang Jiedu Pills (}2 F 85 A1), Buzhong Yigi Pills (8 1 z 5 A1), formulated operation plans for each products
based on the characteristics of efficacy, continue to enhance cooperation with distributors and retailers at all tiers, and will strive to
drive product sales.

With the successive commencement of operation of the two new production bases in Daxing Branch Factory and Tong Ren Tang
Technologies Tangshan, the Group's industrial layout adjustment has begun to take shape. In order to satisfy market demand, the
Group will continuously strengthen the capability of overall production scheduling, put advance arrangements in place from the
aspects of equipment, technology and materials based on the characteristics of various products, dosage forms, processes and
industrial units, and exercise flexible control on the pace of production and the order of production scheduling so as to create
synergy among products and seek new breakthroughs in production capacity and volume.

In the future, with a pragmatic and honest attitude, the Group will continue to strengthen the political leadership of the
Communist Party and enhance marketing capabilities, production and supply capabilities and basic management capabilities,
laying a solid foundation for a healthy, sustainable, and stable high-quality development of the Group.
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The Board is pleased to present the 2019 annual report together with the audited financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2019.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacturing and sale of Chinese medicine products. Further discussion and analysis of
these activities, including a discussion of using of key financial performance indicators for a fair review of the Group’s business and
an indication of likely future developments in the Group's business, can be found in the Management Discussion and Analysis set
out on pages 12 to 25 of this report. This discussion forms part of this Report of the Board of Directors.

The distribution of income of the Group is set out below:

Sales of Chinese medicine products & E R E WA
— Mainland China 7 B A ity
— Outside Mainland China FAE b B X 2 it [&

Subtotal /N5t

Advertising services income & & R I A
— Mainland China 7 # B Ayt

Services income ARFE W A
— Mainland China 71 B A ity
— Outside Mainland China FAE i B X 2 it [&

Subtotal /N5t

Royalty fee income 7 W& FREU A
— Outside Mainland China R EABBIZR Kb @

Total &5t
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BEReMARE_ T NFFREAERHE_T-NFT _A=T—HLFELERNBEHRE -

B Sr I pE S u)
AEETERFLEEMEETEREMRES - WEBNE-—PNTHR (BRERMBHERRRERHAEHE
EBNERRAREERBERRAENBERNTHR) BRNARE 2EE25BENERBTREDNF o %

WEAEEEWREN—H7 -

REBWRAD T

2019 2018

Ratio to the Ratio to the

RMB’000 total Income RMB'000 total Income
AR¥ T LU A LE ARBTIT IR AL
3,443,104 76.91% 4,041,543 79.88%
951,826 21.26% 923,834 18.26%
4,394,930 98.17% 4,965,377 98.14%
32,053 0.72% 43,018 0.85%
6,790 0.15% 7,244 0.14%
42,458 0.95% 43,618 0.86%
49,248 1.10% 50,862 1.00%
218 0.01% 381 0.01%
4,476,449 100.00% 5,059,638 100.00%
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RESULTS

The results and financial position of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019 are set out on pages 112 to 240 of this report.

FINAL DIVIDEND AND TAX

The Board proposed a final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2019 (the “Final Dividend") of RMBO0.16 (tax inclusive) per
share based on the total number of the Company's issued and fully paid-up shares of 1,280,784,000 as at the end of 2019, totaling
RMB204,925,440 (2018: a final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2018 of RMB0.18 (tax inclusive) per share based on the
total number of the Company’s issued and fully paid-up shares of 1,280,784,000, totaling RMB230,541,120). The profit distribution
proposal is subject to the approval by the shareholders at the annual general meeting (the “AGM") for the year 2019. The
Company is expected to complete the dividend distribution on or before 31 August 2020.

As for non-resident enterprise shareholders (other than shareholders who have invested in the shares of the Company through the
Shenzhen-Hong Kong Stock Connect) as appeared on the H share register of shareholders of the Company, the Company will
withhold corporate income tax at the rate of 10% when distributing the Final Dividend in accordance with the Notice on Issues
concerning Withholding the Enterprise Income Tax on the Dividends Paid by Chinese Resident Enterprises to H-Share Holders
Which Are Overseas Non-resident Enterprises (Guo Shui Han [2008] N0.897) published by the State Administration of Taxation. Any
shares registered in the name of the non-individual registered shareholders, including HKSCC Nominees Limited, other nominees,
trustees or other groups and organisations, will be treated as being held by non-resident enterprise shareholders, thus their
dividends receivables will be subject to the withholding of the corporate income tax.

As for the individual shareholders (other than shareholders who have invested in the shares of the Company through the
Shenzhen-Hong Kong Stock Connect) whose names appear on the H share register of shareholders of the Company, the Company
will withhold 10% of the Final Dividend as individual income tax when distributing the Final Dividend in accordance with the
Notice on the Issues Concerning the Administration of Individual Income Tax Collection after the Annulment of Document Guo
Shui Fa [1993] N0.045 (Guo Shui Han [2011] No.348), unless otherwise specified by the relevant tax regulations, tax agreements or
the aforesaid notice.

As for the individual shareholders or securities investment funds who have invested in the H shares of the Company through
Shenzhen-Hong Kong Stock Connect, when distributing the Final Dividend, the Company shall withhold individual income tax at
the rate of 20% in accordance with the register provided by China Securities Depository and Clearing Corporation Limited,
according to the Circular on the Tax Policies Related to the Pilot Program of the Shenzhen-Hong Kong Stock Connect (Cai Shui
[2016] No.127) issued by the Ministry of Finance, State Administration of Taxation and China’s Securities Regulatory Commission on
5 November 2016.

As of the date of this report, no arrangement was reached pursuant to which any shareholder waived or agreed to waive any
dividend.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Reporting Period, revenue from the five largest customers and the largest customer of the Group accounted for 47.83%
and 21.43% (2018: 47.68% and 22.13%) of the Group's total revenue, respectively.

Tong Ren Tang Holdings and its subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates (excluding the Group) (the “Tong Ren Tang Group”)
was the largest customer of the Group. During the Reporting Period, the revenue from this customer was RMB959,408,000
accounting for 21.43% of the Group's total revenue of this year. Besides, Tong Ren Tang Holdings has interest in Client B Group as
listed in the table below. During the Reporting Period, details of the revenue from the five largest customers of the Group are set
out below:

Customer Name Major products or service provided
EF &R HENIEER 4%

Tong Ren Tang Group R{ZE £ Chinese medicine products /1 %4 &
Client A Group B AL Chinese medicine products A 24 i
Client B Group BF B E Chinese medicine products H B4 &
Client C Group & F C5E Chinese medicine products A1 %42 &
Client D Group ZF D% E Chinese medicine products F7 47 i

During the Reporting Period, purchases from the five largest suppliers and the largest supplier of the Group accounted for 29.15%
and 13.18% (2018: 26.27% and 11.60%) of the total purchases of the Group, respectively.

Tong Ren Tang Group was the largest supplier of the Group. During the Reporting Period, the amount of purchase by the Group
from this supplier was RMB206,284,000, accounting for 13.18% of the Group’s total amount of purchase in this year.

Save as disclosed in this report, none of Directors, their close associates, or any shareholder (who, to the knowledge of the Board,
owns more than 5% of the issuers’ share capital) has any interest in the five largest suppliers or customers.

RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES, SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The Group understands that employees are valuable resources and the realisation and promotion of employees’ value will help to
achieve the Group's overall goals. Remunerations of the Group’s employees are determined with reference to the prevailing
market level as well as the competency, qualifications and experience of individual employee. Discretionary bonuses based on
individual performance during the year will also be paid to the employees as recognition of and a reward for their contributions to
the Group. The Group attaches great importance to development and growth of talents and provides employees with skill training,
career planning and development opportunities, seeking to create a platform for mutual growth and sharing of development
between the Group and employees.

The Group cherishes its solid partnership with suppliers. It aims to achieve win-win results in cooperation with all relevant parties
through its operational excellence, superior product and service quality, as well as transparent and fair procurement activities. The
Group exercises a high level of scrutiny over supplier selection. Based on adequate qualifications, our quality department, we
collaborates with related purchase units, conducts assessment and on-site audits on product quality of suppliers, and makes a
general appraisal. The production department then conducts suitability and quality consistency tests. Suppliers must pass the
audits and assessment before being allowed to provide products. In case of any serious issues in supplier qualification or supply
quality, the Group will suspend purchasing orders of the supplier immediately and, if necessary, cancel its qualification to ensure
the quality and safety of the Group’s products.
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The Group understands that maintaining good relationships with customers is essential for the Group’s overall development. For
the purpose of maintaining the competitiveness of the brand and product of the Group, the Group adheres to the principle of
honesty and integrity to build a reliable service environment for the customers, and has always been dedicated to provide our
customers with quality products and services.

The Group is also aware that the changes in the procurement and supply strategy of relevant customers and suppliers, or the
failure of the quality of the Group's products and services to continuously meet the needs of its customers, or the failure of the
quality of the products of the suppliers to meet the needs of the Group, may result in the changes in the partnership between the
Group and its major customers and suppliers, which may in turn adversely affect the Group's production and operation. The Group
continues to develop new customers and new suppliers, expand new channels and tap into new markets, with a view to reducing
the risk of reliance on them. During the Reporting Period, there was no material and significant dispute between the Group and its
suppliers and customers.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2019, the reserves of the Company available for distribution amounted to approximately RMB2,311,024,000 (31
December 2018: approximately RMB2,044,635,000).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of changes in property, plant and equipment of the Group for the year of 2019 are set out in Note 7 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements.

DONATIONS

Cash donations made by the Group during the Reporting Period amounted to RMB132,000 (2018: RMB1,915,000).

SHARE CAPITAL

There was no change in the share capital of the Company during the year of 2019. The details are set out in Note18 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements.

PUBLIC FLOAT

During the year of 2019 and as at the date of this report, based on the public information available to the Company and as far as
the Directors are aware, the Company has satisfied the public float requirement under Rule 8.08 of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2019, the following persons (other than the Directors, the supervisors of the Company (the “Supervisor”) and
the chief executive of the Company) had interests or short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 336 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of

Hong Kong, the "SFO"):

Name of shareholder

R B

Tong Ren Tang Ltd.Mee2 [A{Z & & {7 (=2
Tong Ren Tang Holdings®et2 £2 & 7] (&2

Total/ & 3£ -

Yuan SaiNan RE S

Mitsubishi UFJ Financial Group, Inc. Mot/ #iE3)
Hillhouse Capital Advisors, Ltd Mo/ &)

C|t|g roup [N (Note/ Fft 3% 5)

Capacity

51

Beneficial Owner Bz A A
Interest of corporation controlled by the substantial shareholder
ABCRATEE Sl A B R M 21

Beneficial Owner Bz G A
Beneficial Owner Bz A A

Interest of corporation controlled by the substantial shareholder
ARBCR Pz il A B e i 2

Investment manager & & ££38

Interest of corporation controlled by the substantial shareholder,
Person having a security interest in shares, Custodian
corporation/approved lending agent

ARG ER R - HROFERBEEOA -
REA—EE/ BB HRIEA

Information disclosed above is based on the data published on the website of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk) unless otherwise stated

in the notes below.

Notes:

(1) (L) — Long position, (S) — Short position, (P) — Lending pool

2) 600,000,000 shares held by Tong Ren Tang Holdings were held through Tong Ren Tang Ltd.. As at 31 December 2019, Tong Ren Tang Ltd. was owned
as to 52.45% by Tong Ren Tang Holdings. Upon completion of the capitalisation issue of shares of the Company on 3 July 2014 and as at 31
December 2019, Tong Ren Tang Holdings was deemed to be interested in the 600,000,000 shares held by Tong Ren Tang Ltd.. Besides, upon
completion of the capitalisation issue of shares of the Company on 3 July 2014 and as at 31 December 2019, Tong Ren Tang Holdings also directly

held 9,480,000 shares.

(3) As at 31 December 2019, Mitsubishi UFJ Financial Group, Inc. indirectly held 62,823,000 H shares of the Company in long position through a series of

corporations under its control.
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Percentage of Percentage  Percentage in total
Number of shares domestic shares of Hshares issued voting shares
HERTH
R&B&B AERBDL HERBE DL RERRS
600,000,000 92.013% - 46.846%
600,000,000 92.013% - 46.846%
9,480,000 1.454% = 0.740%
609,480,000 93.467% = 47.586%
35,732,000 (L)
(Note/ FtEE 1) _ 568% 2.790%
62,823,000 (L)
(Note/ Fit&E 1) _ 9.999% 4.905%
47,663,000 (L)
(Note/ Fit&E 1) _ 758% 3721%

36,103,189 (L)

(Note/ i1 - 5.74% (L) 2.819% (1)
2,022,720 (5)
(Note/ i 1 = 0.32% (5) 0.158% (S)
18,697,335 (P)
(Note/ i 1 = 2.97% (P) 1.460% (P)

SRR B TR B R E B BT 1558 2 H0 (www.hkexnews.hk) BT ERHEB9(= B (EHT - T 3Rt 3t 5 B AT 158955 o

Bt

(1) () —2FE () — KB (P — A[EE LR

()  FEEREIFFEAI600000000 BARH TIBBRICERDIFE - R-ZFE—NF+ZA=+—H EFERAHEFRCERG5245%
Bk o RCE—WEFE+A=ARXRAIBEIEBF TR ERR - E—NEFE+ - A=—1—H  EERFHELAEE R ERG AT
FEHB 2 600,000,000 RIR 172 125 o Boh » RZE—MEFE+A=AXRTBFNBETEHKERR-_E—NEFE+_A=+—H "
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(4) The investment manager for both Gaoling Fund, L.P. and YHG Investment, L.P. changed from Hillhouse Capital Management, Ltd. to Hillhouse
Capital Advisors, Ltd,, effective from 1 January 2019. The above charges was no transfer of shares of the Company. Hillhouse Capital Advisors, Ltd.
was indirectly interested in 46,106,000 H shares of the Company in long position indirectly held by Gaoling Fund, L.P. and 1,557,000 H shares of the
Company in long position held by YHG Investment, L.P.

(5) As at 31 December 2019, Citigroup Inc. held 36,103,189 H shares of the Company in long position and 2,022,720 H shares of the Company in short
position through interest of corporation under its control, held 15,145,280 H shares of the Company in long position as a person holding security
interest in shares, and held 18,697,335 H shares in long position of the Company as custodian corporation/approved lending agent (available for
lending).

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, the Directors were not aware of any other person (other than the Directors,
Supervisors and the chief executive of the Company) who had any interests or short positions in the shares and underlying shares
of the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the Reporting Period, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company's listed securities.

MAJOR RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group has examined all of the risks identified by the Group based on the risk management system and assessed the risks
which may arise from the existing and new businesses. The major risks and uncertainties of the Group included policy risks,
operational risks and financial risks. For the risks identified, the Group actively reviewed their potential effects on its business
operation and finance. For details of the measures taken by the Group for management of the major risks, please refer to the
section headed "Risk Management and Internal Control” in the chapter “Corporate Governance Report”.,

Policy Risk

Adjustments in industry policies, such as the medical system reform, two-invoice system, proportion of medicine sales, policy on
medical-related tender indicating a cost reduction trend, and reform of value-added taxes, may have uncertainty effects on the
product sale of the Group.

Increasingly stringent standards in the laws and regulations and the regulatory efforts of the State on safe production, fire safety
and environmental protection impose higher requirements on safety and environmental management for the Company. As the
Group has many production units, it is faced with the uncertainties of increasing investment cost for safe production management
and environmental management.

Operational Risks

As the “Tong Ren Tang"” brand used by the Group enjoys a high reputation, emergencies have uncertain influence against the
Group and the product sales of the Group.

The Group mainly engages in production of Chinese patent medicines, which requires a large variety of Chinese medicinal raw
materials, supplementary materials and packaging materials, with complex production process and demanding quality control.
Although the Group has a strict quality management system and carries out production and operation in strict accordance with
the requirements of GMP (Good Manufacturing Practice) and GSP (Good Supply Practice) under strict quality control in all sessions,
there are potential risks of sporadic issues that may lead to economic and reputation loss of the Group.

Meanwhile, there are also risks such as a reduction in the amount of materials collected for production, a decline in the quality of
raw materials or market price fluctuations due to force majeure such as major climate changes or extreme disastrous weather, etc,,
which may have a significant impact on the Group’s production and supply and procurement cost.
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Financial Risks

As affected by the industry characteristics and the expansion of scale of the Group, the inventory amount was relatively large,
accounting for a high proportion of total assets, thus the Group is exposed to the risks such as capital occupation, poor turnover
rate, inventory devaluation and damages.

Affected by internal and external factors such as intensifying marketing competition and the adjustment of marketing
organization, difficulties in collecting accounts receivable increased, thus the Group may be exposed to the risks of shortage of
liquidity and default loss.

COMPLIANCE OF LAWS AND LEGAL CONSTRUCTION

The Group's businesses are subject to a number of laws and regulations, which primarily include the Company Law of the People’s
Republic of China, the Contract Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Property Law of the People’s Republic of China, Law of
the People’s Republic of China on Traditional Chinese Medicine, the Pharmacopoeia of the People’s Republic of China (2015
Edition), Good Manufacturing Practice for Drugs, Good Supply Practice for Drugs, etc., or other laws and regulations, or other
applicable legal documents promulgated according to or in connection to the abovementioned laws and regulations. In addition,
provisions under other relevant laws and regulations also apply to the Group (for instance, Labour Law of the People’s Republic of
China, Labour Contract Law of the People’s Republic of China, Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), the Listing Rules and
others). The Group is committed to ensuring its compliance with such provisions through internal control and approval
procedures, training, as well as supervision over each business unit.

As far as the Directors are aware, there was no significant impact on the Group resulting from non-compliance with any relevant
laws and regulations. There was no major legal risk event during the year.

In 2019, the Group adhered to the concept of “serving business development and preventing legal risks” and took assessment of
legal construction as the guide. With a focus on organizational construction, it has set up departments, built teams, established
systems and made active efforts in building a professional legal team to provide organizational protection for legal affairs to carry
out various procedures of legal affairs. During the Reporting Period, the Group strengthened its institutional construction to further
standardize the management of corporate legal affairs; strengthened its contractual management and constantly enhanced its
contract approval and recording procedures to prevent legal risks in relation to contracts. Legal corporate governance compliance
was further improved.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY AND PERFORMANCE

The relevant laws and regulations complied with by the Group include Environmental Protection Law of the People’s Republic of
China, Air Pollution Prevention Law of the People’s Republic of China and the Law on Promoting Clean Production of the People’s
Republic of China, etc..

In daily production and operation, the Group has been constantly committed to the philosophy of placing equal emphasis on
development and environmental protection. Through rational utilization of various resources in strict accordance with relevant
national laws and regulations in production and operation, the Group sought to minimize the impact on the surrounding
environment. In the course of daily operation, the Group was dedicated to maintaining and consolidating a healthy business
environment in order to ensure the legitimacy of business conducts and thus steady and orderly development of the Group. The
Group also strived to improve the working environment of employees by promoting the concept of green office and green
production, with a view to providing a comfortable workplace for all employees. The environmental policy and performance of the
Group are set out in the “Environmental, Social and Governance Report” of the Company for year 2019.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHT

The shareholders of the Company do not have pre-emptive rights under the PRC Laws and the Articles of Association of the
Company (the “Articles of Association”).

NON-EXEMPT CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Continuing Connected Transactions with Tong Ren Tang Holdings
(i)  Property Lease Framework Agreement

On 25 January 2017, the Company and Tong Ren Tang Holdings entered into a property leasing framework agreement for a
term of three years from 1 January 2017 to 31 December 2019.

Pursuant to the agreement, Tong Ren Tang Holdings or any members of the Tong Ren Tang Group to lease certain premises
to the Group for its productions and operations, including but not limited to office premises, warehouses and staff quarter.
The continuing connected transactions under the Property Leasing Framework Agreement was entered into in accordance
with the pricing policies below: (1) The relevant market price. The relevant market price is determined by reference to the
rental information gathered by the Group of certain premises of similar specification and size in similar locations based on
such market terms to make sure that the terms offered by the Tong Ren Tang Group would not be less favorable than those
offered by third parties on the market. (2) Where the market price is not available, then the contract price, which shall be
determined after arm'’s length negotiation by both parties based on the principle of cost plus a fair and reasonable profit
rate and by reference to the historical rentals. The reasonable cost shall be determined by reference to the size of the
premises provided by the Tong Ren Tang Group, and the cost of premises management.

The annual caps of the proposed continuing connected transactions under the property leasing framework agreement for
each of the three years ended 31 December 2019 is RMB10,900,000, RMB11,600,000 and RMB11,800,000, respectively. On 19
March 2019, the Board resolved to revise the annual cap for the year ended 31 December 2019 from RMB11,800,000 to
RMB53,000,000. Please refer to the announcements published by the Company on 25 January 2017 and 19 March 2019 on
the websites of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and the Company for details.
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(ii)

In 2019, the rental fee paid by the Group to the Tong Ren Tang Group amounted to RMB12,383,000, and the value of right-
of-use assets was recognized to be RMB1,669,000, which did not exceed the relevant annual cap.

As the above-mentioned Property Leasing Framework Agreement expired on 31 December 2019, on 30 December 2019,
the Company renewed the agreement with Tong Ren Tang Holdings for a term of three years from 1 January 2020. The
annual caps for the continuing connected transactions contemplated under the renewed property leasing agreement for
the three years ending 31 December 2022 shall be RMB200,000,000, RMB80,000,000 and RMB60,000,000, respectively. For
details, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 30 December 2019 published by the Company on the
websites of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and the Company.

Distribution Framework Agreement

On 29 September 2016, the Company renewed the distribution framework agreement with Tong Ren Tang Holdings for a
term of three years from 1 January 2017 to 31 December 2019.

Pursuant to the agreement, the Group may, from time to time, sell its products to members of Tong Ren Tang Group. The
price of the products to be sold by the Group to Tong Ren Tang Group shall not be lower than that charged by the Group to
other independent third parties and shall be determined in accordance with a reasonable cost plus a fair and reasonable
profit margin: (i) the reasonable cost shall be determined by reference to the cost of the raw materials, the cost of labour and
the manufacturing expense etc,; and (i) the profit margin shall be determined by reference to the prevailing market and the
then market price for comparable products in the relevant industry, and the profit rate of the products of the Group in the
past years of not exceeding 50%, which is in line with the previous gross profit rate of the Group.

The annual caps for the continuing connected transactions contemplated under the renewed distribution framework
agreement for the three years ended 31 December 2019 is RMB1,300,000,000, RMB1,550,000,000 and RMB1,850,000,000,
respectively. The renewal of the distribution framework agreement has been approved by the independent shareholders of
the Company on 16 December 2016. Please refer to the announcements dated 29 September 2016 and 16 December 2016
and the circular of the Company dated 31 October 2016 published by the Company on the websites of the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange and the Company for details.

In 2019, sales amount of the Group to the Tong Ren Tang Group amounted to RMB927,411,000, which did not exceed the
relevant annual cap.

As the above-mentioned distribution framework agreement expired on 31 December 2019, on 16 October 2019, the
Company renewed the distribution framework agreement with Tong Ren Tang Holdings again for a term of three years from
1 January 2020. The annual caps for the continuing connected transactions contemplated under the renewed distribution
framework agreement for the three years ending 31 December 2022 shall be RMB1,300,000,000, RMB1,500,000,000 and
RMB1,700,000,000, respectively. The renewal of the distribution framework agreement has been approved by the
independent shareholders of the Company on 16 December 2019. For details, please refer to the announcements of the
Company dated 16 October 2019 and 16 December 2019 and the circular of the Company dated 31 October 2019 published
by the Company on the websites of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and the Company.
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(iii)

Master Procurement Agreement

On 29 September 2016, the Company and Tong Ren Tang Holdings renewed the master procurement agreement for a term
of three years from 1 January 2017 to 31 December 2019.

Pursuant to the agreement, the Group may purchase the raw materials and semi-finished products and finished products
("Relevant Products’) for manufacturing and distribution from the Tong Ren Tang Group. The price to be paid for the
Relevant Products procured by the Group from the Tong Ren Tang Group shall be determined in accordance with the
following principle: (1) the price shall be negotiated and agreed by the parties within the range of the then prevailing
market price for the similar products ("Market Price”), which shall be determined with reference to the prevailing market
price of comparable products negotiated and provided by at least two independent suppliers in the same or surrounding
areas; (2) if there is no comparable market price available for the Relevant Products, the price shall be determined based on
the integrated cost plus not more than 15% surcharge (the related cost shall be determined with reference to the cost of
raw materials, labour cost and production expenses, etc.); and (3) in any event, the price to be paid by the Group for the
procurement of the Relevant Products shall not be higher than that available from independent third parties for similar
products, or the Market Price, whichever is the lower.

For the three years ended 31 December 2019, the annual caps for the continuing connected transactions contemplated
under the renewed master procurement agreement shall be RMB240,000,000, RMB270,000,000 and RMB300,000,000,
respectively. The renewal of the master procurement agreement has been approved by the independent shareholders of
the Company on 16 December 2016. Please refer to the announcements dated 29 September 2016 and 16 December 2016
and the circular of the Company dated 31 October 2016 published by the Company on the websites of the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange and the Company for details.

In 2019, purchase of the Relevant Products by the Group from the Tong Ren Tang Group amounted to RMB155,773,000,
which did not exceed the relevant annual cap.

As the above-mentioned master procurement agreement expired on 31 December 2019, on 16 October 2019, the Company
renewed the master procurement agreement with Tong Ren Tang Holdings again for a term of three years from 1 January
2020. The annual caps for the continuing connected transactions contemplated under the renewed master procurement
agreement for the three years ending 31 December 2022 shall be RMB270,000,000, RMB320,000,000 and RMB370,000,000,
respectively. The renewal of the master procurement agreement has been approved by the independent shareholders of
the Company on 16 December 2019. For details, please refer to the announcements of the Company dated 16 October 2019
and 16 December 2019 and the circular of the Company dated 31 October 2019 published by the Company on the websites
of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and the Company.
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(iv)

Advertising Agency Framework Agreement

On 29 September 2016, Tong Ren Tang Century Advertising, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, renewed the
advertising agency framework agreement with Tong Ren Tang Holdings for the purpose of the provision of advertising
agency services by Tong Ren Tang Century Advertising to the Tong Ren Tang Group for a term of three years from 1 January
2017 to 31 December 2019.

Pursuant to the agreement, Tong Ren Tang Holdings entrusted Tong Ren Tang Century Advertising as a non-exclusive
advertising agent, to provide advertising agency services to the Tong Ren Tang Group. The fees for the provision of specific
services by Tong Ren Tang Century Advertising to the Tong Ren Tang Group under individual implementation agreement
shall be negotiated and determined by the parties with reference to the actual quotation offered by the advertiser, which is
at discount on the basis of its published price list, plus a reasonable fee for the advertising agency service of Tong Ren Tang
Century Advertising, which is generally not higher than 15% of the quotation offered by the advertiser.

For the three years ended 31 December 2019, the annual caps for the continuing connected transactions contemplated
under the renewed advertising agency framework agreement shall be RMB50,000,000, RMB52,000,000 and RMB54,000,000,
respectively. Please refer to the announcement published by the Company on 29 September 2016 on the websites of the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange and the Company for details.

In 2019, total amount paid by the Tong Ren Tang Group to Tong Ren Tang Century Advertising for the continuing
connected transactions contemplated under the advertising agency framework agreement was RMB31,997,000, which did
not exceed the relevant annual cap.

As the advertising agency framework agreement expired on 31 December 2019, on 28 February 2020, Tong Ren Tang
Century Advertising renewed the advertising agency framework agreement with Tong Ren Tang Holdings again for a term
of three years from 1 January 2020. The annual caps for the continuing connected transactions contemplated under the
renewed advertising agency framework agreement for each of the three years ending 31 December 2022 will be
RMB280,000,000. For details, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 28 February 2020 published by the
Company on the websites of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and the Company.

Tong Ren Tang Holdings is the ultimate holding company of the Company, and thus a connected person of the Company
pursuant to the Listing Rules. As such, all the transactions between the Tong Ren Tang Group and Tong Ren Tang Century
Advertising under the aforementioned agreements constitute continuing connected transactions of the Company.
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Continuing Connected Transactions with Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine
Exclusive Distributorship Framework Agreements

On 8 November 2017, the Company renewed the exclusive distributorship framework agreement with Tong Ren Tang Chinese
Medicine, for a term of three years from 1 January 2018 to 31 December 2020.

Pursuant to the agreement, the Company appoints International Pharm, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Tong Ren Tang Chinese
Medicine, as its sole overseas distributor for the purpose of the distribution of the relevant products of the Group (for the purpose
of the exclusive distributorship framework agreement, refers to the Company and its subsidiaries and associates, excluding Tong
Ren Tang Chinese Medicine and its subsidiaries and associates) outside the PRC. Within the term of the agreement and for the
purpose of the overseas distribution of the relevant products of the Group, International Pharm will procure from the Group, and
the Group shall supply to International Pharm, the relevant products as agreed by the parties. The price of the relevant products
supplied by the Group to International Pharm shall not be higher than the wholesale price of the relevant products sold by the
Group to its wholesale customers in the PRC.

The annual caps for the continuing connected transactions contemplated under the renewed exclusive distributorship framework
agreements for the three years ending 31 December 2020 shall be RMB49,600,000, RMB64,900,000 and RMB84,200,000,
respectively.

On 8 November 2017, Tong Ren Tang Ltd. renewed the Tong Ren Tang exclusive distributorship framework agreement with Tong
Ren Tang Chinese Medicine, for a term of three years from 1 January 2018 to 31 December 2020.

Pursuant to the agreement, Tong Ren Tang Ltd. appoints International Pharm as its sole overseas distributor for the purpose of the
distribution of the relevant products of Tong Ren Tang Ltd. and its subsidiaries and associates, excluding the Company and its
subsidiaries and associates for the purpose of the agreement (the “Tong Ren Tang Ltd. Group”) outside the PRC. Within the term
of the agreement and for the purpose of the overseas distribution of the relevant products of Tong Ren Tang Ltd. Group,
International Pharm will procure from Tong Ren Tang Ltd. Group, and Tong Ren Tang Ltd. Group shall supply to International
Pharm, the relevant products as agreed by the parties. The price of the relevant products supplied by Tong Ren Tang Ltd. Group to
International Pharm shall not be higher than the wholesale price of the relevant products sold by Tong Ren Tang Ltd. Group to the
wholesale customers in the PRC.

The annual caps for the continuing connected transactions contemplated under the renewed Tong Ren Tang exclusive
distributorship framework agreements for the three years ending 31 December 2020 shall be RMB74,400,000, RMB97,300,000, and
RMB126,300,000, respectively.

In 2019, total amount paid to the Group and Tong Ren Tang Ltd. Group by International Pharm for the continuing connected
transactions under the exclusive distributorship framework agreement and Tong Ren Tang exclusive distributorship framework
agreement amounted to RMB27,671,000 and RMB50,511,000 respectively, neither of which exceeds the relevant annual caps.

As at 31 December 2019, Tong Ren Tang Ltd. is the immediate controlling shareholder of the Company, which holds 46.85% direct
interest in the Company, and 33.62% direct interest in Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine which is a non-wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company. According to the Listing Rules, Tong Ren Tang Ltd. and Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine are both connected
persons of the Company. As such, all the transactions between Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine and the Company and all the
transactions between Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine and Tong Ren Tang Ltd., under the above-mentioned agreements
constitute continuing connected transactions of the Company. For details about the above-mentioned transactions, please refer
to the relevant announcements of the Company dated 8 November 2017.

The Company has confirmed that the execution and enforcement of the implementation agreements under the continuing
connected transactions set out above in the year of 2019 has followed the pricing policies of such continuing connected
transactions.



A EMNEEREHARAA o ZFJUEER

Report of the Board of Directors (Cont’d)
% a Rl (4)

S o A A 1 8 % e 20 2 52 B

BREHERG R

“E—tHF+—-ANR  ARRERCEREETBREHERGZ  HRA/ABE -_FT—/\F—A—HE
E_EEFF_A=+—HIL RBR=F-

REWHS  ARRZREEREX(RACEREZ 2B FRRDIERBRIGIMEHRD - URFHBEAIMEIER
SE(RBREHERDEMNS - AREEARRLETRAMKEA TEERCERENETRR R
BEAN)HBEER - RHpEERXBARBRPBEUIMNEIEAREHRBAERM S - BREXGAANKERE
MASE#ABEREXHEERER - ASERBRREXHBZRAEERZEBSTERAKEREF
BB E P HEMERER S RER

B AR EIER G RE TR ET R ERER IR e S EF+ A=+ —H I =ZAFEZ2F
ELERSRIAE AR 496000007T © AREE 64,900,000 7T K A R & 84,200,000 7T °

—E—+F+—ANH RLERMCERCERNSEEIR{C EBREHEER G BRAEE - —N\F
—A—RAEE-_ET-_ZTF+_A=+—0801 BH=F-

REWE  RACERNDZEEREXERBIBIMNEHE  URPBEIMEERCERD REFRFAR
BErEXGIRCEBREHERBEMS - TEEARARAMEFAFRALMEER) (R-EROGESE])
MEER - RpRAXHARANPBEAIMIERCERNEBERBERMNS - BREXSARCZER
EEBREMRACERODEESABBREREEREER - ACERMEERBREXHE ZABEER
ZERETSRRACERMEERNAEFESLRR S HERBER I BER -

B A ERREHEIER R BE TRET 2 HERERINEBE S _SF+_A=+—HIt=@AF
BE2Z2FEE LEBRDRIA AR 74400,0007T «+ AR® 97,300,000 7T & A K # 126,300,000 7T °

TR N FRBREER B RS EA LR ERREHERR BB T2 EERER I I N T REE
REACERNEBR ZE2ES R AARR 27671000 T A B 50,511,000 7T @ HARBBHEBEEE LR -

RoB-NEF+=A=+—R  RCEROERERHRRA4685%E0E - AARANEEIERIZE - L8
EEBEALAZERETATRC EME36%ME  RELTHA - ACERERACEEEAL
AFZMEAL - Bt - AR TRFC EEERFC SR ERCEEER ER R TR 591
RARANBEMER S - LR FHBFLMARARNA-FT—+&+— ANRZEBAS -

ARRER LA —FT-NFENFEREXHATARBGRNRITMATHCERAXFRHEREIHN
EERA -



TONG REN TANG TECHNOLOGIES CO. LTD. e ANNUAL REPORT 2019

Report of the Board of Directors (Cont’d)
%l (4)

Annual Review of Continuing Connected Transactions

The Company's overseas auditor was engaged to report on the Group's continuing connected transactions in accordance with
Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of
Historical Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The overseas auditor has
issued unqualified letter in accordance with Rule 14A.56 and 14A.57 of the Listing Rules, containing the findings and conclusions
in respect of the above non-exempt continuing connected transactions for the year of 2019 as disclosed by the Company:

(i) nothing has come to their attention that causes them to believe that the disclosed continuing connected transactions have
not been approved by the Board;

(i) for transactions involving the provision of goods or services by the Group, nothing has come to their attention that causes
them to believe that the transactions were not, in any material respect, in accordance with the pricing policies of the Group;

(i) nothing has come to their attention that causes them to believe that the transactions were not entered into, in any material
respect, in accordance with the relevant agreements governing such transactions; and

(iv)  with respect to the aggregate amount of each of the continuing connected transactions, nothing has come to their
attention that causes them to believe that the amount of each of the continuing connected transactions has exceeded the
annual cap set by the Company.

The independent non-executive Directors has reviewed the above-mentioned continuing connected transactions and confirmed
that in the year of 2019:

(M these continuing connected transactions were entered into in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(i) these continuing connected transactions were entered into on normal commercial terms;

(i) these continuing connected transactions were entered into according to the relevant agreements governing each of these
transactions on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole; and

(iv) the aggregate amount of each of these transactions did not exceed the annual caps as set out in the relevant
announcements of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, there is no related party transaction or continuing related party transaction set out in Note 36 to the
financial statements that falls into the category of connected transaction or continuing connected transaction that needs to be
disclosed under the Listing Rules. The Company has fully complied with the disclosure requirements under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules with respect to the connected transactions and continuing connected transactions of the Company.
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NON-EXEMPT CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

On 4 November 2019 and 30 December 2019, the Company entered into an asset transfer agreement and a supplemental asset
transfer agreement with Tong Ren Tang Holdings respectively. Pursuant to the agreements, Tong Ren Tang Holdings has agreed
to transfer and the Company has agreed to purchase target asset, which is satisfied by way of payment of RMB640,681,910 (tax
inclusive) in cash. The target asset was the assets of the Beijing Tong Ren Tang Medicine Processing Base (1t & [R]1= & AR & jin T
£ ), located in Daxing Biomedicine Industrial Base in Zhongguancun Science Park, Beijing (including land use right and building
ownership), with an industrial land area of 114,122.67 square meters and total construction area of 88,753.01 square meters. The
above-mentioned transaction was approved by the State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration Commission of the State
Council of Beijing Municipality on 12 December 2019 and the independent shareholders at the extraordinary general meeting of
the Company held on 17 February 2020.

Tong Ren Tang Holdings is the ultimate controlling shareholder of the Company and is therefore a connected person of the
Company under the Listing Rules. Accordingly, the transaction contemplated under the asset transfer agreement and the
supplemental asset transfer agreement constituted a connected transaction of the Company. For details of the above-mentioned
transaction, please refer to the announcements of the Company dated 4 November 2019, 30 December 2019 and 17 February
2020 and the circular of the Company dated 31 December 2019.

COMPETING INTERESTS
Competition with Tong Ren Tang Ltd. and Tong Ren Tang Holdings

Both the Company and Tong Ren Tang Ltd. engage in the production and sale of Chinese patent medicines, but the principal
products of each of them are different. Tong Ren Tang Ltd. mainly produces Chinese patent medicines in traditional dosage forms
such as honeyed pills, powder, ointment and medicinal wines. Tong Ren Tang Ltd.'s main products include Angong Niuhuang Pills
(Z'B 45 H), Tongren Dahuoluo Pills (FHZAJE 4 A1), Tongren Wuiji Baifeng Pills ([F{= S ZE A Bl 1) and Guogong Wine (B1AH).
It also has some minor production lines for the production of granules and water-honeyed pills. These products do not compete
with the Group in terms of their curative effects. The Company focuses on manufacturing products in new dosage forms which are
more competitive as compared with western medicine. The Company's main products include Liuwei Dihuang Pills (7<ER 315 H1),
Niuhuang Jiedu Tablets (4~ & f## & ), Ganmao Qingre Granules (% & /& 2V F8RL) and Jinkui Shengi Pills (£ & B & AL), etc.
Tong Ren Tang Holdings is an investment holding company.

To ensure that the business classification between the Company, Tong Ren Tang Holdings and Tong Ren Tang Ltd. is properly
documented and established, Tong Ren Tang Holdings and Tong Ren Tang Ltd. undertake, pursuant to an undertaking dated 19
October 2000 committed by Tong Ren Tang Holdings and Tong Ren Tang Ltd. in favor of the Company (the “October
Undertaking’), that other than Angong Niuhuang Pills (%2 & 4= & A1), Tong Ren Tang Holdings, Tong Ren Tang Ltd. and their
respective subsidiaries will not produce in future any products that bear the same names or bear the same names with different
dosage forms as those pharmaceutical products produced by the Company, which may compete directly with those
pharmaceutical products of the Company.

Save as mentioned above, the Directors confirm that none of the other products of the Company is in direct competition with
Tong Ren Tang Ltd. or Tong Ren Tang Holdings.
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Right of First Refusal

To procure that the Company focuses on the development of the four major forms of products (namely granules, water-honeyed
pills, tablets and soft capsules), Tong Ren Tang Holdings and Tong Ren Tang Ltd. have granted the Company, pursuant to the
October Undertaking, a right of first refusal to manufacture and sell any of the new products which is developed by Tong Ren Tang
Holdings, Tong Ren Tang Ltd. or any of their respective subsidiaries and which is one of the four main forms of products of the
Company. Upon exercise of the right of first refusal, both Tong Ren Tang Holdings and Tong Ren Tang Ltd. or their respective
subsidiaries are not allowed to manufacture any of such new products. In the event that the Company develops any new product
based on the existing products of Tong Ren Tang Holdings and Tong Ren Tang Ltd. or their respective subsidiaries, and such new
product is one of the major forms of products of the Company, the Company will be entitled to manufacture such new product
and none of Tong Ren Tang Holdings and Tong Ren Tang Ltd. or their respective subsidiaries will be allowed to manufacture such
new product. The Directors believe that the above undertaking would clarify that both Tong Ren Tang Holdings and Tong Ren
Tang Ltd. would support the Company in its development of the four major forms of products in the future.

In the event that the Company refuses the right of first refusal offered by Tong Ren Tang Holdings and Tong Ren Tang Ltd., the
terms of the option to be offered to an independent third party should not be more favourable than those originally offered to the
Company, failing which the Company should be given an opportunity to reconsider the option under the new terms. The above
undertaking would no longer be valid in the event that the direct or indirect aggregate shareholdings of Tong Ren Tang Holdings
or Tong Ren Tang Ltd. in the Company fall below 30%.

The Company and the independent non-executive Directors have confirmed upon the review: during the year of 2019, Tong Ren
Tang Holdings and Tong Ren Tang Ltd. have provided all information necessary to the independent non-executive Directors for
their annual review and report on their fulfillment on the October Undertaking. Tong Ren Tang Holdings and Tong Ren Tang Ltd.
have fulfilled their undertakings on the relevant right of first refusal granted to the Company on their existing or future competing
businesses. The details of the annual declarations in compliance with the non-competition undertaking which have been made by
Tong Ren Tang Holdings and Tong Ren Tang Ltd. are set out below.
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DECLARATION

To: TONGREN TANG TECHNOLOGIES CO. LTD.
No. 20 Nansanhuan Zhonglu
Fengtai District, Beijing, the PRC

Dear Sir or Madam,

In order to ensure the interests of Tong Ren Tang Technologies Co. Ltd. (the “Company”) and its shareholders as a whole, we,

China Beijing Tong Ren Tang Group Co,, Ltd. and our subsidiaries (excluding the Company and its subsidiaries) make the following

confirmations:

1. On 19 October 2000, the Company and Beijing Tong Ren Tang Company Limited entered into an agreement with us to
regulate the non-competition undertaking (‘Non-competition Undertaking”), which include but not limited to the

options, pre-emptive rights or right of first refusal provided by us on our existing or future competing businesses;

2. We have provided to the independent non-executive directors of the Company with all the necessary information in order
for them to conduct review on the enforcement of the Non-competition Undertaking;

3. We confirm that we have fully complied with the Non-competition Undertaking for the year 2019;

4. We also agree this confirmation to be disclosed in the Company’s 2019 annual report.

We further undertake that if we become aware of any data or information in the future which causes any doubt on the
truthfulness, accuracy or completeness of the data or information provided by this confirmation, we will notify the Company in

writing on such data or information as soon as possible.

China Beijing Tong Ren Tang Group Co,, Ltd.
30 March 2020
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DECLARATION

To: TONGREN TANG TECHNOLOGIES CO. LTD.
No. 20 Nansanhuan Zhonglu
Fengtai District, Beijing, the PRC

Dear Sir or Madam,

In order to ensure the interests of Tong Ren Tang Technologies Co. Ltd. (the “Company”) and its shareholders as a whole, we,

Beijing Tong Ren Tang Company Limited and our subsidiaries (excluding the Company and its subsidiaries), make the following

confirmations:

1. On 19 October 2000, the Company and China Beijing Tong Ren Tang Group Co,, Ltd. entered into an agreement with us to
regulate the non-competition undertaking (‘Non-competition Undertaking”), which include but not limited to the

options, pre-emptive rights or right of first refusal provided by us on our existing or future competing businesses;

2. We have provided to the independent non-executive directors of the Company with all the necessary information in order
for them to conduct review on the enforcement of the Non-competition Undertaking;

3. We confirm that we have fully complied with the Non-competition Undertaking for the year 2019;

4. We also agree that this confirmation to be disclosed in the Company’s 2019 annual report.

We further undertake that if we become aware of any data or information in the future which causes any doubt on the
truthfulness, accuracy or completeness of the data or information provided by this confirmation, we will notify the Company in

writing on such data or information as soon as possible.

Beijing Tong Ren Tang Company Limited
30 March 2020
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Profiles of the Directors, Supervisors and senior management are set out on pages 98 to 103 of this report.

CHANGE OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

On 19 March 2019, Mr. Gao Zhen Kun tendered his resignation from the positions as an executive Director, the Chairman of the
Board, the chairman of the Nomination Committee and the member of the Remuneration Committee due to work changes. The
resignation of Mr. Gao Zhen Kun took effect upon the new executive Director being appointed at the 2018 AGM. On 11 June 2019,
Mr. Gu Hai Ou was elected as an executive Director at the 2018 AGM by the shareholders of the Company. On the same day, the
Board resolved to appoint Mr. Gu Hai Ou as the Chairman of the Board, the Chairman of the Nomination Committee and the
member of the Remuneration Committee. For details of the aforesaid changes, please refer to the announcements of the
Company dated 19 March 2019 and 11 June 2019 and the circular of the Company dated 12 April 2019.

On 11 June 2019, the Board appointed Mr. Zhang Feng, Ms. Wang Yue and Mr. Dong Ling Yun as the deputy general managers of
the Company, with a term of office commencing from 11 June 2019 up to the date of the 2020 AGM.

Mr. Bai Jian, being the original Party Committee secretary and general auditor of the Company, and Ms. Liu Cun Ying and Ms. Guo
Gui Qin, both being the deputy general managers, retired during the year.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Directors and the Supervisors has entered into a service contract with the Company for a term commencing on their
respective appointment dates to the date of the 2020 AGM.

None of the Directors or Supervisors has entered into any service contract with the Company that cannot be terminated by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation other than statutory compensation.
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS

Directors and Supervisors are subject to the election at the general meeting or the election by employees. The Board is authorized
by the general meeting to fix the remuneration of every Director or Supervisor when the general meeting appoints Directors and
Supervisors. The Directors or Supervisors who do not hold any management position in the Group will not receive any
remuneration from the Group. The Directors or Supervisors who also hold management positions in the Group will receive salaries
corresponding to such management functions. The independent non-executive Directors and external Supervisors are paid in line
with the prevailing local market rate by the Company.

In 2019, all executive Directors did not receive any remuneration as the Directors. In particular, Mr. Wang Yu Wei and Ms. Fang Jia
Zhi, each as an executive Director, received remuneration for the management positions they held in the Company. In addition,
Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen, Ms. Chan Ching Har and Eliza, Mr. Zhan Yuan Jing, each as an independent non-executive Director,
received directors’ fees at the amount of HKD240,000 (tax inclusive), HKD240,000 (tax inclusive)and RMB100,000 (tax inclusive),
respectively.

In 2019, Ms. Su Li and Mr. Dong Ke Man, each as a Supervisor, did not receive any remuneration as the Supervisor. In particular, Mr.
Dong Ke Man, as a Supervisor, received remunerations for the management positions they held in the Company. In addition, Mr.
Wu Yi Gang, as the Supervisor, received supervisor's fee at the amount of RMB100,000 (tax inclusive).

Details of the Directors’ and Supervisors’ salaries or salaries received corresponding to their management positions in the Group
for the years of 2019 and 2018 are set out in Note 32 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ INTERESTS IN MATERIAL TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Saved as disclosed in the non-exempt continuing connected transactions and the non-exempt connected transactions as set out
in this report, none of the Directors and Supervisors or their connected entities (within the meaning under section 486 of the
Company Ordinance) still had or has had any material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any material transactions,
arrangements or contracts relating to the business of the Group, to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party, and
which was subsisting on the balance sheet date of the year or at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2019, none of the Directors, Supervisors and chief executive of the Company had any interests or short position
in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange pursuant to the requirements in the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Companies (the “Model Code") as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

During the Reporting Period, the Company had not entered into nor was there any contract relating to the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Subject to the applicable laws and the coverage of the director liability insurance the Company placed for the Directors, every
Director shall be entitled to be indemnified against all costs, charges, losses, expenses and liabilities incurred by him or her in the
execution and discharge of his or her duties or in relation thereto. Such provisions were in force during the course of the year
ended 31 December 2019 and remained in force as of the date of this report.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had a total of 3,913 employees (31 December 2018: 3,879 employees), of which are 1,931
employees of the Company (31 December 2018: 1,957 employees). Besides, the Company had a total of 106 dispatch staff (31
December 2018: 130). Remunerations of the employees of the Company are determined with reference to the prevailing market
level as well as the performance, qualification and experience of individual employee. Discretionary bonuses based on individual
performance will be paid to the employees as a recognition of and a reward for their contributions to the Company. Other
employee welfares include contributions by the Company to the endowment insurance, medical insurance, unemployment
insurance, work injury insurance, maternity insurance and housing fund.

EMOLUMENTS OF SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The emoluments before tax paid to the senior management of the Company whose names are listed in this report are set out by
band as follows:

RMB0-500,000 A E#& 0-500,000 7T
RMB500,001-1,000,000 A R ¥ 500,001-1,000,000 7T
RMB1,000,001-1,500,00 A ¥ 1,000,001-1,500,000 7T
RMB1,500,001-2,000,000 A ¥ 1,500,001-2,000,000 7T
RMB2,000,001-2,500,000 A ¥ 2,000,001-2,500,000 7T

STAFF RETIREMENT SCHEME

Details of staff retirement scheme of the Group are set out in Note 33 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.



A EMNEEREHARAA o ZFJUEER @

Report of the Board of Directors (Cont’d)
% a Rl (4)

Y Y 1YY 9 R SC

HERZERNRBETREARRAEERFANESEERBEERN  ARAREFAREREEERNTR
BITRERSI BB EENMERAN - RE  1BK BRARES - MFEXREBEE_ZT-NFT-A
Tt HUEFEHEAR  YRAREBRATERTBR -

& B K 7 LR
RZZBE-NF+_A=+—0 ' AEEHEE393%EBE(ZE—N\F+_A=+—H:3879%EE) &
RANBREINIGEE(CE—N\F+_A=+—"H :1957REE) ' I KRB BAREE L1065 (=
E-N\FF+ZA=1+—"H:1308) - ARRMEEZHLLBMBKEREBAREEZRR - EFEMLRHM
ET NeERFREAARRERBERS  URBEEHAQENZER  EMEERABEREER
B - BERE - KERER - TERE - £ EREBREEAES -

T AR BN B B
FINARETNARARREEABRAFMEZERE DB RMT

2019 2018

number of number of

senior management senior management

AE A

- ] = 0 |
— | N o

ARG R
AEBERASEIFEHN A HRBHRRMES -



TONG REN TANG TECHNOLOGIES CO. LTD. e ANNUAL REPORT 2019

Report of the Board of Directors (Cont’d)
%l (4)

STAFF QUARTERS

For the year ended 31 December 2019:
1. the Company did not provide quarters to any of its staff (2018: nil);

2. the Company made annual contributions to the housing fund based on certain percentages of the salaries for employees in
compliance with relevant regulations; and

3. the Company provided housing allowance to its staff at an average of RMB80 per person per month (2018: RMB80 per
person per month) in compliance with relevant regulations.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

The accompanying financial statements of this report were audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers. The Company did not change its
independent auditors in any of the past three years. The Audit Committee was satisfied with the work of the independent auditors,
their independence and objectivity. PricewaterhouseCoopers and PricewaterhouseCoopers Zhong Tian LLP were proposed by the
Board to be respectively reappointed as the overseas auditor and domestic auditor of the Company for the year of 2020 which is
subject to approval at the 2019 AGM.

By the Order of the Board
Tong Ren Tang Technologies Co. Ltd.
Gu Hai Ou
Chairman

Beijing, the PRC
30 March 2020
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To the shareholders:

The supervisory committee of Tong Ren Tang Technologies (the “Supervisory Committee”’) has executed its duties and powers
earnestly, safeguarded the rights and interests of the shareholders as well as the interests of the Company, complied with the
principle of good faith, took the initiative in carrying out its work in a reasonable, cautious and diligent manner pursuant to the
provisions of the Company Law of the PRC, relevant laws and regulations of Hong Kong and the Articles of Association.

During the year, the Supervisory Committee reviewed cautiously the operation and development plans of the Company and put
forward reasonable suggestions and opinions to the Board. It also strictly and effectively monitored and supervised the significant
policies and specific decisions made by the management of the Company to ensure that they were in compliance with the laws
and regulations of the PRC and the Articles of Association, and in the interests of the Company’s shareholders.

The Supervisory Committee have reviewed earnestly and approved the report of the Board, audited financial statements and the
dividend payment proposal to be presented by the Board at the forthcoming 2019 AGM. We are of the opinion that the Directors,
general manager and other senior management of the Company have strictly complied with the principle of good faith, and have
worked diligently, exercised their authority faithfully in the best interests of the Company, and executed various tasks pursuant to
the Articles of Association so that the Company is operated within the regulatory framework, and the internal control regime is
increasingly improving. The transactions between the Company and associated companies were executed on terms in the
interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole and at fair and reasonable prices. Up till now, none of the Directors,
general manager or senior management of the Company has been found to have abused their authority, damaged the interests of
the Company or infringed upon the interests of the shareholders and employees of the Company, or to have been in breach of
any laws or regulations or the Articles of Association.

The Supervisory Committee is satisfied with the various tasks carried out by the Company in 2019 and the economic benefits
generated therefrom. It has full confidence in the future development outlook of the Company.

By Order of the Supervisory
Committee
Tong Ren Tang Technologies Co. Ltd.
Su Li
Chairman

Beijing, the PRC
30 March 2020
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The Board believes that a good and steady framework of corporate governance is extremely important for the development of the
Company. The Company has adopted the principles and standards contained in the Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”) as
set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules as the Company's standards, and combined them with its own experience, aiming to
establish a good corporate governance structure.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Company's business and operation are led and authorized to be managed by the Board. Several powers shall be entrusted by
the Board to the management, so that the management can formulate and implement the Company’s scheme and operational
planning, as well as conducting the Company’s daily operation. The Board tries its best to monitor the performance of the
management, while it is the management’s responsibility to conduct the daily operation of the Company.

The Board has established four special committees, namely the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the Nomination
Committee and the Strategy and Planning Committee, to supervise the specific affairs of the Company. According to the
requirements of the Listing Rules and other related laws, the Board and the special committees shall discharge their respective
duties in accordance with the well-established written terms of reference.

The Board convenes meetings regularly and when significant decision has to be made. The Board convened seven meetings in
2019 to discuss and decide development strategies, major operational matters, financial matters and other matters of the
Company as stipulated under the Articles of Association. Unless specifically noted, all of the Directors have attended the Board
meetings, committee meetings, general meetings, and conferences between the Chairman and independent non-executive
Directors during their tenures of office in the year of 2019. The attendance of Directors to the relevant meetings is set out as below:

Directors

=

Executive Directors Hl{TE S5

Gu Hai Ou (Chairman) B2 /888 (EEK)

Gao Zhen Kun (Original Chairman) & k18 (R EE R )
Huang Ning B2

Wu Le Jun RELE

Wu Qian 215

Wang Yu Wei T/81&

Fang Jia Zhi BR &

Independent non-executive Directors B EHTESE
Ting Leung Huel, Stephen T R 18

Chan Ching Har FR/B &

Zhan Yuan Jing &R £

Note 1: Al of the Directors attended in person rather than by proxy during the term of office.
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Composition of the Board of Directors

The Directors are elected at the general meetings for a term of office of three years, and can be re-elected when the term expires.
The seventh session of the Board was elected at the 2017 AGM and the 2018 AGM with the term of office ending upon the
conclusion date of the AGM to be convened in 2021. The Board has formulated the Board Diversity Policy. All appointments of the
members of the Board are made on merit, in the context of the talents, skills and experience the Board as a whole requires to be
effective. Every member with his/her own strengths are able to coordinate with each other and help strengthen the effectiveness
of the Board.

Details about the resume of the Directors are set out on pages 98 to 101 of this report.

The independent non-executive Directors are independent from the management with solid experience in business or finance.
They make recommendations to the Board and management on the strategic development of the Company, and provide
balancing mechanism to protect the interests of shareholders and the Company as a whole.

All of the one independent non-executive Director has been serving for more than nine years. In a circular dispatched to the
shareholders on 25 April 2018 regarding the re-election of the independent non-executive Director, the Company has confirmed
the independence of the one person and set out the reason for his re-election pursuant to the provision of the Listing Rules. He
was re-elected as the independent non-executive Director at the 2017 AGM by a separate resolution. Please refer to the circular of
the Company dated 25 April 2018 and the announcement of the Company dated 12 June 2018 for details.

According to the requirements of the Listing Rules, the Company has received a written confirmation of the independence from
each of such independent non-executive Directors for the year of 2019. The Company considers that all independent non-
executive Directors are independent from the Company.

During the Reporting Period, the Board had complied with the minimum requirement of the Listing Rules in relation to the
appointment of at least three independent non-executive Directors and the number of independent non-executive Directors
being at least one-third of the members of the Board of Directors, as well as the requirement of having one independent non-
executive Director with appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise.

As is known to the Company, the Directors, Supervisors and senior management of the Company do not have any relationship
among themselves in financial, business, family or other material aspects other than working relationship in the Company.
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Board Diversity

The Company recognizes and embraces the benefits of having a diverse Board, and sees diversity at the Board level as an essential
element in maintaining a competitive advantage. Since 2013, the Company has been complying with the Board Diversity Policy.

A truly diverse Board will include and make good use of differences in the skills, regional and industry experience, background,
gender and other qualities of the members of the Board. In determining the optimum and balanced composition of the Board, the
Company will consider the above factors. All appointments are made on merit, in the content of the talents, skills and experience
the Board as a whole requires to be effective.

The Nomination Committee of the Company reviews and assesses the composition of the Board and makes recommendations to
the Board on appointment of new Directors. In reviewing and assessing the composition of the Board, the Nomination Committee
will consider the benefits of all aspects of diversity (including but not limited to the aforementioned) in order to maintain an

appropriate range and balance of talents, skills, experience and background on the Board.

Responsibilities of the Board and the Management

According to the requirements of the Articles of Association, the Board is responsible to the general meeting and exercises the
following powers:

to convene general meetings and report its work to the general meeting;

. to implement the resolutions of general meetings;

. to determine the Company'’s business plans and investment plans;
to formulate the Company’s plans on annual financial budgets and final accounts;

. to formulate the Company’s profit distribution plans and plans on making up losses;

. to formulate the plans for increase or decrease of the registered capital of the Company and issue of corporate bonds;
to formulate plans for merger, division and dissolution of the Company;

. to determine the establishment of the Company’s internal management structure;

. to appoint or remove the manager of the Company and to appoint or remove the deputy manager and chief financial
officer of the Company based on the nomination by the manager and to determine their remunerations;

. to formulate the basic management system of the Company;
. to formulate proposals for amendment to the Articles of Association; and

. to determine the establishment of specific committees and to appoint and remove the relevant persons in charge.
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Pursuant to the provisions of the Code, the Board exercises the following powers in respect of corporate governance:
. to formulate and review the principles and policies of the Company’s corporate governance;

. to review and monitor the implementation of corporate governance policies by the Company as a whole and to ensure
compliance with statutory and regulatory requirements;

. to review the Company’s compliance with the Code and other rules applicable;

. to approve the Company’s annual corporate governance report and its publication on the websites of the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange and the Company;

to formulate, review and monitor the shareholder communication policy to ensure its effectiveness;
. to review and monitor the training and continuous professional development of the Directors and senior management; and
. to handle other corporate governance issues that the Board shall be responsible for.

According to the requirements of the Articles of Association, the management is the executives of the Company, shall be
accountable to the Board and exercises the following powers:

. to lead the Company’s production, operation and management, and to organize the implementation of the Board’s
resolutions;

to organize the implementation of the Company’s annual business plans and investment plans;
. to draft plans for the establishment of the Company’s internal management structure;
. to draft the Company’s basic management system;
. to formulate the basic rules and regulations of the Company;
. to propose the appointment or dismissal of the Company’s deputy manager(s) and chief financial officer;
. to appoint or dismiss management personnel other than those required to be appointed or dismissed by the Board; and

. to exercise other powers conferred under the Articles of Association and by the Board.
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Chairman of the Board and General Manager

Mr. Gu Hai Ou is the Chairman of the Board and Mr. Wang Yu Wei is the general manager of the Company. The Chairman of the
Board and the general manager of the Company are two clearly defined positions. The Chairman of the Board is responsible for
the operation of the Board while the general manager is in charge of day-to-day operational management. The Board formulated
and approved the Terms of Reference of Chairman and General Manager, which sets out their respective duties and powers in
written form.

Continuous Professional Development of Directors

The Directors should participate in continuous professional development to develop and update their knowledge and skills in
order to ensure that they continue making contributions to the Board in an informed and appropriate manner. The Company is
responsible for arranging appropriate training and providing relevant funding with appropriate emphasis on the roles, functions
and duties of a director of the Company. During the Reporting Period, all Directors were arranged to learn about the ongoing
obligations of the Directors, laws and regulations, ESG regulations, corporate governance and other requirements, and gained a
deeper understanding of supervision and standardized operations of listed companies. The Company also published appointment
rules and memorandum of duties to all new Directors so as to ensure continuous compliance in their performance of duties. In
addition, the Directors also participated in relevant training or studied reading materials according to their actual needs for
performance of duties. These materials included information in respect of Communist Party construction, safe production and risk
prevention, etc.,, which effectively facilitated the improvement of duty performance.

Directors’ Training

ESEIER

Directors

E=

Executive Directors ${TEE

Gu Hai Ou (Chairman) BB/8 8 (FEE LK)

Gao Zhen Kun (Original Chairman) =ik i8 (R EFK)
Huang Ning &= 2

Wu Le Jun RE4E

Wu Qian =&

Wang Yu Wei T8 1&

Fang Jia Zhi BR &

Independent non-executive Directors & JE HTEE
Ting Leung Huel, Stephen T B #&

Chan Ching Har FR/5 &2

Zhan Yuan Jing B R 3%
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FINANCIAL REPORTING

The management provides members of the Board with updated information on a monthly basis, setting out relevant accounts
data and financial position of the Company. This is to ensure Directors have sufficient information and knowledge about the
Company's affairs to effectively fulfill their responsibilities and obligations.

The Directors acknowledged their responsibility for preparation of financial statements which shall give a true and fair view of the
Company's financial situation, business performance and cash flows for the year. In preparing the financial statements for the year,
the Directors have:

1. approved the adoption of the International Financial Reporting Standards;
2. selected and applied appropriate accounting policies;

3. made reasonable judgments and estimates; and

4. prepared the financial statements on a going concern basis.

The Board recognizes the importance of good corporate governance, transparency and its accountability to shareholders, and it
has presented a balanced, clear and understandable assessment in the annual and interim reports and other financial disclosures
of the Company as required under the Listing Rules, and reports to regulators as well as information required to be disclosed
pursuant to statutory requirements.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for evaluating and determining the nature and extent of the risks the Group is able to take in achieving its
strategic goals, so as to ensure that the Group establishes and maintains reasonable and effective risk management and internal
control systems, and oversees management in the design, implementation and monitoring of the risk management and internal
control systems, and is also responsible for reviewing the effectiveness of the systems. Such systems are designed to manage
rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss. Meanwhile, the terms of reference of the Audit Committee cover its duties in respect of risk
management, including supervision of relevant risk management system to ensure that the system conforms to the strategies and
risk tolerance of the Group.

The Group has established its risk management and internal control system and issued relevant reports with reference to
regulations and requirements including the Code of Corporate Governance, Corporate Risk Management Framework, Basic Rules
for Enterprise Internal Control, the Guidelines for Corporate Internal Control Assessment, and the Supplementary Guidelines for
Corporate Internal Control.
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The Group has internal audit functions. A dedicated internal audit department will independently review the operation of each
department of the Group on a regular basis to identify violation and risk, if any, and propose suggestions therefore to cope with
the identified risks. The internal audit department organize comprehensive risk identification and streamline countermeasures
within the scope of the Group, updates the Group’'s risk list and countermeasures on a semiannual basis, evaluates the overall
effectiveness of risk management of the Group, suggests solutions accordingly (if necessary) and explains the critical findings and
internal audit process and results to the Audit Committee with an independent report.

The Group adopts a three-level risk management and monitoring model comprising risk management, risk supervision and
independent review, in order to identify, assess and manage material risks with the following procedures including formulation
and implementation of strategy; risk identification, assessment and response; risk monitoring report and early warning; risk
treatment; and supervision and evaluation of risk management. In case of material risk or serious internal monitoring omission,
relevant units shall immediately report to the internal audit department and members of corporate management, who shall
promptly hold a meeting to discuss treatment methods and finally approve the solutions for material risk or serious internal
monitoring omission.

The Group has formulated a series of risk management and internal monitoring systems and relevant supporting operation
guidelines. For instance, the Company has promulgated the Risk Management System, which institutionalized the operation of risk
management system, and regulated and standardized the risk management. The Internal Audit System has been also in place to
standardize internal audit work, improve internal control monitoring system, strengthen the mechanism for preventing risks in
economic operations and foster the healthy and sustainable development of the Group. The Management System on Internal
Supervision Information Feedback has been established to enhance internal control, effectively prevent risks of operation
management, encourage employees to actively involve in corporate management and timely carry out supervision, file complaints
and provide feedback on the defect or violation in internal operation. The Company enacted the Information Disclosure
Management System to regulate the disclosure procedure of inside information and other types of information. With the aforesaid
monitoring systems and guidelines, the Group has established a standard and effective risk management and internal monitoring
systems so as to safeguard the assets of the Group and interests of shareholders.

MAJOR RISKS AND RESPONSE MEASURES

In 2019, the material risks listed by the Group included policy risk, operational risk and financial risk. For the identified material risks,
the Group has taken proactive measures to cope with various risks.

For the contingent risks from the emergencies in relation to “Tong Ren Tang” brand, the Group established a good brand
protection emergency mechanism, in which the brand management department will cooperate with all relevant departments in
collecting information about the emergencies in relation to the “Tong Ren Tang” brand in a timely manner and set up
countermeasures.
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For the risks caused by the large inventory amount, the Group has timely grasped the quantity and costs of various raw material
inventories to reasonably arrange the use of funds to prevent tie-up of funds arising from the purchase of raw materials to the
extent possible; comprehensively reviewed overall inventory commodity structure, made rational plan for inventory levels, and
improved the scientific and refined management of warehouse with the use of information technology; strengthened the
communication and coordination between sales department and production department, and timely formulated plans for
problems in production and supply to facilitate positive product development, so as to ensure supply while reducing the tie-up of
funds through tighter connection between production supply and sales.

For the risks of increase in amount of trade receivables, the Group continued to strengthen customer qualification assessment and
credit management, and exerted more efforts to strengthen the management of payment collection from distributors. Meanwhile,
the Group stipulated regulation on sales policy, distributor management, contract and agreement management, delivery and
return management, etc. from the system level, and constantly stepped up its management on accounts receivable.

For the increase in investment cost arising from safe production management and uncertainty risks due to potential safety hazards
and safety accidents, the Group continued to strengthen safety training to enhance safety awareness of all employees, stepped up
efforts in elimination of potential hazards and supervision, ensured explicit division of labor and improved the effectiveness of
potential hazards management; purchased liability insurance of safe production, so as to ensure both prevention and post-
handling.

For the risks such as reduction in harvest of production materials, decline in quality of raw materials and market price fluctuations
brought about by significant climate change or extreme disastrous weather, the Group has strengthened identification,
assessment and supervision of impacts and risks of significant climate change on different businesses. Meanwhile, the Group pays
close attention changes in market conditions and related industrial policies, and has built closer connection between procurement
and production and sales, and maintained a reasonable inventory structure and appropriate strategic reserves to ensure maximum
supply of required materials and avoid the risk of continual increases in prices brought about by an imbalance between supply
and demand.

The Board has reviewed the risk management and internal control system for the period from 1 January 2019 to 31 December
2019 at the Board meeting held on 30 March 2020. The chief auditor, special internal audit department and Audit Committee have
reviewed the effectiveness of internal control systems of the Company and its subsidiaries covering financial, operational,
compliance and risk management procedures.

In addition, the review of the Directors also took into account the adequacy of resources, staff qualification and experience, and
training programs and the relevant budgets of the Group’s accounting and financial reporting function. For the year end of 31
December 2019, the Board is satisfied that the risk management and internal control system of the Group are working effectively,
adequate and implemented on an ongoing basis. The Group will continue to improve the internal control system and strengthen
the risk management function as necessary, so as to continuously optimize the risk management and internal control system.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has set up an Audit Committee with specific written terms of reference and duties pursuant to the relevant
requirements of the Listing Rules and “A Guide For The Formation of An Audit Committee” complied by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Its primary duties are to review and monitor the completeness and effectiveness of the Company's
financial information, risk management and internal control system, and review the Company’s annual and interim results and
other related documents.

The Audit Committee comprises the independent non-executive Directors, being Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Ms. Chan Ching Har, Eliza
and Mr. Zhan Yuan Jing, of which Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen, the Chairman of the committee, possesses appropriate
professional qualification and financial experience, which is fully complied with the requirements under Rule 3.21 of the Listing
Rules.

During the year of 2019, the Audit Committee convened two meetings. The first meeting was held on 18 March 2019 to review
and discuss the operating results, financial position and major accounting policies contained in the audited financial statements of
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018 as well as matters in relation to risk management, legal compliance and internal
audit, and to listen to the result of audit reported by the auditors. The Audit Committee concluded the meeting with agreement to
the contents of the 2018 annual report. The second meeting was held on 20 August 2019 to review and discuss the operating
results, financial position and major accounting policies contained in the unaudited financial statements of the Group for the six
months ended 30 June 2019 as well as matters in relation to risk management, legal compliance and internal audit. The Audit
Committee concluded the meeting with agreement to the contents of the 2019 interim report.

In addition, the Audit Committee reviewed the effectiveness of the Company’s financial control, internal control and risk
management; made recommendation to the Board on matters relating to the reappointment of the auditors; and held separate
meetings with the auditors to discuss matters relating to its audit fees and other issues arising from the audit.

At the meeting held on 20 March 2020, the Audit Committee reviewed and discussed the operating results, financial position and
major accounting policies contained in the audited financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019, as
well as matters in relation to risk management, legal compliance and internal audit, and reviewed the effectiveness of risk
management and internal control systems as well as internal audit, and to listened to the results of audit reported by the auditors.
The Audit Committee concurred in the contents of the 2019 annual result and annual report.



A EMNEEREHARAA o ZFJUEER

Corporate Governance Report (Cont’d)
B R (4)

wEREAE

ARRERBEETRANBEERERTESTMASRR L [KUBZZE K KIEZEZES  UE
EIREBEMEE  EXZREAFMALERARB 2HBER - RREERABEERL 2 T
AR BEAARRZFEMRREEEXN -

EVZBERMBYFNTES] RELLE WEBRIRERBGLEMEAR  EFRESXIR] RER
FEBAENERERMIMBER T8 EMRFE 321 HRNELK -

i3S

RIZ-NFA BRZEQEET TRMAER R-E-NF=ZAT/\BETNEXZEGE XS
ZLBRANIHAERRE T /\F+ - A=1+—"HIFEZEERMNBEREROLERE MBI -

EREHBOR  MABRRER AAARNAMETFH  LRDFAMHARAFAERZEL - &
REREERE T \FFHNRNT R _T-NAFN\A-_THETHNELZESFE _REHRLEHR
ARAREEE_T-NFRNAZTHLERNEAZARECYBREROELXELRMBEIOR - TEEF

BERMABRRER /ZARNARETFEH ELZEERE_T-NFHHRENAR -

BN - BEREE SR T ARRNMIEEE ANEENEARERNERE  HERETMNEEERER
EFeRfEE  ARERHMER SR  TwREEXERAENSENLREMERGT TIFEREMNEE

R-F_EF-_A - +THBETNEZZREESR LBHANIR T ARBEEE_T-NF+-_A=1+—H
IR 2 REZWERROLLEENVGRN  TBGHBER - RABRRERE - A28 R MARET
£18 - B - 2E T EREERAFEZERGAR AT ERDEN AR - WERREAMS AR RETE
RZEBR - BRZEGRAE_ZT-NEFFEXENFHRORNT -



TONG REN TANG TECHNOLOGIES CO. LTD. e ANNUAL REPORT 2019

Corporate Governance Report (Cont’d)
B RS ()

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established the Remuneration Committee according to the relevant provisions of the Listing Rules with specific
written terms of reference and duties. Its primary duties are to make proposals to the Board with respect to the overall
remuneration policy and framework for Directors, Supervisors and senior management of the Company and the establishment of
formal and transparent procedures for formulating the remuneration policy.

The Remuneration Committee is chaired by Mr. Zhan Yuan Jing, an independent non-executive Director and the members
comprise an executive Director, Mr. Gu Hai Ou, and an independent non-executive Director, Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen, which
is in compliance with the requirement of the Listing Rules that independent non-executive directors shall form the majority of the
remuneration committee.

According to Rule B.1.2 of the Code, the Remuneration Committee of the Company makes proposals to the Board with respect to
the remuneration packages for individual executive Directors and senior management, including non-monetary benefits, pension
rights and compensation (including the compensation for the loss or termination of office or appointment). The exact amount
shall be determined by the Board according to the general meeting's authorisation.

During the year of 2019, two meetings have been held by the Remuneration Committee. At the meeting held on 18 March 2019,
the Remuneration Committee reviewed and discussed the matters including the Directors’, Supervisors’ and senior management’s
emoluments for the year ended 31 December 2018 as well as the Directors’ and Supervisors' relevant service contracts. At the
meeting held on 11 June 2019, the Remuneration Committee discussed matters including the remuneration and related services
contracts of newly appointed Directors, and made recommendations to the Board.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established the Nomination Committee with specific written terms of reference and duties according to the
relevant provisions of the Listing Rules. Its primary duties include (among others):

reviewing the framework, size and composition including skills and professional knowledge of the Board on a regular basis
and making proposals to the Board in respect of any proposed change;

ii. reviewing the Board diversity policy regularly, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background
as well as professional experience, and reviewing any measurable objectives that it has set for implementing the Board
diversity policy and progress on achieving those objectives; and

ii.  identifying individuals suitably qualified to become Board members and selecting or making recommendations to the Board
on the selection of individuals nominated for directorships.
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The Nomination Committee is chaired by Mr. Gu Hai Ou, the executive Director and the Chairman of the Board and the members
comprise two independent non-executive Directors, namely Ms. Chan Ching Har, Eliza and Mr. Zhan Yuan Jing, which is in
compliance with the requirement of the Listing Rules that independent non-executive directors should form the majority of the
Nomination Committee.

Factors set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules shall be considered by the Nomination Committee while assessing the
independence of the independent non-executive Directors.

During the year of 2019, one meeting was held by the Nomination Committee. At the meeting held on 18 March 2019, the
Nomination Committee reviewed and discussed the structure, size and composition of the Board. The Nomination Committee
nominate candidates for Directors to the Board. The Committee nominated Mr. Gu Hai Ou as an executive Director of the
Company to the Board for it to consider and make recommendation for election as an executive Director of the Company at the
general meeting.

The Nomination Committee recommends candidates for nomination to the Board, which approves the final choice of candidates,
and the Board submits to the general meeting of shareholders for approval. The Board has adopted written policy for the
nomination of new directors. In evaluating and selecting candidates for directorship, the criteria to be taken into account when
considering the suitability of a candidate shall be his or her ability to devote sufficient time and attention to the affairs of the
Company and contribute to the diversity of the Board as well as the effective carrying out by the Board of the responsibilities.

In addition, the Nomination Committee assessed the independence of the independent non-executive Directors; and reviewed
the adequacy of time devoted by Directors in performing their duties.

The Nomination Committee also attaches importance to the diversity of Board composition, which is believed to be beneficial for
the Board as well as the Company. The Company established a policy in respect of the diversity of the Board Composition. In
reviewing and evaluating the Board composition and making recommendations to the Board on appointment of new Directors,
the Nomination Committee shall take account of the benefits of diversity in various aspects as well as the factors including
integrity of relevant persons, their accomplishments and the time they can devote to the Company, in order to maintain an
appropriate scope and the balance between expertise, skills, experience and background of the Board members. The Nomination
Committee will make discussion to agree upon all the measurable targets to realize the diversity of Board composition each year,
including but not limited to genders, ages, culture and educational backgrounds and professional experiences, and propose
relevant targets to the Board for adoption.
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STRATEGY AND PLANNING COMMITTEE

The Company has set up a Strategy and Planning Committee, with specific written terms of reference and duties. Its primary duties
are to conduct research and evaluation on the performance of the strategic planning of the Group’s mid-and-long-term
development, investment and financing plans, comprehensive budget management, brand protection, legal construction and
product safety, and to make recommendations to the Board.

The Strategy and Planning Committee is chaired by Mr. Gu Hai Ou, the executive Director and the Chairman of the Board, and the
members comprise one executive Director, namely Mr. Wang Yu Wei, and three independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr.
Ting Leung Huel, Stephen, Ms. Chan Ching Har, Eliza and Mr. Zhan Yuan Jing.

During the year of 2019, the Strategy and Planning Committee had not convened any meeting.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company had always strictly complied with the code provisions contained in the Code.

During the year of 2019, the Board reviewed the Company’s compliance with the Code and other related rules, formulated and
revised the rules in respect of the corporate governance, and approved the Company’s annual corporate governance report and
its publication on the websites of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and the Company.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ DEALINGS IN SECURITIES

The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct formulated on the basis of the Model Code regarding securities transactions by the
Directors and Supervisors on terms no less exacting than the required standards contained in the Model Code. Having made
specific enquiry to all the Directors and Supervisors, all of them confirmed that they had strictly complied with the required
standards set out in the Model Code and the Code of Conduct of the Company in the year ended 31 December 2019.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

PricewaterhouseCoopers and PricewaterhouseCoopers Zhong Tian LLP were the overseas auditor and domestic auditor of the
Company respectively for the year ended 31 December 2019. Other than annual auditing services, they also provided non-audit
services for the Company and other members of the Group.

The independent auditors' remuneration in respect of its audit and non-audit services for the year ended 31 December 2019 is set
out in Note27 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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SHAREHOLDER'’S RIGHTS AND INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Board and senior management recognize that they represent the interests of all shareholders and that they need to enhance
the value of the Company in full force. The major rights enjoyed by shareholders and how to enforce them are highlighted in the
chapters of “Shareholders’ Rights and Obligations” and “Shareholders’ General Meetings” of the Articles of Association.

The Company attaches great importance to the communication with the shareholders and investors. The Company uses a number
of channels to account for the performance and operations of the Company to shareholders, particularly our periodical reports
such as annual and interim reports. In addition to delivering circulars, announcements and financial reports to our shareholders,
the Company also publishes its corporate information on its website (http://www.tongrentangkj.com) by electronic means. The
general meeting provides a good opportunity for the communication between the Board and Company’s shareholders. The
Company regards the general meeting as an important event and all Directors, Supervisors, senior management and the Chairmen
of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee should make an effort to attend and
answer questions raised by the shareholders. The Company made great efforts to hold conferences and/or conference calls, as
well as arranged field trips for investors. In the meantime, the Company organized non-trading road shows at least twice a year
after releasing the results announcement to answer questions about the results and business development of the Group.

The Company encourages the shareholders to involve in the Company's affairs and to discuss the business and prospects of the
Company directly at the AGMs or extraordinary general meetings.

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, two or more shareholders together holding 10% or more of the shares conferring the right
to vote at extraordinary general meeting can sign and submit one or more written requests in the same format and content to the
Board to request the convening of an extraordinary general meeting, with the issues to be discussed clearly stated. The Board shall
convene an extraordinary general meeting as soon as possible upon receiving such written request(s). If the Board fails to issue a
convening notice within 30 days after the receipt of such written request(s), the shareholders making the request may convene an
extraordinary general meeting on their own within four months after the Board's receipt of such request(s). The procedure for
convening the meeting shall be consistent with that for convening shareholder meetings by the Board to the greatest extent
possible.

At the AGM convened by the Company, shareholders holding 5% or more of the total voting shares shall have the right to make
new proposals to the Company in writing. The Company shall incorporate the issues raised in the proposal that fall within the
terms of reference of the general meeting into the meeting agenda.

Enquiries may be made to the Board either by contacting the Company Secretary through office and mailing address (No. 20
Nansanhuan Zhonglu, Fengtai District, Beijing, the PRC) or directly by raising questions at the AGMs or extraordinary general
meetings.
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Dividend Distribution Policy

The Company has formulated a dividend distribution policy, which aims at providing sustainable and stable dividends to the
shareholders of the Company, and sets out the principles and guidelines for the Board of the Company in determining dividends.

The Company may distribute semiannual or annual dividends to shareholders in such form as the Board deemed appropriate (e.g,
cash or stocks), and shall maintain the continuity and stability of the dividend distribution policy. At the same time, the following
factors of the Company should be taken into account:

(@)  operations and profits;

(b)  actual and expected financial position;

(c)  cash flow;

(d)  capital expenditure;

(e)  future development needs;

® any other conditions or factors that the Board may consider relevant.

Sticking to the principle of sustainable returns to the shareholders, the Company has been distributing cash dividends each year
since its listing. As at 31 December 2019, the Company has distributed cash dividends totaling over RMB2 billion. Set out below are

the net profits attributable to owners of the Company (as previously stated) and the total amount of cash dividends since the
Company’s listing.
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* The cash dividend for the year 2019 is subject to the shareholders’ approval at the 2019 AGM.
* —E-NFEREREMFE-NFERFEFAGHE -

ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION

During the Reporting Period, the Board of the Company, in accordance with relevant requirements and the actual situation of the
Company, amended the Articles of Association. The related amendments were reviewed and approved at the general meeting of
the Company held on 17 February 2020. For details, please refer to the announcement dated 4 November 2019 and the Articles of
Association of the Company dated 17 February 2020 on the websites of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and the Company.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Gu Hai Ou, aged 54, is a licensed pharmacist and a senior engineer with a master's degree in medical science. He was
formerly the director of the Company, the vice general manager, the chief engineer, the chairman and director of the Board of
Tong Ren Tang Led.. Mr. Gu Hai Ou is currently the vice general manager of Tong Ren Tang Holdings. Mr. Gu was appointed as a
Director at the 2018 AGM of the Company.

Mr. Huang Ning, aged €0, is a senior engineer with a bachelor’s degree. Mr. Huang formerly served as a deputy director of the
technology and quality department, a deputy director of quality and technology development department, a deputy director
(leading) of technology and quality department, and the deputy head of the department for management of drugstores in other
cities of Tong Ren Tang Ltd.,, a deputy head of the quality and technology development department and a deputy head (leading)
of the quality and technology department of Tong Ren Tang Holdings, a deputy manager of Beijing Tong Ren Tang Commercial
Company, and a deputy minister level position of the marketing and commodity price department, a deputy minister of the
market management department, the director of information center ,the deputy chief TCM pharmacist and the head of the
technology and quality department of Tong Ren Tang Holdings. Mr. Huang was appointed as a Director at the 2017 AGM of the
Company.

Mr. Wu Le Jun, aged 45, is a senior political worker with a master’s degree. Mr. Wu formerly served as the secretary of the Youth
League committee of Tong Ren Tang Ltd., the deputy secretary of the Party branch, deputy head and chairman of the labour
union of Tongzhou Branch of Tong Ren Tang Pharma of Tong Ren Tang Ltd., the deputy secretary of the general Party branch,
deputy head, chairman of the labour union of the North Branch of Tong Ren Tang Pharma of Tong Ren Tang Ltd., the deputy
director of the Party Committee office, deputy head of publicity department, secretary of the Youth League committee and deputy
head of the medical management department of Tong Ren Tang Holdings, the secretary of the general Party branch, deputy head
and chairman of labour union of the North Branch of Tong Ren Tang Pharma of Tong Ren Tang Ltd., head of Tongzhou Branch of
Tong Ren Tang Pharma of Tong Ren Tang Ltd., and head of the department of organisation, personnel and cadres of Tong Ren
Tang Holdings. Mr. Wu currently serves as the deputy Party secretary and chairman of the labour union of Beijing Tong Ren Tang
Commercial Investment Group Co., Ltd.. Mr. Wu was appointed as a Director at the 2017 AGM of the Company.

Ms. Wu Qian, aged 46, is a pharmacist-incharge and licensed pharmacist with a bachelor’s degree. Ms. Wu formerly served as a
deputy office director of Beijing Tong Ren Tang Medicinal Materials Co,, Ltd., a deputy director of the general office of the Party
Committee and a deputy head of the publicity department, a deputy director of the office of labour union of Tong Ren Tang
Holdings, the office director, deputy secretary of the general Party Branch at the head office, the secretary of the general Party
Branch at the head office of Tong Ren Tang Ltd,, the director of the general office of Tong Ren Tang Holdings. Ms. Wu currently
serves as the Dean of Beijing Tong Ren Tang Institute of Education (1t R[R{=2 (& £F%), the Party Branch secretary and
the Party Committee secretary of China Beijing Tong Ren Tang (Group) Company of the Communist Party of China (-
HEZPBEILRR{CE (£B) A F]). Ms. Wu was appointed as a Director at the 2017 AGM of the Company.

Mr. Wang Yu Wei, aged 53, is a senior engineer with a postgraduate qualification. He formerly served as the deputy officer of the
new technology development center and the deputy factory manager of Factory 2 of Beijing Tong Ren Tang Pharma, the assistant
to the general manager and the deputy general manager of the Company. He is currently the general manager of the Company,
the director of Tong Ren Tang Technologies Tangshan, Tong Ren Tang Tangshan Healthcare and Chinese Medicine Group. He is
also a member of the 14th, 15th and 16th NPC of Fengtai District, Beijing. Mr. Wang was appointed as a Director at the 2008 AGM
of the Company.

Ms. Fang Jia Zhi, aged 53, is a senior auditor with a university qualification. She formerly served as the deputy head and head of
audit department of Tong Ren Tang Holdings, the deputy chief accountant of the Company. She is currently the chief accountant
of the Company, the director of Tong Ren Tang Yanbian, Tong Ren Tang Hebei, Tong Ren Tang Xing An Healthcare, Tong Ren Tang
Technologies Tangshan and Tong Ren Tang Liaoning. Ms. Fang was appointed as a Director at the 2008 AGM of the Company.



A EMNEEREHARAA o ZFJUEER %

Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management (Cont’d)

HFHEFARHREHEANR (H)

HiTEH
BOSBSEL 5458 BRERL  HXEEN SHTEM - EARAES  RCERHBILEE BT
Wi BER EF - RASEQARLLEE - BAER -2 /\FERFAEFAG LEZERES -

BERLE 605  AMEE - SRR - BERCERDRMEEMEEE - ERFEREEE - &l
EEMATE(ER) IMBREEEERNE AICEEEERRAERARR HERMEARRE(E
) ARFACEBRAFRLE - BCEEETSYERRBRE  mHEERLIHE - EE8HOTE -
Bl EERD - RMIREENHR - EAERA AR E—+FERRBFAG L BLZERES -

RUEEL 45 PHADE - BRELH - RERCEREEZERE - FCERO R ERERBN
SPERXBAERL  ABE  TEER - ACEROACELFMLSBREXIEL BBE T8
- REARRENATAEE SEBAPE BEER BATESANE  RCERERCZE
Bt BRSXERD  BFE  TRER  ACERERCERARBN S BEE - SELDABAES
BHHE - AELTACEHERARBERANRZAER  TRER - REENARA-F—LEE
BREEFAR LEZEHES -

REELL - 4657 ARBE - TEEA - PXRER - BELXRFACEENERETRARRLERNEL - F
CEEEERZGEAMATITAREEHIEE  TRAFETE  RACEBROPRAETE  NBREE
XEERL  AHELEXERL  SEARAGENAZEIME RELRACEHFERRE  EXHETRT
BHERTPEIIRACE(RE)RARZESERERER - RXIRARR T tFERRBFAE
tEZERES -

FRERE S35 MRARE > SATREM - TELRFACERE _FHRMAZPOIEE - 8K
£ ARAEKLIERE - BIELRE - REARRRKLE  FAEEREEL  BCERURERMEEEE
B -WARLERMEEEFETHE  THERTAREARREK - EEERARR T N\FERRBEF
RELEZERESE -

BREZL 535 ABEE  SAFAM - BEEERQRFAABINE - & - ARFEESEAED - 3
EARAREGEE  RCEEE ACEAL  RCEERZRRE  RCERMEELRRCEEZREESR - B
HEMARR T \FERRBFAG L EZERES -



TONG REN TANG TECHNOLOGIES CO. LTD. e ANNUAL REPORT 2019

Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management (Cont’d)

#FHEEFARHREHEANE (H)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen, aged 66, MH, FCCA, FCPA (Practising), ACA, CTA (HK), FHKIoD. He is a non-executive director of
Chow Sang Sang Holdings International Limited and an independent non-executive director of other six listed companies namely
Tongda Group Holdings Limited, New Silkroad Culturaltainment Limited Company Limited, Computer and Technologies Holdings
Limited, Texhong Textile Group Limited, Dongyue Group Limited and China SCE Group Holdings Limited, respectively. Mr. Ting is
an accountant in public practice and a partner of Messrs. Ting Ho Kwan & Chan, Certified Public Accountants (Practising). Mr. Ting
has been appointed as an independent non-executive Director since 11 October 2000.

Ms. Chan Ching Har, Eliza, aged 63, JP, SBS, LL.D. (Hon), holds the qualifications of Barrister & Solicitor of British Columbia
Supreme Court, Canada, Solicitor of the Supreme Court of England and Wales and Solicitor of the High Court of Hong Kong.

Ms. Chan is a member of the National Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference (“CPPCC"), a standing
member of the CPPCC Tianjin Committee, Foreign Economic Affairs Legal Counsel to the Tianjin Municipal People’s Government,
an arbitrator of China International Economic and Trade and Arbitration Commission (CIETAC).

Ms. Chan previously served as a member of the Selection Committee for the selection of the First Chief Executive of Hong Kong
SAR, and member of the Election Committee for the selections of the Chief Executive of Hong Kong SAR and the Hong Kong SAR
delegates to the National People’s Congress. She was Chairman of Hong Kong CPPCC (Provincial) Members Association and now
serves as Honorary Chairman. She is Vice-president of Hong Kong Friendship Association and Honorary President of Hong Kong
China Chamber of Commerce.

She also served at a number of Hong Kong Government appointed positions, notably as a member of the Hong Kong Hospital
Authority, member of Hong Kong Public Service Commission, member of the Hong Kong Board of Education, member of Hong
Kong Examinations and Assessment Authority, Chairman of Public Complaints Committee, Chairman of Kowloon Hospital,
Chairman of Hong Kong Eye Hospital, Chairman of Tseung Kwan O Hospital, member of the governing committee of Queen
Elizabeth Hospital, member of the Medical Council of Hong Kong, Chairman of Pensions Appeal Panel, member of Administration
Appeals Board, adjudicator of Hong Kong Immigration Tribunal, member of Disciplinary Panel of Institute of Accountants, Council
member of The University of Science & Technology and Board member of Hong Kong Science and Technology Park Corporation.

She is Senior Consultant of Yang Chan & Jamison and Senior Advisor of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu. Ms. Chan currently serves as an
independent non-executive director of Cathay International Holdings Ltd, a non-executive director of Tianjin Development
Holdings Limited and Bank of Communications (HK) Limited Ms. Chan was appointed as a Director at the 2017 AGM of the
Company.

Mr. Zhan Yuan Jing, aged 76, is a senior engineer. Mr. Zhan previously served as the chairman, general manager, deputy Party
Committee of Tianjin Zhongxin Pharmaceutical Group Co., Ltd., vice president of China Association of Traditional Chinese
Medicine, vice president of Tianjin Medical Association, vice president of Tianjin Association of Traditional Chinese Medicine; and a
visiting professor of Tianjin University. From June 2009 to May 2015, Mr. Zhan served as an independent director of Tong Ren Tang
Ltd.. Mr. Zhan was appointed as a Director at the 2017 AGM of the Company.
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SUPERVISORS

Ms. Su Li, aged 39, chief supervisor, is an accountant with a bachelor’s degree. Ms. Su previously served as the finance supervisor
of Tong Ren Tang Holdings. She currently serves as the deputy head of financial management department of Tong Ren Tang
Holdings. Ms. Su was appointed as a Supervisor at the 2017 AGM of the Company.

Mr. Wu Yi Gang, aged 61, holding a bachelor degree of law, was admitted as a solicitor in 1984 and started practice in the same
year. Mr. Wu founded Wu Luan Zhao Yan Law Firm in Beijing in 1994 and has been the managing partner of the firm since then. He
served as one of the arbitrators of the first session of the Beijing Arbitration Commission in 1995. He currently serves as the deputy
director of Dedicated Working Committee for Reexamination of Disciplinary Actions Against Members of Beijing Lawyers
Association, and member of the First Council of Beijing Club of Non-Party Senior Intellectuals. He was appointed as a Supervisor at
the extraordinary general meeting of the Company on 22 October 2003.

Mr. Dong Ke Man, aged 43, is an auditor with a bachelor's degree. Mr. Dong previously served as the financial manager of
Zhongtie Jisheng Logistics Co., Ltd. and an externally assigned chief financial officer of China Automobile Trading Co., Ltd. He
currently serves as the deputy chief accountant and head of audit department of the Company, the supervisor of Tong Ren Tang
Tangshan Healthcare, Tong Ren Tang Second Traditional Chinese Medicine Hospital and Nansanhuan Zhonglu Drugstore. Mr.
Dong was elected as a Supervisor in 2018.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Yang De Chun, aged 57, is a Pharmacist-incharge with a postgraduate qualification. He formerly served as the assistant to the
factory manager and the deputy factory manager of Beijing Tong Ren Tang Pharma, the deputy factory manager in charge of
production and the deputy manager of southern branch factory, the deputy factory manager, the factory manager and the
secretary to the Party Committee of northern branch factory of Tong Ren Tang Ltd, the deputy secretary to the Party Committee,
the secretary to the Disciplinary Inspection Committee and the chairman of the labour committee of the Company. He is currently
the deputy general manager of the Company.

Mr. Zhang Feng, aged 55, with a university qualification, formerly served as the secretary to the Party Committee and the
manager of a logistics distribution center of the Company and the assistant to the general manager of the Company. He currently
serves as the deputy general manager of the Company.

Mr. Dong Ling Yun, aged 46, is an engineer with a university qualification. He formerly served as the secretary to the Party
Committee and the factory manager of Yi Zhuang branch factory of the Company and the assistant to the general manager of the
Company. He currently serves as the deputy general manager of the Company.

Ms. Wang Yue, aged 51, is a senior engineer with a university qualification. She formerly served as the head of the product quality
department of the Company, the secretary to the Party Committee and the factory manager of Liujiayao branch factory of the
Company and the assistant to the general manager of the Company. She currently serves as the deputy general manager of the
Company.

Ms. Zhang Jing Yan, aged 46, is a licensed pharmacist with a master degree in economics. She formerly served as a securities
representative of Tong Ren Tang Ltd.. She is currently the secretary to the Board and the Company secretary.
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To the Shareholders of Tong Ren Tang Technologies Co. Ltd.
(incorporated in the People’s Republic of China with limited liability)

OPINION
What we have audited
The consolidated financial statements of Tong Ren Tang Technologies Co. Ltd. (the "Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”)
set out on pages 112 to 240, which comprise:
the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2019;
the consolidated income statement for the year then ended;
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended;
the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;
the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and
the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include a summary of significant accounting policies.
Our opinion
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as
at 31 December 2019, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in

accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (‘IFRSs”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (“ISAs”). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of
our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F, Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong
T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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BASIS FOR OPINION (contD)

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including
International Independence Standards) issued by the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants (“IESBA Code”), and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated

financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial

statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter identified in our audit is related to realisability of inventories:

Key Audit Matter

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Realisability of Inventories

Refer to Note 2.14 “Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
— Inventories” and Note 4 “Critical Accounting Estimates and
Judgements” to the consolidated financial statements.

At 31 December 2019, the Group held inventories of
RMB2,321,784,000. Inventories are stated at the lower of cost
and net realisable value, and the latter is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business less estimated costs to
completion and those necessary to make the sale.

We focused on this area given the significance of inventories at
31 December 2019 and that management applies judgements
in determining the appropriate level of provisions for
inventories based on inspections and analyses of degree of
obsolescence on various categories and types of inventories,
pricing plans for different products, etc.

We obtained evidence over the appropriateness of
management’s assumptions in determining the net realisable
value of inventories by:

— evaluating and testing the Group's monitoring controls
on analysing slow-moving indicators of raw materials and
finished goods such as turnover ratios and aging
structures on monthly basis as well as comparing sales
budget with production plan,

—  checking the effectiveness of inventory controls operating
across the Group including inspection of materials and
products by quality officers as well as notification for
products near expiries with follow-up actions,

—  attending physical observations at production premises
and warehouses to identify any potential obsolescence
and damages on the Group's inventories,

— assessing the appropriateness and consistency of
management’s judgements and assumptions applied in
estimating the provisions, and

— comparing the net realisable values, to the carrying cost
of inventories to check for adequacy and calculation of
provisions.

Based on the above, we found that the assumptions and
judgements applied by management on their assessment of
the realisability of inventories were supported by the evidence
we obtained.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises all of the information
included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with IFRSs and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless

the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our
opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.



A ENEBEREBARAA o ZFJuFEER

Independent Auditor’s Report (Cont’d)
35 7 A B o (A

;H\:,ﬂﬁ 5] u\

BERRESAHEMERAS - HUESEREFHRANMARES  ETEERAMHMBHmRLRMANEH
Ah#R & o

II

B EHPBEREINBALTRERMES - HATTHZFEMESEREAEANERER

FABRMEEHMBERERNET  HANETRHEEMBER - FLiBRES - %J’Eﬁi\@%% TR EA K
BRRIBPERHERTA THEOBRFEEAEELEUNT FEEARHREANER o

g

B

ERBMAEATHLIE  MREFIRSEMEEFEERERRL  RAFTERSXFE - &
88 EAIHRE -

HE &

i N T B a O B R ZEURIE 19 BT

BERAEZARABREB(BRMBEHERER) RBB(ARGRINREREREEEMR B A HMBER
& WHERBRER OFF MR 0 BR T 112 i 1O BREF 5B 5R T 28 BUA B K 85 3R RO BT 75 B9 P BB 2
Bg-

ERECHVBRRE EFAETHESERELENEN  YEEABATHREASELLEEHN
EH URERHELERSHER RIFEZTABHEEERBTRIUZLLLE  SFBERMERNERT
BERZESARAREERENMBREBIE -

R A O SRS RO I B AT

BANER  RHAHMBERREBRES T FEARNRFFRBRMEHMNERERRANGEERE
YHABERMERNOZBERE - RAERE T (FLABR) MERMNER - RILZINRHERIEER
@HE’\J cHMTERABENATOEMNEMA LR FHARERNEE - SBRBESKFOHRE - BT
EERBIRB(BERENERDETOEN EX - BABRRBULFERBREE o 5REM A AR FEX
HER o - MREEFAHTEMEBHEMERAEZESHUMBRREME KBS HUBBRERAELH
ﬁ‘“ PR - BB RN REUL AR R EERX -



@ TONG REN TANG TECHNOLOGIES CO. LTD. e ANNUAL REPORT 2019

Independent Auditor’s Report (Cont’d)
38 5 A% BRI R A (4)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (contp)

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout
the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Ng Hiu Tung.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 30 March:2020
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
G EEAEE

Asat 31 December2019 R=-FE—NF+=-HA=+—H

As at 31 December

Tl =i ]

RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARBTIT

Assets B E

Non-current assets R B EE
Leasehold land and land use rights F8 & = 3 & 4= 30 {5 FA 4% 6 - 164,370
Property, plant and equipment 5 /& & EZEEY) - 5 MEE 7 2,301,261 2,029,183
Right-of-use assets {3 FA#E & & 8 403,999 =
Intangible assets &2 & = 9 66,152 73,990
Investments accounted for using the equity method

REDEARNIRE 11 25,678 26,469
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
NARBEAEEEZH A AELMEES RGN EREE 13(a) 9,839 13,553
Prepayments for purchase of non-current assets IEMENE ETE K 41,973 33,038
Deferred income tax assets IE L FT {55 & B 17 40,771 37,585
2,889,673 2,378,188
Current assets B & &
Inventories 17 & 16 2,321,784 2,361,161
Trade and bills receivables fE U BR 7 & & 15 961,680 1,048,988
Amounts due from related parties [ 4% BEHE A =] FUIE 36(e) 254,279 214,778
Other financial assets at amortised cost
NESRR A ENEM SR EE 25,755 53,273
Prepayments and other current assets T84 3X & Bt R B & B 107,709 100,490
Fmanoal assets at fair value through profit or loss
NARBEASEREH A ABTHNEREE 14 31,680 29,000
Fmarmal assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
NARBEAEEEES AR MG e emEE 13(b) 27,311 141,827
Short-term bank deposits 58 Hi$R 1777 7% 35(b) 859,454 1,538,125
Cash and cash equivalents IR & M IR & EEW 35(b) 2,990,645 1,904,036
7,580,297 7,391,678
Total assets & E & 5t 10,469,970 9,769,866

Equity and liabilities #%5 & &

Equity attributable to owners of the Company 55 BR AR QAR frE &

Share capital A& Z< 18 1,280,784 1,280,784

Reserves f# 3 19 4,246,471 4,035,868

5,527,255 5,316,652

Non-controlling interests Jk 322 %l 4 fE %5 10 1,887,319 1,960,197

Total equity Bz &5H 7,414,574 7,276,849
Vi
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Consolidated Balance Sheet (Cont’d)
G EEAMEE(HE)

Asat31 December2019 R-TE—hFE+-HA=+—H

As at 31 December

INTr=JE=qr=2

RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARETT

Liabilities & &

Non-current liabilities 3E R EI & &

Borrowings &3k 21 1,223,571 911,331
Lease liabilities T & & & 8 59,649 -
Deferred income tax liabilities #& 3E Fr 1551 & & 17 6,022 5679
Deferred income — government grants #E X4 A — R T 7 B 20 76,492 83,680

1,365,734 1,000,690

Current liabilities REI & &

Trade and bills payables FEA BRFX K =% 22 630,693 665,038
Salary and welfare payables f&{+ T & K& 5I& 24 63,283 92,970
Contract liabilities & [F] & {& 25 1,934 4324
Amounts due to related parties &1 BE % A &)z E 36(e) 100,549 154,678
Current income tax liabilities & HAFT 5 F & & 132,600 50,282
Other payables E At & < 5K 23 580,083 324,889
Borrowings f& 5K 21 140,198 200,146
Lease liabilities FH & & & 8 40,322 -
1,689,662 1,492,327

Total liabilities B8 & & &+ 3,055,396 2,493,017
Total equity and liabilities 3 & & E# 5t 10,469,970 9,769,866

The notes on pages 120 to 240 are an integral part of these financial 55 120 & 240 B B MT 3T &4 F B f& 3R 55 1y 2k e

statements. T o
The financial statements on pages 112 to 240 were approved by the 112 E A0 E M BERECHESe N -
Board of Directors on 30 March 2020 and were signed on its behalf. “EF=HF=+HME WREEESRE-
Gu Hai Ou Fang Jia Zhi
e BERE
Chairman Director

EEFER EF
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Consolidated Income Statement

BRI R

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z=—F—NF+=-A=1+—HILFE

RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ T ARETT
Revenue YA 25 4,476,449 5,059,638
Cost of sales 5 & B A 27 (2,421,954) (2,631,659)
Gross profit E X 2,054,495 2,427,979
Distribution expenses $H4 & & 27 (718,684) (866,651)
Administrative expenses & ¥ & F 27 (397,551) (364,248)
Net impairment losses on financial assets & &l & 2= /F s (B 18 2k 27 (20,113) (6,055)
Operating profit & % 74 918,147 1,191,025
Finance income B #5425 26 47,839 32,031
Finance costs B4 7% & F3 26 (41,025) (14,964)
Finance income, net 1 7 & + JF 58 26 6,814 17,067
Share of losses of investments accounted for using the equity method
ZERERENRNRENEIRNE 11 (1,456) (138)
Other income and gains/(losses), net E bl zs & F15/ (1BK)  F58 - (884)
Profit before income tax KR Fff 8%t A1 78 923,505 1,207,070
Income tax expense P15 & FH 29 (182,115) (201,217)
Profit for the year & E |8 741,390 1,005,853
Profit attributable to: FEEER :
Owners of the Company 2N A &I AT A & 417,650 677,815
Non-controlling interests FE#2 i 4 4 25 323,740 328,038
741,390 1,005,853
Earnings per share for profit attributable to owners
of the Company during the year
FANBRUBEBEBNEQARMEE
— Basic and diluted &748 R #E5E G AR AR 30 RMBO.33 RMBO.53

The notes on pages 120 to 240 are an integral part of these ’fﬁ120%2405\%%%}%@{#&7}%%&%%%&%
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
GLB L & FS

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z=—F—NF+=A=+—HIFE

Note RMB’000 RMB'000
Kzt ARBT T ARBTT
Profit for the year & £ ;8 741,390 1,005,853
Other comprehensive income H 4R & W25
Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss
Hig g ES B E B IHH
Foreign currency translation differences 4N 37 & = %8
— Group &£ & 59,344 104,859
— Joint ventures and associates & & M B & (> 2 (181) ZI7E
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
HE TR ESEE B
Change in fair value of financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income
UAnBEFEEEEHT AR MEE RGN EREENEEEY 13 (3,947) 127
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax
TEFHMES WSS - MERBIA 55,216 107,165
Total comprehensive income for the year 7~ & E 47 & W 25 796,606 1,113,018
Attributable to: SFE R :
Owners of the Company A A &IFT A & 441,144 717,121
Non-controlling interests FE45 ) 14 4 #% 355,462 395,897
Total comprehensive income for the year 7~ £ £ 47 & W 35 796,606 1,113,018

The notes on pages 120 to 240 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements. 2L o

FI20E 240 BEMHI T A HI B RRNER
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Consolidated Statement of Changes In Equity
Gl ¥ dIES

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B E=F—NWF+=-HA=1—HIFE

Attributable to o
8

fund

N

Balanceas at 1 January 018 A= F—\E— A —BHE 1280784 411601 40904 45455 102043 (6568) 4% 156851 2385052 4816620 1642922 6459542

Comprehensive income 4 & (i
Proftforthe year &£ 7 - = - - - - - - 677815 677815 0808 1005853
Change in fair value of financial assets at fair value through other

comprehensive income (FVOCT')

WanRETBEERS AL i A BN ERARN

MEERY = - - - - - 4 - - @ 7 7
Foreign currency translaton differences SM& T B 28

—Gow £ . 2 . 5 2 349 £ . P %49 6680 104859

— Joint ventures and associates & & RE B 5 > - - - - 829 - - - 89 1350 279

Transactions with owners in their capacity as owners

RREFERIAFAENGRETNRS

Appropriation from retained earnings BB ATE - - 51,208 - - - . S (51,208) 2 .- Y
2017 dividends paid to shareholders of the Company

IMEARRE-F-LERRE - - - - - - - SO iy I 175 -
2017 dividends paid to non-controling interests

XAFEHERE =T - FERE - - - - - - - - - - (629 (0329
Purchase of non-controling interests o asubsidary B & 7 A B3k 5l B - 644 - - - - - - - 644 (259) (1949)
Capitalinjection from non-controlling interests FEFE M 35 1 & = = = = - - - = = = 754 7548
Others £t : = = = = = = - 5 = (59) (59
Balance asat 31 December 018 A - E-NF+-A=1-BHE 1280784 41245 492112 45455 102043 32690 546 156851 2793926 5316652 1960,197 7276849
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Consolidated Statement of Changes In Equity (Cont’d)
5 D RE 4 58 B 3R (48)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z=—F—NF+=A=+—HIFE

Non-
controlling
interests
Attributable to owners of the Company FEH
SRAAARAAEE i1 33
Statutory  Statutory Foreign Financial
surplus public currency assets at
Share Capital reserve welfare Tax  translation Fvoci Other Retained
Capital Reserve fund fund reserve  differences reserve reserve eamings
EERH SHEE
Bx  ERERE MRE  EEDEE  RHES NMAEEE  EfBE  HURE i
(Note18)  (Note19(a)  (Note19(h))  (Note19(b))  (Note19(c)  (Note19(d)) (Note 19(e))
(Hi1e)  (Witroa)  (Kiow) (KiEwob)  (BEwe)  (KEod) (B 19(e))
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARMTR ARMTR ARBTR ARMTR ARMTn ARMTR ARMTR ARMTZ ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR ARETR
Balanceasat 1 January 019 A= E-NF—-A—-AHE 1,280,784 412,245 492,112 45,455 102,043 32,690 546 156,851 2,793,926 5,316,652 1,960,197 7,276,849
Comprehensive income & K
Proftforthe year & 7 - - - - - - - - 417,650 417,650 33740 741,390
Change i far value of financial assets at FVOCI
WAL BEBAAESH AR A R EREAER
MEEERY - - - - - - (1,502 - - (1,502 (2,445) (3.947)
Foreign currency translation diferences S 7 8 2 8
—Group £8 - - - - - 25,065 - - - 25,065 34219 59,344
— Joint ventures and associates A2 RE B (% - - - - - (69) - - - (69) (112) (181)
Transactions with owners in their capacity as owners
AESMEEULFEENSREMNRE
Approprition from retained eamings FREVEEA AT - - 55,46 - - - - - (55,246) - - -
2018 dividends paid to shareholders of the Company
AARARR=F-NFRRE - - - - - - - - (230541)  (23054) - (230541)
2018 dividends paid to non-controlling interests
XAt RS-\ FERS - - - - - - - - - - (40970 (470970)
Capitalinjection from non-controlling interests JEF2E] M & & - - - - - - - - - - 4,630 2,630
Balance as at 31 December W9 R=F—NF+=A=T-BHE 1,280,784 412,245 547,358 45,455 102,043 57,686 (956) 156,851 2,925,789 5,527,255 1,887,319 7414574

The notes on pages 120 to 240 are an integral part of these  FE120F 240 B I BE HM SRR R L
consolidated financial statements. TS o
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
GBS a®R

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #EZE=F—NF1+=A=+—HIEFZ

RMB’000
ARBT

Cash flows from operating activities: & ZEELNBELHRE :

RMB'000
ARETT

Cash generated from operations & & & Uk 2| #9357 & 35(a) 1,194,049 1,229,906
Interest paid 3z 3 &9 51 8 (44,224) (34,431)
Income tax paid 31 B FT 15 H% (98,050) (210,239)
Net cash generated from operating activities 4% & & Bh U B K3R & 7 &2 /558 1,051,775 985,236
Cash flows from investing activities: REFEHELENRERE :
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
BEEENMEEY  WENRE (210,423) (356,787)
Purchase of land use rights i & - b {55 F 4 (58,136) (15,803)
Purchase of other long-term assets & B H {th K HI & & (7,395) (6,842)
Proceeds from government grants relating to property, plant and equipment
YR ER5S 2 N R EEY) - i M sk 1 B RA B0 B 470 B 5,669 6,972
Proceeds from disposals of property, plant and equipment
and other long-term assets
BEEFEREREEY BEIXEMEMERIAEEMBEINES 153 201
Proceeds from disposals of land use rights B & 1= #0.{5F FA #E AT UK B M IR & - 460
Increase in short-term bank deposits 52 iR 1T 17 sRIZ MNFT 2 IR & (859,454) (1,534,407)
Decrease in short-term bank deposits %2 28R 1717 0B 4 AT B §93R & 1,534,407 1,010,328
Proceeds from wealth management products $E1TI2 81 EE I & A 466,290 152,800
Increase in wealth management products $81732 81 2 @I & i i (468,970) (181,800)
Dividends received W 2| &) A% & 171 140
Interest received Y2 &9 F| B 54,590 26,919
Proceeds from disposal of associates Bz & B & 1> F W Bl A9 I8 & - 1,969
Others HAf - 15377
Net cash generated from/(used in) investing activities
REEBHHRE, () WRLREFHE 456,902 (880,473)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Cont’d)
AR ER ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z=—F—NF+=A=+—HIFE

Note RMB’000 RMB'000
i AR®T T ARETT

Cash flows from financing activities: EEEEELENESRE -

Proceeds from borrowings f& AT EI H IR & 435,000 195,991

Repayments of borrowings & E & AFTZ AR & (200,146) (210,242)
Principal elements of lease payments 8 & 1~ Z &8 H) AN & 2B (45,343) =
Capital injection from non-controlling interests FE¥ZE I {25 H & 42,630 27,548
Dividends paid to shareholders of the Company [A] 2K A AR 5 % 1+ % 8, (230,541) (217,733)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests [A) 3E122 il 1 A 25 = (<7 A% B, (467,710) (104,240
Purchase of non-controlling interests of a subsidiary

BEE T R BEE S M A - (1,948)
Payment to non-controlling interests upon liquidation of a subsidiary

Bt 8 1 B8 5 i e FE 4 Il ME R 2 5 K - (371)
Net cash used in financing activities & /G B X M HIR SR 2 F58 (466,110) (310,995)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
RekBSEWREM ORd) 1,042,567 (206,232)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year
Re MReEEYNFENRRE 1,904,036 2,023,561
Exchange gains on cash and cash equivalents

He RS FEME LGS 44,042 86,707

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

RERREEEYNERRE 35(b) 2,990,645 1,004,036

The notes on pages 120 to 240 are an integral part of these  F120ZF 240 Bz A& I IE R R AR L
consolidated financial statements. 2L o
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z=—F—NFE+=A=1—HIFFE

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

Tong Ren Tang Technologies Co. Ltd. (the “Company”’) was
incorporated as a joint stock limited company in Beijing, the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC") on 22 March 2000. The address of its
registered office is No. 16 Tongji Beilu, Beijing Economic and
Technological Development Zone, Beijing, the PRC.

The Company and its subsidiaries are hereafter collectively referred to
as the “Group”. The Group is principally engaged in the production
and distribution of Chinese medicine and primarily operates in
Mainland China and Hong Kong.

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) consider China Beijing
Tong Ren Tang Group Co,, Ltd,, a limited liability company incorporated
in Beijing, the PRC, as the ultimate holding company.

The Company'’s shares have been listed on the Growth Enterprise
Market (the "GEM") of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) since 31 October 2000. On 9 July 2010, the
Company transferred the listing from GEM to the Main Board (the “MB")
of the Stock Exchange.

These financial statements are presented in RMB unless otherwise
stated.

These consolidated financial statements have been approved for issue
by the Board of Directors on 30 March 2020.

1. —REHR

ITRACEREEERMBERAGTER
Al RR_EETF A -+ _HEPE
AREMBA((HEDIEEKIHROBRA
ﬂ ARAFR MBI AP B RTIERE
BT R R 1655 o

ARBNMEFRBATNGHS [AEE] - K
SEIBXBRTEIENHEE  TELE
WA BERMNEE

ARPEZ(TEEDRA  EFBEILRMKL
MPREIERECE(RB)BREETRF - &
R T] -

AREE B2 FTH=T—HREEH
BRGABR AR (TR BIZER LT -
RZZF—FFLANE ' AREIHBEZFE
ERBEERLED -

A BHREAAREIIR (BRIESEHRHA) ©

EHFEHRREN _E_EF=A=THK
BRI AT -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont’d)
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z=—F—NF+=A=+—HIFE

1. GENERAL INFORMATION (contD) 1. — &R @
el e IS B = ke == B

The following is a list of principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2018

and 2019: =+~ BHNEZETRA :
Place/date of
incorporation/kind Percentage of equity  Issued/registered and Principal activities/
Name of legal entity interest held paid-up capital place of operation
R BH B&f7/f
NAER REAER BFERERDN REKES TEXBNLEH
2019 2018

Subsidiaries:

FRA:

Beijing Tong Ren Tang Henan Henan, PRC 51%* 519* RMB4,000,000 Cultivating, selling and
Technological development of Chinese 24 October 2001 AR 40000007 technological development
Medicinal Raw Materials Co, Limited Limited liability company of Chinese medicinal
(‘Tong Ren Tang Henan’) HET raw materials

ERBEC T &N 20015 10A 148 Henan, PRC
RIEFREBRAT AREART PEMER  HE
(TREmE]) o B R 3

RE R

Beijing Tong Ren Tang Hubei Chinese Hubei, PRC 51%* 519* RMB3,000,000 Cultivating, purchasing and
Medicinal Raw Materials Co, Limited 26 October 2001 ARE30000007C  selling of Chinese medicinal
("Tong Ren Tang Hubei’) Limited liability company raw materials

p Al w1k 1) R AL Hubei, PRC
BRAA 20015 10A 268 PEMER W RHE
([REE#L]) AREARR B

Beijing Tong Ren Tang Zhejiang Chinese Zhejiang, PRC 51%* 51%* RMB10,000,000 Cultivating, purchasing and
Medicinal Raw Materials Co, Limited 31 October 2001 ARM10000,0007T  selling of Chinese medicinal
(‘Tong Ren Tang Zhejiang") Limited liability company raw materials

ERRCEMI &M HEDHT Zhejiang, PRC
BRARA 20015 10A318 PEMER W HE
([REEWL)) AREARH hET

Beijing Tong Ren Tang Hebei Chinese Hebei, PRC 51%* 519* RMB48,000,000 Cultivating, purchasing and
Medicinal Raw Materials Technologies 19 November 2001 AR 480000007 selling of Chinese medicinal
Co, Limited Limited liability company raw materials
(‘Tong Ren Tang Hebei’) HELA L Hebei, PRC

ERBEC T & 20015 11A19A hEMEE W HE
BERAEERAT BREEAT Rl
(TREETL))

5 Equity interests directly held by the Company BOBARFAEERFE
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 &2 =&

(#)

1. GENERAL INFORMATION (contp)

Ak

Subsidiaries: (Cont'd)
FRA ()

Beijing Tong Ren Tang Tongke
Pharmaceutical Company Limited
('Tong Ren Tang Tongke')

tRRCERREE
BREFAR
(IREEEN])

Beijing Tong Ren Tang Technologies
(Tangshan) Co, Ltd
(‘Tong Ren Tang Technologies
Tangshan’)
ERACEREER(EL)
BRAT
((BEENEEL])

Beijing Tong Ren Tang Technologies
Chengdu Co, Ltd
(‘Tong Ren Tang Chengdu’)
FRECERERERAE
BRAT
(IE-Zm#])

Beijing Tong Ren Tang Second Traditional
Chinese Medicine Hospital Co, Ltd
(‘Tong Ren Tang Second Traditional
Chinese Medicine Hospital’)

FRRCEE_hERR
BBREFAR
((BEEE=BER])

Place/date of
incorporation/kind
of legal entity
Rt - B
REAER

Beijing, PRC

4 November 2003
Limited liability company
PEER

200311 A4H
BREEARF

Hebei, PRC

17 June 2015

Limited liability company
hEAL
2015F6A17H
BREEAR

Sichuan, PRC

26 February 2003
Limited liability company
FEm)|
20035 2R 26H
BREMFAT

Beijing, PRC

12 September 2000
Limited liability company
R R
200099 A 128
BREAATE

X Equity interests diréqfly.h'e/\d by the Company
b

—ANFEFZA=STHIEFE

Percentage of equity
interest held

RERERAH
2019

95%*

100%*

51%*

100%*

1. — &R @

Issued/registered and
paid-up capital
BRfT/if
REKEX

2018

9596* RMB75,000,000
AR 7500000070

100%* RMBS50,000,000
AR 850,000,0007T

519%¢ RMB53,061,200
AR 53061,2007C

100%* RMB10492914
ARH10492914 7T

2 LSl RN

Principal activities/
place of operation

TERBNEL

Production of ointment, medical
research and development
Beijing, PRC

225\_ BA M‘J

R R

BERG%

Production (including extraction) of
Chinese medicine, food and
healthcare products

Hebei, PRC

EERETRE(ZTERR)
RmRRER

HELTIE

Production and processing of
biochemical products and
Chinese medicine, extraction and
processing of plants

Sichuan, PRC

BE  MIA(RmMTE
HlE RAR B
T ERFEER

el

Internal and external surgery,
medical examination, traditional
Chinese medicine department
and hospital management

Beijing, PRC

Mo - BEinkR - PEM
AR B ER

AEHE R

AIEEFH



1. GENERAL INFORMATION (conrp)

Name

Ak

Subsidiaries: (Cont'd)
FRA (&)

Beijing Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine
Company Limited"
(‘Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine’)
tRRACEREERARY
((A-2EE))

Beijing Tong Ren Tang Nansanhuan
Zhonglu Drugstore Co, Limited
(‘Nansanhuan Zhonglu Drugstore’)

ERRCER=RPRER
BRATF
(MA=RPREE])

Beijing Tong Ren Tang Yanbian Chinese
Medicinal Raw Materials Co, Limited
(‘Tong Ren Tang Yanbian’)

IRACEERTEHEN
BRAT
((R-EER])

Beijing Tong Ren Tang Anhui Chinese
Medicinal Raw Materials Co, Limited
(‘Tong Ren Tang Anhui’)

ERACEZE R &

BRAT
(REEZRE])

Place/date of
incorporation/kind
of legal entity
Rt B4
REAER

Hong Kong, PRC

18 March 2004

Limited liability company
TEEE

20043 A18H
BREAAHF

Beijing, PRC

28 April 2004

Limited liability company
HEER

200454 A28 H
BREAATF

Jilin, PRC

24 September 2004
Limited liability company
hEE M

2004598 24H
BREART

Anhui, PRC

18 October 2004

Limited liability company
HEZH
2004E10A18H
BREARA

% Equity interests directly held by the Company

For the year ended 31 December 2019

A ENEBEREBARAA o ZFJuFEER %

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont’d)

O B 5 e 3 B (46)

1. — &R @

Percentage of equity  Issued/registered and

interest held paid-up capital

BT/

BFEREED N REKEE
2019 2018

38.05%* 38.05%* HKD938,789,000

75 938,789,000 7T

100%* 100%* RMB500,000

ARH 5000007

51%* 51%* RMB4,000,000

AR 40000007

51%* 51%* RMB24,000,000

AR 240000007

HE—T

—NFFZA=+—HIEFE

Principal activities/
place of operation

TERBNEE D

Manufacturing, retail and wholesale
of Chinese medicine products and
healthcare products and provision
of Chinese medical consultation
and treatments

Hong Kong, PRC

PEERNRENNEE -
TERBEVEHETBDE

HEEE

Sales of medicinal products
Beijing, PRC

BniHe

HEER

Cultivating and selling of
Chinese medicinal raw materials
Jilin, PRC
BN R - HE
hEIE M

Cultivating, purchasing and selling
of Chinese medicinal
raw materials
Anhui, PRC
BN R - I - HE
HEZH

t RIVBARAEEFR
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #EZE=F—NF1+=A=+—HIEFZ

1. GENERAL INFORMATION (conrp) 1. — &R @
Place/date of
incorporation/kind Percentage of equity  Issued/registered and Principal activities/
Name of legal entity interest held paid-up capital place of operation
Rt - B BRfT/if
DEER REAER BERERIL REWER FEEBALEL
2019 2018

Subsidiaries: (Cont'd)
FRA ()

Beijing Tong Ren Tang WM Dianorm
Biotech Co, Limited
(‘Tong Ren Tang WM')
tRRACERBEE M
BRRA
(B-EZE®E])

Beijing Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine
(Hong Kong) Group Co, Ltd.
("Chinese Medicine Group ')

TRACEEE(RE)EE
BRRA
((HZ£E])

Beijing Tong Ren Tang Xing An Healthcare
Technologies Co. Limited
(‘Tong Ren Tang Xing An Healthcare’)
ETRACERZRRER K
BREERR
((BLEEZRRE])

Beijing Tong Ren Tang Century
Advertising Co,, Limited
(‘Tong Ren Tang Century Advertising’)
IRACEHBEEERAR
((REEtEES])

Beijing, PRC

20 February 2001
Sino-foreign equity
joint venture
PEER
200152 A 20H
PARERE

Hong Kong, PRC

1 March 2012

Limited liability company
HEER
201263A1H
BREART

Beijing, PRC

14 April 2004

Limited liability company
hELR
20044 A 148
BREARAT

Beijing, PRC

25 September 2013
Limited liability company
R R
013F9ABH
BREAAT

£ Equity interests directly hé/q by the Company

60%*

53.09%*

51%*

100%*

60%*
%7T3,000,0007C

53.09%* HKD75,000,000
FB 5 75,000,000 70

519%* RMB69,000,000

AR 69,000,0007C

100%* RMB1,000,000
AR 1,0000007C

USD3,000000 Technological development and

sales of biological products,
Chinese and western medicines,
cosmetics and healthcare
products
Beijing, PRC
EWEm - PEE - (fmAl
RERmARIFEERHE
HELR

Investment holding
Hong Kong, PRC
REER
PEEA

Cultivating, purchasing and selling

of Chinese medicinal raw
materials, production and selling
of tea drinks product series and
foot care product series

Beijing, PRC

hENRE W HE RE
EmRRARERLE HE

LR

Advertisement services

Beijing, PRC

BEREIRY

FELLR

* RUOBARFEERA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont’d)
A 1 BA 5 1 e B ok (4)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z=—F—NF+=A=+—HIFE

1. GENERAL INFORMATION (conrp) 1. —BER @
Place/date of
incorporation/kind Percentage of equity  Issued/registered and Principal activities/
Name of legal entity interest held paid-up capital place of operation
Rt B4 BT/
NAEH REAER BEREEDN REKES TEXBNLEH
2019 2018

Subsidiaries: (Cont'd)
FRA (&)

Beijing Tong Ren Tang (Tangshan) Nutrition

and Healthcare Co, Ltd

(‘Tong Ren Tang Tangshan Healthcare’)

ERACE(FL) &R RER
BRAF
(BEEELRRER])

Beijing Tong Ren Tang Technologies
(Liaoning) Pharmaceutical Company
Limited
(‘Tong Ren Tang Liaoning’)

IRACE (BE) MREXARAF
(E-ERE))

Beijing Tong Ren Tang Technologies
(Xingtang) Donkey Industry Company
Limited
(‘Tong Ren Tang Xingtang’)

IRRCEMBRR (TR EXERAR

((BLEfE))

Beijing Tong Ren Tang International
Natural-Pharm Co, Ltd.
(‘Tong Ren Tang International
Natural-Pharm’)
TRACZEREXERAR
(IR -EEREX])

Hebei, PRC

13 September 2010
Limited liability company
HELAIL
2010694138
AREAAT

Liaoning, PRC

25 July 2018

Limited liability company
20187 258
AREART

Hebei, PRC

15 March 2019

Limited liability company
HELA L

201943 A15H
BBEEARA

Beijing, PRC

6 March 2006

Limited liability company
HEER

200653 A6 H
BREAATF

o Equity interests directly held by the Company

¥ Equity interests directly held by Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine

74%*

51%*

51%*

100%**

74%* RMB170,000,000
AEE1700000007C

519%* RMB136,000,000
AR 136,0000007C

4 RIMB66,000,000
AR 66,000,0007T

1009%* HKD10,000,000

810,000,000

Production and sales of
healthcare products and
Chinese medicine

Hebei, PRC

REmRPEEERHE

HE L

Production and sales of deer series
Chinese medicine and
healthcare food

Liaoning, PRC

BRI ERRERR
HEREE

FEEE

Cultivation technology
development, production and
sales of food

Hebei, PRC

RERMAE  RmilT
RHE

HEDTE

Sales and distribution of Chinese
medicine products and healthcare
products

Beijing, PRC

HERDHEHE
EmEREmD

HELR

4 B A R AEESFE
*  ROHFCZEEEE R
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z=—F—NFE+=A=1—HIFFE

1. GENERAL INFORMATION (conrp) 1. — &R @
Place/date of
incorporation/kind Percentage of equity  Issued/registered and Principal activities/
Name of legal entity interest held paid-up capital place of operation
Rt - B BRfT/if
DEER REAER BERERIL REWER FEEBALEL
2019 2018

Subsidiaries: (Cont'd)
FRA ()

Beijing Tong Ren Tang Australia Pty. Ltd.
(‘Tong Ren Tang Australia’)

tRAEL (”kﬂﬁ)
ARA
Uﬁtﬁﬁkﬂﬁh

Beijing Tong Ren Tang Science Arts
(Singapore) Co, Pte. Ltd.
(‘Tong Ren Tang Singapore’)
IERECE K (RE) FLA

BRDF
(TBEEHmK])

Beijing Tong Ren Tang (Toronto) Inc.

(‘Tong Ren Tang Toronto’)

ERRACE(SR%)BERAT

((A-25%%])

R Equity interests directly held by Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine

\

Sydney, Australia

20 May 2004

Limited liability company
BAMEER
20045 A 208
BREART

Singapore

1 December 2003
Limited liability company
AR
003F12A18
BREEAT

Toronto, Canada

24 June 2010

Limited liability company
MeEX%m%
2010% 6 A 24H
BREFAH

750/0**

51%%**

51%%**

7506 AUD1,000,000
JBA R85 7T.1,000,0007C

519 5GD857,000
HINIT 857,000 7T

519 CAD497.300
M€ RTT497,3007C

Wholesale and retail of Chinese
medicine products and healthcare
products and provision of Chinese
medical consultation and
treatments

Sydney, Australia

BERTEREERE
REEmIA R B

BARNEERE

v

Wholesale and retail of Chinese
medicine products and healthcare
products and provision of Chinese
medical consultation and
treatments

Singapore

WERTEREERSE
REmARRRDBEDRRYE

AN

W

Retail of Chinese medicine products
and healthcare products and
provision of Chinese medical
consultation and treatments

Toronto, Canada

ZETEERERRGUR
RERBDERY

NIEYN 4k

= ROOEFCEEEE RS
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont’d)
A 1 BA 5 1 e B ok (4)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z=—F—NF+=A=+—HIFE

1. GENERAL INFORMATION (conrp) 1. —BER @
Place/date of
incorporation/kind Percentage of equity  Issued/registered and Principal activities/
Name of legal entity interest held paid-up capital place of operation
Rt B4 BT/
NAEH REAER BEREEDN REKES TEXBNLEH
2019 2018

Subsidiaries: (Cont'd)

FRA: (R)

Beijing Tong Ren Tang (Macau) Company Macau, PRC 51%%** 51%** MOP1,000,000 Wholesale and retail of Chinese
Limited 28 October 2002 BFI7C1,0000007c  medicine products and healthcare
(‘Tong Ren Tang Macau’) Limited liability company products and provision of Chinese

ERAEE ( B BRAR B RPS medical consultation and
(TREERM)) 2002%10A 288 treatments

AREAAH Macau, PRC
HERTETEERE
RE@RARIEHEDBRG
thELRP

Beijing Tong Ren Tang Gulf FZ-LLC Dubai, United Arab Emirates 51%** 519* AED1,920,000 Retail of Chinese medicine products
(‘Tong Ren Tang Gulf') 8 June 2011 P A8 1,920,000 7T and healthcare products and

IRRCEGEERAR Limited liability company provision of Chinese medical
(IR-2EE]) Wi EEa B REEE consultation and treatments

011F6A8H Dubai, United Arab Emirates
BREERA TEPEERERRRIAR
} f Eu/fﬁ&ﬁ%
P (A B RELERE

Beijing Tong Ren Tang Poland sp.zo.o. Warsaw, Poland 100%** 10006* Zloty130,000 Retail of Chinese medicine products
(‘Tong Ren Tang Poland’) 26 July 2012, REZEIR 13000070 and healthcare products and

FRACE KR ARAR Limited liability company provision of Chinese healthcare
(IE-ZRE]) RRED treatments

2012F7R26H Warsaw, Poland
BREEAR TEPEEMERRGUR
RETBDERY
REED

1 Equity interests directly held by Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine > ROAFACEEEE A
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #EZE=F—NF1+=A=+—HIEFZ

1. GENERAL INFORMATION (contp)

1. — &R @

Place/date of
incorporation/kind Percentage of equity  Issued/registered and Principal activities/
Name of legal entity interest held paid-up capital place of operation
R - B BRfT/if
DEER RAEANER BERERIL REWER FEEBALEL
2019 2018
Subsidiaries: (Cont'd)
FARA (&)
Beijing Tong Ren Tang Canada Co. Ltd. Vancouver, Canada 51%** 519* CAD1,000,000 Retail of Chinese medicine products
(Tong Ren Tang Canada’) 11 January 2002 MEATT1,0000007c  and healthcare products and
IRRCE(MEX)BRAH Limited liability company provision of Chinese medical
(IR-Z2mex]) MEXRFFE consultation and treatments
N02E1A 1A Vancouver, Canada
BREART TEPEERERRERIAR
REDBIRRY
MERBFE
Beijing Tong Ren Tang (Seoul) Company Seoul, South Korea 519%** 51%** WONT1,052,000,000 Wholesale of Chinese medicine
Limited 10 March 2014 8701,052,0000007C  products and healthcare products
(‘Tong Ren Tang Seoul’) Limited liability company Seoul, South Korea
ITRACE (BB K2k BEHER HEPEERERRR
((B-2E@)) 2014%3A108 SEER
BREEAR
Beijing Tong Ren Tang (Auckland) Company  Auckland, New Zealand 51%%** Sl NZD2,000,000 Retail of Chinese medicine products
Limited 2 May 2014 FPE7T 20000007 and healthcare products and
(‘Tong Ren Tang Auckland’) Limited liability company provision of Chinese medical
IRACE(BRH)ERAT HEERERH consultation and treatments
((A-2R=H#]) 20145828 Auckland, New Zealand
BREERA TEPEERERREUR
RERBLBRRY
MERRRH
Beijing Tong Ren Tang Tong Xin Tong Le Hong Kong, PRC 100%** 100%** HKD10,000 Retail of Chinese medicine products
Company Limited 19 May 2014 7100007 and healthcare products and
(‘Tong Ren Tang Tong Xin Tong Le") Limited liability company provision of Chinese medical
IRRCERLFALERAR HEES consultation and treatments
(IAEZROREL]) 2014855198 Hong Kong, PRC
BREARH TEPEERERRR
ARIRA BB IR
hEEE

** Fquity interests directly held by Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine *  ROBFACEEEEREES

¥ ¥
!

\



1. GENERAL INFORMATION (conrp)

Name

Ak

Subsidiaries: (Cont'd)
FRA (&)

Honour Essence Trading Limited
("Honour Essence’)

AEEHERRT
([KEE5))

Beijing Tong Ren Tang Vancouver Healthcare

Center Co, Ltd

(‘Tong Ren Tang Vancouver’)
IRRCERTESRE

HLERAR

((E-ZBFE])

Beijing Tong Ren Tang Melbourne Pty. Limited

(‘Tong Ren Tang Melbourne’)
TRACE (RBAR)BRAF
(IA-Z8fEE])

Beijing Tong Ren Tang Pudu Health
Centre BV.
("Tong Ren Tang Pudu’)
ETRACEERERES O
BRRA]
((REELE])

A Equity interests directly held by Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine
***  Equity interests indirectly held by Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine

Place/date of
incorporation/kind
of legal entity
Rt B4
REAER

Hong Kong, PRC

10 March 1997

Limited liability company
PEEE
19973 A 10H
BREAAHF

Vancouver, Canada

19 January 2016

Limited liability company
meAEEE
20165 1A 19H
BREFAR

Melbourne, Australia

9 April 2014

Limited liability company
BEANBERA
201464 79R
BBEEARR

Den Haag, the Netherlands
17 August 2015

Limited liability Company
ST

20158 A17H
BEREAAH

For the year ended 31 December 2019

A ENEBEREBARAA o ZFJuFEER W

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont’d)

O B 5 e 3 B (46)

1. — &R @

Percentage of equity  Issued/registered and

interest held paid-up capital

BT/

BEREEDN REKEE
2019 2018

51%%** 51%* HKD2,000

P& 2,000 7T

51%%** 51%* CAD750,000

MEATT 7500007

38%%** 38%*** AUD100,000

SRR 7T 1000007

45%*** 459 Euro650,000

BATL6500007C

HE—T

—NFFZA=+—HIEFE

Principal activities/
place of operation

TERBNEE D

Wholesale of Chinese medicine

products and healthcare products
Hong Kong, PRC
BEPEERERED
HEEE

Retail of Chinese medicine products
and healthcare products and
provision of Chinese medical
consultation and treatments

Vancouver, Canada

TEPEERERERUR
RERBDBRY

MEXRFE

Retail of Chinese medicine products
and healthcare products and
provision of Chinese medical
consultation and treatments

Melbourne, Australia

TEPEEMERRGUR
REHBDERY

BATERRA

Retail of Chinese medicine products
and healthcare products and
provision of Chinese medical
consultation and treatments

Den Haag, the Netherlands

TEPEERERRRAR
RETBD BRI

HRET

*  ROHBFCEHEEZERE
xR R 2 B B A R
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #EZE=F—NF1+=A=+—HIEFZ

1. GENERAL INFORMATION (conrp) ¥
Place/date of
incorporation/kind Percentage of equity
Name of legal entity interest held
Rt - B
DEEH REAER BERERIL
) A T TN
2019 2018
Subsidiaries: (Cont'd)
FRA: ()
Beijing Tong Ren Tang Czech Republic SE Prague, the Czech Republic 45%%+* 4506%%
(‘Tong Ren Tang Czech’) 11 December 2015
IRRCE (fR)BBRAF Limited liability company
(IRCERER]) RIS
0158128118
BREEAT
Beijing Tong Ren Tang Sweden AB Stockholm, Sweden 459%** 4506**
(‘Tong Ren Tang Sweden’) 9 September 2015
FRACEGrf) BRAR Limited liability company
(IE-Z5ma]) HEHETRE
20156 9H9H
BREEAR
Beijing Tong Ren Tang Los Angeles Los Angeles, United States 519%%*** 519***
Healthcare Centre LLC 18 November 2015
(‘Tong Ren Tang Los Angeles’) Limited liability company
FTRRACERTVKER FERTH
FOARRA 2015%11A18H
([E-ZEH]) BREAAH

*** Fquity interests indirectly held by Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine

¥ ¥
!

\

*K%

— &R )

Issued/registered and
paid-up capital
BRfT/if
REKEX

CZK3296,400
TR R 83296400 TC

SEK50,000
T 85 850,000 T

USD600,000
371,600,000 7T

Principal activities/
place of operation

TERBNEL

Retail of Chinese medicine products
and healthcare products and
provision of Chinese medical
consultation and treatments

Prague, the Czech Republic

TETEEMERERUR
REHBDBRY

RRmuE

Retail of Chinese medicine products
and healthcare products and
provision of Chinese medical
consultation and treatments

Stockholm, Sweden

TEPEEMERRRIAR
RETBDERYG

hEEEFRE

Retail of Chinese medicine products
and healthcare products and
provision of Chinese medical
consultation and treatments

Los Angeles, United States

TEPEEmERE®DAR
RERBDERY

e

R 17 I = B R s



1. GENERAL INFORMATION (conrp)

Name

Ak

Subsidiaries: (Cont'd)
FRA (&)

Beijing Tong Ren Tang Concord
New York LLC
(‘Tong Ren Tang Concord’)
ETRACEGBMBHERA]
(IREHA])

Beijing Tong Ren Tang Ming Qi Group, LLC
(‘Tong Ren Tang Mingqi")

IRACEREABRAT
(A2 Wi ])

Beijing Tong Ren Tang Swiss SA
(‘Tong Ren Tang Swiss’)

IRACERTRHBRAR
(IEAEmt])

***  Equity interests indirectly held by Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine

Place/date of
incorporation/kind
of legal entity
Rt B4
REAER

New York, United States
13 June 2016

Limited liability company
ESEEE)
2016%6 A 13
BREFAT

New York, United States
22 April 2005

Limited liability company
ZERH)

200564 A22H
BREMFAR

Geneva, Switzerland

8 September 2017
Limited liability company
HTARE

20176 9H8H
BREEAR

For the year ended 31 December 2019

Percentage of equity
interest held

BEREEDL

2019

51 %***

600/0***

450/0***

A ENEBEREBARAA o ZFJuFEER W

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont’d)
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1. — &R @

Issued/registered and
B&fT /i
REWER

2018

37,800,000 7T

371,200,000 7T

4596*** CHF500,000

B £ 585000007

BHE—T

—NFFZA=+—HIEFE

Principal activities/

paid-up capital place of operation

TERBNEE D

USD800,000 Wholesale and retail of Chinese

medicine products and healthcare
products and provision of Chinese
medical consultation and
treatments
New York, United States
BERTENEERSR
Wi mbA R rR gt
BOERE
eS|

USD200,000 Wholesale and retail of Chinese

medicine products and
healthcare products
New York, United States
BERTEREERERER
ZEARL

Provision of Chinese medical

consultation and treatments
Geneva, Switzerland
REHEDERSE
HTBEAR

= RO AR E B
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #EZE=F—NF1+=A=+—HIEFZ

1. GENERAL INFORMATION (contp) ¥;
Place/date of
incorporation/kind Percentage of equity
Name of legal entity interest held
Rt - B
DEER REAER BERERIL
2019 2018
Subsidiaries: (Cont'd)
FRA: ()
Beijing Tong Ren Tang (San Gabriel CA) LLC ~ Los Angeles, United States 519%%**#* 519
(‘Tong Ren Tang San Gabriel CA") 15 June 2017
IRRCE (BEEMMNERAR limited liability company
([REEZEEMMN)) KBV
2017464 15H
BREEATF

***  Fquity interests indirectly held by Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine

mn Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine (stock code: 3613.HK) was incorporated
in Hong Kong in 2004, listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange in May
2013, and transferred to the MB of the Stock Exchange in May 2018.
Although the Group owns less than half of the equity interest, it is able to
gain 71.67% of the voting rights of Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine by
virtue of an agreement with Beijing Tong Ren Tang Company Limited
("Parent Company”). Consequently, the Group consolidates Tong Ren
Tang Chinese Medicine.

— &R )

Issued/registered and Principal activities/
paid-up capital place of operation
BRfT/if
REWES FEEBALEL

USD600,000 Wholesale and retail of Chinese
EJL6000007T  medicine products and healthcare

products and provision of Chinese
medical consultation and
treatments

Los Angeles , United States

BERTETEERERER
AR ER B B B IR

XE - BB

B - 2 BRI

R ZE 2 (RERE : 3613H R ST MEE
PREEBIMRY R —=F1 AEEIH
BlIEREMNE FH - YR —N\ERAEEHR
FREMR £ o SEARNEEATERRD /N 50% @ B
mAEEELFRCEROERAR(TRAT])
EREWHA L IEE71.67%H KRRE » FrAKR
SEERCERZESL AR -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z=—F—NF+=A=+—HIFE

1. GENERAL INFORMATION (conrp) 1. —BER @
The following is a list of principal joint ventures and associates asat 31 [N M &H IR —ZE—N\FER_ZE—NE+ =8
December 2018 and 2019: =T HOEZEEERRMEERE
Place/date of
incorporation/kind Percentage of equity  Issued/registered and
Name of legal entity interest held paid-up capital Principal activities
Kt - B BRfT /i
NCET RAEANER BERERDL REKELR FEEHK
2019 2018
Joint ventures:
RERE:
Peking Tongrentang (M) SDN. BHD.? Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia 60%** 60%** MYR1,900,000 Retail of Chinese medicine products
('Tong Ren Tang Malaysia’) 19 January 2001 HRADT  and healthcare products and
T RACE (SRAS) Limited liability company MFERE1,90000075  provision of Chinese medical
BRAR SRAEERER consultation and treatments
((BEEERAEE)) 2001%1A19R TEPEERERRRIAR
BREEAT REHBDERY
Beijing Tong Ren Tang (Thailand) Co,, Ltd#  Bangkok, Thailand 49%** 49%** THB38,000,000 Wholesale and retail of Chinese
(‘Tong Ren Tang Thailand") 23 March 2000 28380000007 medicine products and healthcare
ERAECE (RE)BRAR Limited liability company products and provision of Chinese
((REERE]) ZREEAR medical consultation and
20003 A 230 treatments
BREARAHF BERTETEENERER
R AR ED R R
Union Health International Limited Hong Kong, PRC 50%%** 50%** HKD10,000 Retail of Chinese medicine products
(‘Tong Ren Tang Fook Ming Tang’) 3 May 2004 &%100007c  and healthcare products and
BRERERAR Limited liability company provision of Chinese medical
((R-EEHE]) RERE consultation and treatments
2004%5A3H TEPEERERRRIAR
BREARAH RERBDBRY

**  Equity interests directly held by Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine > ROOAFAC EEEE RS
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z=—F—NF+=-A=1+—HILFE

1. GENERAL INFORMATION (conrp) 1. —BER @
Place/date of
incorporation/kind Percentage of equity  Issued/registered and
Name of legal entity interest held paid-up capital Principal activities
B - A BRI/
ARER REAEH BERERDL REWER TEEHK
2019 2018
Associates:
BELE:
Tong Ren Tang Shanxi Sheye Co, Ltd. Shanxi, PRC 29%* 29%* RMB30,000,000 Manufacturing and breed of musk,
(‘Tong Ren Tang Sheye”) 14 December 2015 AR300000007C  production and sales of related
IRRCERABEERA Limited liability company products
(IA-Z2E%]) HEIR A WEERE 25 MABER
2015F 128148 EERE
BEEARH
¥ Equity interests directly held by the Company K BREOBAR T EERE
@ Although the Company owns more or less than 50% of the equity ~ © BERRAIFEZSERZ N D500 -
interests in these entities, the directors of the Company consider that HEHRIRIES & HE Z:E’E‘f & Txﬁ&
these entities are joint ventures of the Company because decisions BEEEREHLBHAR R LR
about their operating, investing and financing activities are jointly ﬁﬁ?FEEI$ 73!575@? %'JT?’Y‘EEj(?/ 2 UK
controlled by the Company and the joint venture partners in accordance NAEZRBAZERIARAGERE -

with the joint venture agreements rather than under the unilateral
control or significant influence of the Company.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont’d)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 &% —

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of Tong Ren Tang Technologies
Co. Ltd. have been prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRS") and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. The consolidated financial
statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention,
as modified by the revaluation of financial assets at FVOC| and financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss (“FVPL").

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires
the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the
Group's accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of
judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates
are significant to the consolidated financial statements are disclosed in
Note 4.

B D S8 25 3 i e ()

E-NFH+ZA=+—HIFFE

2. EEEFTHORMNE

RAEASHIBRREAN RS BORH
R - BRABHAN - L FEBEREPTIIHR
MATBFERNERER -

2.1 Sk
tRRACERFERBRHERARNEHFYT
BHREREBBERBEY S HRELENMEBE(A
FEBI B ERTHEE - S HMBRERIE
RELNAERE  WERNAAREBE=Z
BHEHEHFTAEMEERENEBEETNIA
AR BEFEEEZYTABENEREE
R EKIELIEET -

REFEBEYBREENNMERRTE
FRETHERESH T ENBEEREER
FERAAEENSETBERBREPITHEE AL -
FREENABREEERYE P REE
HIEHRRELERRERAGTHOEE - &
BoeE4rp 18 -

é%



TO NGERENGEAN G lECHNQLOGIES CO. LTD. /¢

ANNUAL REPORT 2019

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont’d)

o OF 4 255 A Ff e (780)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z=—F—NFE+=A=1—HIFFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contp)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont'd)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

21.1.1 Adoption of new standards, interpretations and
amendments to standards

The Group has adopted the following new standards, interpretations
and amendments to standards which are mandatory for the financial
year beginning on January 2019:

2. EHHEEFTBURME @

2.1 R )

21N B BRENMEENE S

2111 RN FTETE R - $TAEER E R 2 15
=

AEEMRMAR_ZT—NLEF—A—HHEBZ

BTBFE/EE TR M R - FTARE R

R ZBETU0R ¢

Amendments to IAS 12 Income Taxes
BIRR = ET AR 2 12 5% (15280 FriS i

Amendments to IAS 19
BRI 195 (1B

Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement

HEIMEY - HIRSEE

Amendments to |AS 23 Borrowing Costs
SRRt HERSE 23 5% (1820 AR AR

Amendments to |AS 28
R YERISE 28 5% (15 240)

Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures
Hip L a2 REES

Amendments to IFRS 9
B B B s 5 42 BI) 3B 9 5% (15240

Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation
BB R AR ER TR AR SR

IFRS 16 Leases
BB B s R o5 2 R 5 1695 HE

Amendments to IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements

BB B M s 2RSS 11 5% (12200 5 1
IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

BRI B 5 o o 2R R R AR 55 23 5%

FTSi @5t R e T EE 1t

(a)  Impactof adopting IFRS 16 “Leases”

The Group has adopted IFRS 16 Leases retrospectively from 1 January
2019, but has not restated comparatives for the 2018 reporting period,
as permitted under the specific transition provisions in the standard.
The reclassifications and the adjustments arising from the new leasing
rules are therefore recognised in the opening balance sheet on 1
January 2019. The new accounting policies are disclosed in Note 2.28.

On adoption of IFRS 16, the Group recognised lease liabilities in relation
to leases which had previously been classified as “operating leases”
under the principles of IAS 17 Leases. These liabilities were measured at
the present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted using
the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate as of 1 January 2019. The
weighted average lessee’s incremental borrowing rate applied to the
lease liabilities on 1 January 2019 was 4%-6%.

@ HFRABEEUFREEAE 165 HE]
opZ 4

AEEE-_T-NF-A—HRBEWNEHR
R BHREEAE 165REE - BERREER
BEMARBERE  YARY T /\HE
MO BB FETER - At - RERAH
MEEMELNESBRBABE_T—N
F-A—BHNEERERAER - @R
SRTEEROIE - FRME228

AR B RELERE 169 NEER
AIEARIERER e EAE 177 [HE ] MR
A A2l E | »ENHERREES
g - ZEHEABEURNBRBEENZEE -
—NE—F—BRABAESERFRTER
MBEEE- —_T—hhF—A—8 %Z5H
EaEERAMAEANEFSEEERFER
5 4%—6% °
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z=F—NF+=H=+—HIFFZE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2. BEEFHORHE w
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contp)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Contd) 2.1 HRIEHE )

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures (Cont'd) Q1N EBHBENEENE S @)

21.1.1 Adoption of new standards, interpretations and 2QLLIEFRABIFFTER] - SRR ER 214
amendments to standards (Cont’d) HINC »,

(@  Impactofadopting IFRS 16 “Leases” (Contd) (a) FRAWEIBREI L ERIE 165 [THE |

Y (%)

() Practical expedients applied () PFIREANERSIEE K

In applying IFRS 16 for the first time, the Group has used the following  7F & ;X B¢ F Bl B B 75 3 45 22 BI 56 16 5 HY 3@ 72

practical expedients permitted by the standard: o AEEFER TRZEAHTFRANTIE

BESERERE

applying a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with - HEEAEMUSENEEHSHASE
reasonably similar characteristics — IR =E
relying on previous assessments on whether leases are onerous - RREREENEE R T AEEA R
as an alternative to performing an impairment review — there o RERFHENSR — —ZE—hLF—
were no onerous contracts as at 1 January 2019 A—B A EFEEEESR

accounting for operating leases with a remaining lease term of . RZE—NF— A —BEHBHEEHRER
less than 12 months as at 1 January 2019 as short-term leases REANKEHEEREHHEEZE

excluding initial direct costs for the measurement of the right-of- BB B EFEBERNRVGBER
use asset at the date of initial application, and E2H UKk

using hindsight in determining the lease term where the . MREABESEHRIKRIIEAENEE
contract contains options to extend or terminate the lease. ¥ - BIREEEH SR FEAE R 78R o
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z=—F—NF+=-A=1+—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2. EEFFBURME @
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contp)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont'd) 2.1 HiILHE )

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures (Cont'd) 21T HENBEENE T @)

21.1.1 Adoption of new standards, interpretations and 2LLIE AR FAT2ER - FTAFFER ER| 2 15
amendments to standards (Cont’d) ()

(@) Impact of adopting IFRS 16 “Leases” (Cont'd) (a) HKAEBIBREBEREERFE 1659 [HE |

Ji9p-2- 3¢ )]
(i) Measurement of lease liabilities iy HEBEMFE

2019

RMB’000
AR®TR

Operating lease commitments disclosed as at 31 December 2018

—N\F+-A=+—BARENEEHEAH 126,841

Discounted using the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate of at the date of initial application

BRERA B EAABEARIGS B EETHITR 110,328
(Less): short-term leases not recognised as a liability (&%) : f2 B ETHER A —IBEE (18,121)
(Less): contracts reassessed as service agreements (&) : # EFT L AREHENHEES R (581)
Add: adjustments as a result of a different treatment of extension options

o AHERERERATRN S EEMETHHAE 31,442
Lease liability recognised as at 1 January 2019 —Z— A F— A —BEHRANEEEE 123,068

Of which are; A E1F :

Current lease liabilities 7R8I & & & 40,260
Non-current lease liabilities FEi7R 2hTH & & (& 82,808
123,068
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For the year ended 31 December 2019

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contp)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont'd)
2.1.1 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures (Cont'd)

21.1.1 Adoption of new standards, interpretations and
amendments to standards (Cont'd)

(a)  Impactof adopting IFRS 16 “Leases” (Cont'd)

(i) Measurement of right-of-use assets

Upon the initial application of IFRS 16 as of 1 January 2019, prepaid
lease payment in respect of the land use right in the PRC, leasehold
land and leasehold land under finance lease in Hong Kong is
reclassified from leasehold land and land use right, property, plant and
equipment to right-of-use assets.

The associated right-of-use assets were measured at the amount equal
to the lease liability, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or accrued
lease payments relating to that lease recognised in the balance sheet
as at 31 December 2018. There were no onerous lease contracts that
would have required an adjustment to the right-of-use assets at the
date of initial application.

(iv)  Adjustments recognised in the balance sheet on 1 January 2019

The change in accounting policy affected the following items in the
balance sheet on 1 January 2019:

Right-of-use assets — increase by RMB363,035,000

Leasehold land and land use rights — decrease by
RMB164,370,000

Property, plant and equipment — decrease by RMB74,777,000

Deferred income tax assets — increase by RMB24,619,000
Prepayments and other current assets — decrease by
RMB1,442,000

Lease liabilities — increase by RMB123,068,000

Deferred income tax liabilities — increase by RMB24,619,000

Other payables — decrease by RMB622,000

o BF W 5 ek fit ek (%81)
RE-F-NE+ZA=+—FILFE

2. HEEGFBUORTHE @
2.1 HRIEHE )

QINEHBRENMBEENES @
2111 EFRABIFTETER - STAEFER ER| 2 15

&l (#)
(@) HKAEBIPREBEREERFE 1659 [HE |
9-%-4¢ )

(i) FREEENE
R-ZT—NF—A— BEXEBEEGER
LR F 165 PR L HERE  BS
HETHWLRERE T EBNTENHEER
HEHMEET St HFERENEE REE
Y BEMREETHEAFEREELEE -

ERREERBEHERBHESNESE
2 WIRE_F-\F+_HA=1t—HEE
BERAERNEZEERBEOIENHER
MEENRBETARE AEENHEHEAR
BRIFBEAR - THREEEXRHBHE
REEELTTHE -

W R-F-hE-A-BAERRRHE
RHBEREYE-_T-NF—A—BRE
AR THIER

RS E — 1A R ¥ 363,035,000
HEIT AR THERAE — HOARE

164,370,000 7T

EEREEY BERSZE — BLA
¥ 74,777,000 7T

BELEFESHEE — EMARK
24,619,000 7T

ERNREEMRBEE — R ARK
1,442,000 7T

HEBFE — AR 123,0680007C
BEMSHAEBE — EMARK
24,619,000 7T

H b I — B AR ¥ 622,000 7T



TO NGERENGEAN G lECHNQLOGIES CO. LTD. /¢

ANNUAL REPORT 2019

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont’d)

o OF 4 255 A Ff e (780)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z=—F—NFE+=A=1—HIFFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contp)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont'd)
2.1.1 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures (Cont'd)

21.1.1 Adoption of new standards, interpretations and
amendments to standards (Cont’d)

(a)  Impactof adopting IFRS 16 “Leases” (Cont'd)

(v)  Lessoraccounting

The Group did not need to make any adjustments to the accounting
for assets held as lessor under operating leases as a result of the
adoption of IFRS 16.

The other standards did not have material impact on the Group's
accounting policies and did not require retrospective adjustments.

21.12 Standards, interpretations and amendments which are not
yet effective

The following are new/revised standards, interpretations and
amendments to existing standards that have been published and are
relevant and mandatory for the Group’s accounting periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2020, but have not been early adopted by the
Group.

2. EHHEEFTBURME @

2.1 HRAEHE ()

2B BENBEENE S @

2111 RN BIHATER - FFERER| 215
H%)

@) FRWEIBRRT & 2ERE
/3’7?/5 (#&)

v) HBHEAgER

AR ERABIRE B SREERE 165 AKE

EEHCEHEBR MEREEARBENEE

EITEHERERNEMAE -

165 [HE

—
=

A ARENSTRRRBEAF

H fth £
2. Tﬁ*ﬁ;t BIAHEE o

2112/ R EXHIER] - ERERAEET

TOICEMHET T ER  BERRE
B ZEFTEAKER T -_FF—A—H
S KFRN ST AR ARSI BT - E
REEE A IR IR ©

Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8

BIRR & 5t ERSE 1 SRS 8 5% (18250 BEAHER"

Definition of Material®

Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting

B 2 BOIERE

Revised Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting™

MR E 2B ERED

Amendments to |AS 1

Classification of Liabilities as Current/Non-current®

BIR =R 1 5% (1820 B FERBBRENSEC
Amendments to IFRS 3 Definition of a Business™
B B B s s o5 22 B 5 3 5% (5 20) hENTER

[FRS 10 and IAS 28 (Amendments)
or Joint Venture®

I % B 745 T 25 2 I 28 10 5% I
BB = 5T 24 A 28 28 5% (182%)

REENHEBERAE

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate

EERNBEEHENRZAY

IFRS 17

BRI B 7 S 5 R RV 56 17 5% RRRER®?

Insurance Contracts?
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contp)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont'd)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures (Cont'd)

21.12 Standards, interpretations and amendments which are not
yet effective (Cont'd)

i Effective for the accounting period beginning on or after 1 January 2020

@ Effective for the accounting period beginning on or after 1 January 2021
(likely to be extended to 1 January 2022)

@ Effective for the accounting period beginning on or after 1 January 2022

) Effective date to be determined

These new standards, interpretations or amendments to existing
standards are not expected to have a material impact on the Group in
the current or future reporting periods and on foreseeable future
transactions.

2.2 Subsidiaries
2.2.1 Consolidation

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity) over which the
Group has control. The Group controls an entity where the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with
the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated from the date that
control ceases.

B D S8 25 3 i e ()

E-NFH+ZA=+—HIFFE

2. HEEGFBUORTHE @

2.1 HRIEHE )
QINEHBRENMBEENES @
2112/ KL KBV ZER - FERER 155T ()

0 RIE-TE-A-BHzERBNEHEL
2

O RIE—F-A-HIZERENSFHEE
BRI —FZ-——F—HF—H)

O RIB-_F-A-RAxzERARNEHBE
A

5 EMAEFE

TR - R SRR 2 BRI RS H AR
SEEZEMIREBEHRARGAIARLD
ARRGELEATE -

2.2 1AW
221%%@5
Th$$lﬁﬁﬂﬁ¥ﬂ%MWﬁ$

(a%%%ﬁz B)  AKERAS RN

1 i ] 5 51 0 P B o 5 8 1 4
B TAENABRE T ROE N
UL EIRE - AR EEDE BT -

FRAERGREREAKE 2 HE2EAH
AR > TRREZEBIER L2 BERIESH
N
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z=—F—NFE+=A=1—HIFFE
2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contp)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Contd)
2.2.1 Consolidation (Cont'd)
(a) Merger accounting for common control combinations

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the combining entities or businesses in which the
common control combination occurs as if they had been combined
from the date when the combining entities or businesses first came
under the control of the controlling party.

The net assets of the combining entities or businesses are combined
using the existing book values from the controlling parties’ perspective.
No amount is recognised in consideration for goodwill or excess of
acquirers’ interest in the net fair value of acquiree’s identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities over cost at the time of common
control combination, to the extent of the continuation of the
controlling party’s interest.

The consolidated income statements include the results of each of the
combining entities or businesses from the earliest date presented or
since the date when the combining entities or businesses first came
under the control of the controlling party, whichever is shorter.

Transaction costs, including professional fees, registration fees, costs of
furnishing information to shareholders, costs or losses incurred in
combining operations of the previously separate businesses, etc.,
incurred in relation to the common control combination that is to be
accounted for by using merger accounting is recognised as an expense
in the year in which it is incurred.

2. EHHEEFTBURME @

2.2 FAH @)

2215 60RE @)

(a) FEA—EZHTEHEEHENE
EHUBREBIER—ZHTEHNE 0

il

B

BAEBNMBRE - GREZFAHER
REBERZEFTIEHE BREZEAHF -
HEHITME AHERIEHTNEEFE

REABREEETEH - ER—ZH TA 6
BT ElmBk KB RRNAI#RIEE
BERIBERENDFESHRANEED
FEREM 2R - WS T R ERA N ER
AR

BHNBEXRBRERERIAMEXRBZT
BHERIEBEE XX REERARES B

HH?&LAH;%EFL%Z%/’%E’J%M

HEEAAHENEAARZIA—EZEF TEHEA
Eéﬂ‘]ﬁ&%ﬁkﬁ(@%%%%ﬁﬁ CiEME - MR
RIFHEBBHAAN BREHRBILEZEZE
BREEMRARBES) RELFEER
R e
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contp)

2.2 Subsidiaries (cont'd)
2.2.1 Consolidation (Cont'd)

(b) Acquisition method for business combinations other than
common control combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method to account for business
combinations other than common control combinations. The
consideration transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair
values of the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group.
The consideration transferred includes the fair value of any asset or
liability resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement.
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities
assumed in a business combination are measured initially at their fair
values at the acquisition date.

The Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquiree on
an acquisition-by-acquisition basis. Non-controlling interests in the
acquiree that are present ownership interests and entitle their holders
to a proportionate share of the entity’s net assets in the event of
liquidation are measured at either fair value or the present ownership
interests’ proportionate share in the recognised amounts of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components of non-
controlling interests are measured at their acquisition date fair value,
unless another measurement basis is required by IFRS.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition date
carrying value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree is re-measured to fair value at the acquisition date, any gains
or losses arising from such re-measurement are recognised in through
profit or loss.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value
of any previous equity interest in the acquiree over the fair value of the
identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the total of
consideration transferred, non-controlling interest recognised and
previously held interest measured is less than the fair value of the net
assets of the subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain purchase, the
difference is recognised directly in the income statement.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z=—F—NFE+=A=1—HIFFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contp)

2.2 Subsidiaries (cont'd)
2.2.1 Consolidation (Cont'd)

(b) Acquisition method for business combinations other than
common control combinations (Cont’d)

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions
between group companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment
of the transferred asset. When necessary, amounts reported by
subsidiaries have been adjusted to conform with the Group'’s
accounting policies.

(c) Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries without
change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result in a loss
of control are accounted for as equity transactions — that is, as
transactions with the owners of the subsidiaries in their capacity as
owners. The difference between fair value of any consideration paid
and the relevant share acquired of the carrying value of net assets of
the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on disposals to non-
controlling interests are also recorded in equity.

2.2.2 Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less impairment.
Cost includes direct attributable costs of investment. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is required upon
receiving a dividend from these investments if the dividend exceeds
the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period the
dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of the investment in the
separate financial statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the investee’s net assets including
goodwill.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont’d)

For the year ended 31 December 2019

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contp)

2.3 Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence
but not control, generally accompanying a shareholding of between
20% and 50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates are
accounted for using the equity method of accounting. Under the
equity method, the investment is initially recognised at cost, and the
carrying amount is increased or decreased to recognise the investor's
share of the profit or loss of the investee after the date of acquisition.
The Group's investment in associates includes goodwill identified on
acquisition. Upon the acquisition of the ownership interest in an
associate, any difference between the cost of the associate and the
Group's share of the net fair value of the associate’s identifiable assets
and liabilities is accounted for as goodwill.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but significant
influence is retained, only a proportionate share of the amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified to
profit or loss where appropriate.

The Group's share of post-acquisition profit or loss is recognised in the
income statement, and its share of post-acquisition movements in
other comprehensive income is recognised in other comprehensive
income with a corresponding adjustment to the carrying amount of
the investment. When the Group’s share of losses in an associate equals
or exceeds its interest in the associate, including any other unsecured
receivables, the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf
of the associate.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether there is any
objective evidence that the investment in the associate is impaired. If
this is the case, the Group calculates the amount of impairment as the
difference between the recoverable amount of the associate and its
carrying value and recognises the amount adjacent to “share of profit/
loss of investments accounted for using the equity method” in the
income statement.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and downstream
transactions between the Group and its associate are recognised in the
Group's financial statements only to the extent of unrelated investor's
interests in the associates. Unrealised losses are eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of associates have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by
the Group.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z=—F—NFE+=A=1—HIFFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contp)

2.3 Associates (Cont'd)

Gain or losses on dilution of equity interest in associates are recognised
in the income statement.

In the balance sheet of the Company, its investments in associates are
stated at cost less provision for any impairment losses. Income from
associates is recognised by the Company on the basis of dividends
received and receivable.

In the balance sheet of the Company, impairment testing of the
investments in associates is required upon receiving dividends from
these investments if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive
income of the associates in the period the dividend is declared or if the
carrying amount of the investment in the separate financial statements
exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements
of the investee’s net assets including goodwiill.

2.4 Joint arrangements

The Group has applied IFRS 11 to all joint arrangements. Under IFRS 11
investments in joint arrangements are classified as either joint
operations or joint ventures depending on the contractual rights and
obligations of each investor. The Group has assessed the nature of its
joint arrangements and determined them to be joint ventures. Joint
ventures are accounted for using the equity method.

Under the equity method of accounting, interests in joint ventures are
initially recognised at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the
Group's share of the post-acquisition profits or losses and movements
in other comprehensive income. The Group's investments in joint
ventures include goodwill identified on acquisition. Upon the
acquisition of the ownership interest in a joint venture, any difference
between the cost of the joint venture and the Group’s share of the net
fair value of the joint venture’s identifiable assets and liabilities is
accounted for as goodwill. When the Group's share of losses in a joint
venture equals or exceeds its interests in the joint venture (which
includes any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the
Group's net investment in the joint venture), the Group does not
recognise further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made
payments on behalf of the joint venture.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont’d)

For the year ended 31 December 2019

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contp)

2.4 Joint arrangements (Cont'd)

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its joint
ventures are eliminated to the extent of the Group's interest in the joint
ventures. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of the joint ventures have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

In the Company’s balance sheet, its investments in joint ventures are
stated at cost less provision for any impairment losses. Income from
joint ventures is recognised by the Company on the basis of dividends
received and receivable.

In the Company's balance sheet, impairment testing of the investments
in joint ventures is required upon receiving dividends from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income
of the joint venture in the period the dividend is declared or if the
carrying amount of the investment in the separate financial statements
exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements
of the investee’s net assets including goodwill.

2.5 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the
internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker. The
chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the operating segments, has
been identified as the Directors in the Board of Directors that makes
strategic decisions.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z=—F—NFE+=A=1—HIFFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contp)

2.6 Foreign currency translation
(a) Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the Group'’s
entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (“the functional currency’).
The consolidated financial statements are presented in RMB, which is
the Company’s functional and the Group's presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions or valuation where items are re-measured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
recognised in the income statement, except when deferred in other
comprehensive income as qualifying cash flow hedges and qualifying
net investment hedges.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings and
financial assets that are held for cash management purposes are
presented in the income statement within finance costs. All other
foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the income
statement on a net basis within “Other income and gains/losses, net”.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the
fair value was determined. Translation differences on non-monetary
financial assets, such as equities classified as FVOCI, are included in
other comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont’d)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 &% —

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contp)

2.6 Foreign currency translation (Cont'd)
(c) Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group entities (none of
which has the currency of a hyper-inflationary economy) that have a
functional currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are
translated at the closing rate at the date of that balance sheet;

income and expenses for each income statement are translated
at average exchange rates (unless this average is not a
reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates
prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the rate on the dates of the
transactions); and

all resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a
foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign entity
and translated at the closing rate. Currency translation differences
arising are recognised in other comprehensive income.

2.7 Leasehold land and land use rights — accounting
policies applied until 31 December 2018

Leasehold land and land use rights are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses. Cost represents consideration
paid for the rights to use the land for periods varying from 10 to 50
years. Amortisation of leasehold land and land use rights are calculated
on a straight-line basis over the period of the leasehold land and land
use rights. For adjustment recognised on adoption of IFRS 16 on 1
January 2019, please refer to Note 2.1.1.1.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z=—F—NFE+=A=1—HIFFE
2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contp)

2.8 Property, plant and equipment

Land and buildings comprise mainly factories and offices. Leasehold
land held under finance lease and all other property, plant and
equipment are stated at historical cost less depreciation. Historical cost
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of
the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the
Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged to the income statement during the financial
period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate
their cost to their residual values over their estimated useful lives, as

follows:

Buildings 8-50 years
Equipment and machinery 3-15 years
Motor vehicles 4-10 years
Office equipment 2.5-15 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.11).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the
proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised in the income
statement.

Construction in progress (“CIP") represents property, plant and
equipment in the course of construction or pending installation and is
stated at cost less any recognised impairment losses. Cost includes the
costs of construction of property, plant and equipment, and interest
charges arising from borrowings used to these assets during the period
of construction or installation and testing. Construction in progress is
classified to the appropriate category of property, plant and equipment
when completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation of these
assets, on the same basis as other property, plant and equipment,
commences when the assets are ready for their intended use.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont’d)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 &% —

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contp)

2.9 Research and development costs

Research expenditure is recognised as an expense as incurred. Costs
incurred in development projects (relating to the design and testing of
new or improved products) are recognised as intangible assets when it
is probable that the project will be successful considering its
commercial and technical feasibility and its costs can be measured
reliably. Other development expenditures that do not meet these
criteria are expensed as incurred. Development costs previously
recognised as expenses are not recognised as assets in subsequent
periods. Capitalised development costs are recorded as intangible
assets and amortised from the point at which the asset is ready for use
on a straight-line basis over its useful life, not exceeding five years; and
tested for impairment according to Note 2.11.

2.10 Intangible assets
(@) Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries represents the excess
of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value of any
previous equity interest in the acquiree over the fair value of the
identified net assets acquired.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business
combination is allocated to each of the cash-generating units ("CGUs"),
or groups of CGUs, that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination. Each unit or group of units to which the goodwill is
allocated represents the lowest level within the entity at which the
goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes. Goodwill is
monitored at the operating segment level.

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken annually or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate a potential
impairment. The carrying value of the CGU containing the goodwiill is
compared to the recoverable amount, which is the higher of value in
use and the fair value less costs of disposal. Any impairment is
recognised immediately as an expense and is not subsequently
reversed.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contp)

2.10 Intangible assets (Cont'd)

(b) Contractual customer relationships and other intangible
assets

Contractual customer relationships acquired in a business combination
are recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. The contractual
customer relations have a finite useful life and are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is calculated using the
straight-line method by ten years over the expected life of the
contractual customer relationships.

There are two types of other intangible assets: management contract
and exclusive supply contract. These intangible assets acquired have a
finite useful life and are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation.
Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line method over their
expected useful lives.

(c) Patented technology, trademark licence and computer
software

Costs associated with maintaining patented technology, trademark
licence and computer software programmes are recognised as an
expense as incurred. Development costs that are directly attributable
to the design and testing of identifiable and unique patented
technology, trademark licence and software products controlled by the
Group are recognised as intangible assets where the following criteria
are met:

it is technically feasible to complete the product so that it will be
available for use;

management intends to complete the product and use or sell it;
there is an ability to use or sell the product;

it can be demonstrated how the product will generate probable
future economic benefits;

adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete
the development and to use or sell the product are available;
and

the expenditure attributable to the product during its
development can be reliably measured.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont’d)

For the year ended 31 December 2019

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contp)

2.10 Intangible assets (Cont'd)

(c) Patented technology, trademark licence and computer
software (Cont'd)

Directly attributable costs that are capitalised as part of the patented
technology, trademark licence and software product include the
development employee costs and an appropriate portion of relevant
overheads.

Other development expenditures that do not meet these criteria are
recognised as an expense as incurred. Development costs previously
recognised as an expense are not recognised as an asset in a
subsequent period.

Patented technology, trademark licence and computer software
development costs recognised as assets are amortised over their
estimated useful lives, which does not exceed ten years.

2.11 Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life — for example, goodwill or
intangible assets not ready to use — are not subject to amortisation
and are tested annually for impairment. Assets that are subject to
amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which
the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to
sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets
are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash flows (CGUs). Non-financial assets other than goodwill
that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at each reporting date.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z=—F—NFE+=A=1—HIFFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contp)

2.12 Financial assets
(@) Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following measurement
categories:

those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through
Odl, or through profit or loss), and

those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity's business model for managing
the financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be
recorded in profit or loss or OCl. For investments in equity instruments
that are not held for trading, this will depend on whether the Group
has made an irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition to
account for the equity investment at FVOCI.

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only when its
business model for managing those assets changes.

(b) Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on
trade-date, the date on which the Group commits to purchase or sell
the asset. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the financial assets have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership.

(c) Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset at its fair
value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at FVPL, transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.
Transaction costs of financial assets carried at FVPL are expensed in
profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their
entirety when determining whether their cash flows are solely payment
of principal and interest.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z=F—NF+=H=+—HIFFZE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contp)

2.12 Financial assets (Cont'd)
(c) Measurement (Cont'd)
Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the
Group’s business model for managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. There are three measurement categories
into which the Group classifies its debt instruments:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual
cash flows where those cash flows represent solely payments of
principal and interest are measured at amortised cost. Interest
income from these financial assets is included in finance income
using the effective interest rate method. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition is recognised directly in profit or loss and
presented in “Other income and gains/losses, net”. Impairment
losses are presented as separate line item in the income
statement.

FVOCI: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash
flows and for selling the financial assets, where the assets’ cash
flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, are
measured at FVOCI. Movements in the carrying amount are
taken through OCI, except for the recognition of impairment
gains or losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and
losses which are recognised in profit or loss. When the financial
asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in OCl is reclassified from equity to profit or loss.
Interest income from these financial assets is included in finance
income using the effective interest rate method. Impairment
losses are presented as separate line item in the income
statement.

FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or
FVOCI are measured at FVPL. A gain or loss on a debt investment
that is subsequently measured at FVPL is recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which it arises.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z=—F—NFE+=A=1—HIFFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contp)

2.12 Financial assets (Cont'd)
(c) Measurement (Cont'd)
Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value.
Where the Group’s management has elected to present fair value gains
and losses on equity investments in OCl, there is no subsequent
reclassification of fair value gains and losses to profit or loss following
the derecognition of the investment. Dividends from such investments
continue to be recognised in profit or loss as other gains when the
Group's right to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at FVPL are recognised in
profit or loss as applicable. Impairment losses (and reversal of
impairment losses) on equity investments measured at FVOC| are not
reported separately from other changes in fair value.

(d) Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis the expected credit
losses associated with its debt instruments carried at amortised cost
and FVOCI. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether
there has been a significant increase in credit risk. The details of
impairment methodology refer to Note 3.1(b).

2.13 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported
in the balance sheet when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net
basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The
legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and
must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event
of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the company or the
counterparty.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont’d)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 &% —

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contp)

2.14 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost
is determined using the weighted average method. The cost of
finished goods and work in progress comprises raw materials, direct
labour, other direct costs and related production overheads (based on
normal operating capacity). It excludes borrowing costs. Net realisable
value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business,
less estimated cost to completion and applicable variable selling
expenses.

2.15 Trade receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for goods sold or
services performed in the ordinary course of business. They are
generally due for settlement within 120 days and therefore all classified
as current.

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount of
consideration that is unconditional unless they contain significant
financing components, when they are recognised at fair value. The
Group holds the trade receivables with the objective of collecting the
contractual cash flows and therefore measures them subsequently at
amortised cost using the effective interest method. See Note 3.1(b) for
a description of the Group's impairment policies.

2.16 Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents
includes cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks and other short-
term highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months
or less.

2.17 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly
attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity
as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

2.18 Trade payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have
been acquired in the ordinary course of business from suppliers. Trade
payables are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within one
year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer).
If not, they are presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z=—F—NFE+=A=1—HIFFE
2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contp)

2.19 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs
incurred. Borrowings are subsequently carried at amortised cost; any
difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the
redemption value is recognised in the income statement over the
period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an
unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the end of the reporting period.

2.20 Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until
such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted
from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they are incurred.

2.21 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred income
tax. Tax is recognised in the income statement, except to the extent
that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity. In this case the tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

(@) Currentincome tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws
enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date in the
countries where the Company and its subsidiaries, joint ventures and
associates operate and generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation.
It establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts
expected to be paid to the tax authorities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont’d)

For the year ended 31 December 2019

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contp)

2.21 Current and deferred income tax (Cont'd)
(b) Deferred income tax
Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability method, on
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred income tax liabilities are not recognised
if they arise from the initial recognition of goodwill, the deferred
income tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an
asset or liability in a transaction other than a business combination that
at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable
profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance
sheet date and are expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is
settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided on taxable temporary
differences arising from investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures, except for deferred income tax liability where the timing of
the reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by the Group and
it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on deductible temporary
differences arising from investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures only to the extent that it is probable the temporary difference
will reverse in the future and there is sufficient taxable profit available
against which the temporary difference can be utilised.

(c) Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset where there is a
legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and where the deferred income tax assets and liabilities relate
to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the
taxable entity or different taxable entities where there is an intention to
settle the balances on a net basis.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contp)

2.22 Employee benefits
(@) Short-term compensation

Short-term compensation includes salaries, bonuses, allowances and
subsidies, staff welfare etc. When an employee has rendered service to
the Group during the reporting period, the Group shall recognise the
short-term compensation actually incurred as a liability and charge to
the cost of an asset or to profit or loss in the same period.

(b) Pension obligations

The Group participates in a number of defined contribution plans in
the PRC and Hong Kong. The pension plans are generally funded by
payments from employees and relevant group companies. The Group
pays contributions to the pension plans which are calculated as a
certain percentage of the employees’ salaries.

The Group has no legal or constructive obligations to make further
payments once the required contributions have been paid, even if the
plans do not hold sufficient assets to pay all employees the benefits
relating to employee service in the current and prior periods. The
contributions are recognised as employee benefit expense when they
are due. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent
that a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments is available.

(c) Other employee benefits

Other employee benefits include termination benefits which are
payable whenever an employee accepts voluntary redundancy in
exchange for these benefits. In the case of an offer made to encourage
voluntary redundancy, the termination benefits are measured based
on the number of employees expected to accept the offer. Benefits
falling due more than 12 months after the end of the reporting period
are discounted to their present value.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contp)

2.23 Provision

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and the
amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for
future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an
outflow will be required in settlement is determined by considering
the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the
likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision
due to passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

2.24 Revenue recognition

The Group recognises revenue when it satisfies a performance
obligation by transferring control over a product or service to a
customer.

(a) Sale of goods — wholesale

The Group manufactures and sells a range of healthcare products and
Chinese medicines to wholesalers. Sales are recognised when control
of the products has transferred, being when the products are delivered
to the wholesaler, the wholesaler has full discretion over the channel
and price to sell the products, and there is no unfulfilled obligation that
could affect the wholesaler’'s acceptance of the products. Delivery
occurs when the products have been shipped to the specific location,
the risks of obsolescence and loss have been transferred to the
wholesaler, and either the wholesaler has accepted the products in
accordance with the sales contract, the acceptance provisions have
lapsed, or the Group has objective evidence that all criteria for
acceptance have been satisfied.

Revenue from these sales is recognised based on the price specified in
the contract, net of the estimated discounts. And revenue is only
recognised to the extent that it is highly probable that a significant
reversal will not occur.

A receivable is recognised when the goods are delivered as this is the
point in time that the consideration is unconditional because only the
passage of time is required before the payment is due.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contp)

2.24 Revenue recognition (Cont'd)
(b) Sale of goods — retail

The Group also sells products to individual customers through its retail
outlets. Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when a group
entity sells a product to the customer.

For retail sales, the Group operates a chain of retail outlets for selling
products. Sales of goods are recognised when a group entity sells a
product to the customer. Payment of the transaction price is due
immediately. Retail sales are usually in cash or by credit card.

(c) Advertising service

Revenue from providing advertising services is recognised in the
accounting period in which the services are rendered. For fixed-price
contracts, revenue is recognised based on the actual service provided
to the end of the reporting period as a proportion of the total services
to be provided, because the customer receives and uses the benefits
simultaneously. This is determined based on the stage of completion
of service according to contractual agreement or by the reference to
the percentage of completion method. Under this method, the
percentage of completion is identified with proportion of incurred
contract costs to estimated total cost. Advertising services have been
completed within the reporting period.

(d) Service income

The Group provides Chinese medical consultation and treatments in
retail outlets. Service income is recognised over-time in which the
service is provided to the customer and it is settled in cash or by credit
card.

(e) Royalty fee income

Royalty fee income is based on pre-determined rates on the total
turnover of overseas entities for them to use the “Tong Ren Tang”
brand name. Royalty fee is recognised on an accrual basis upon sales
recognised by the overseas entities.

(f)  Financing components

The Group does not expect to have any contracts where the period
between the transfer of the promised goods or services to the
customer and payment by the customer exceeds one year. As a
consequence, the Group does not adjust any of the transaction prices
for the time value of money.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contp)

2.25 Earnings per share
(a) Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:

the profit attributable to owners of the company, excluding any
costs of servicing equity other than ordinary shares

by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding
during the financial year, adjusted for bonus elements in ordinary
shares issued during the year and excluding treasury shares.

(b) Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the
determination of basic earnings per share to take into account:

the after-income tax effect of interest and other financing costs
associated with dilutive potential ordinary shares, and

the weighted average number of additional ordinary shares that
would have been outstanding assuming the conversion of all
dilutive potential ordinary shares.

2.26 Dividend income

Dividends are received from financial assets measured at FVPL and at
FVOCI. Dividends are recognised as other income and gains, net in
profit or loss when the right to receive payment is established.

2.27 Interest income

Interest income on financial assets at amortised cost calculated using
the effective interest method is recognised in profit or loss as part of
finance income, net. Any other interest income is included in other
income and gains, net.

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to
the gross carrying amount of a financial asset except for financial assets
that subsequently become credit-impaired. For credit-impaired
financial assets the effective interest rate is applied to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset (after deduction of the loss allowance).
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contp)

2.28 Leases

As explained in Note 2.1.1.1(a) above, the Group has changed its
accounting policy for leases where the Group is the lessee. The new
policy is described below and the impact of the change in Note
2.1.1.1(@a).

Until 31 December 2018, leases in which a significant portion of the
risks and rewards of ownership were not transferred to the Group as
lessee were classified as operating leases (Note 38). Payments made
under operating leases (net of any incentives received from the lessor)
were charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the period of
the lease.

From 1 January 2019, leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and
a corresponding liability at the date at which the leased asset is
available for use by the Group.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease components. The
Group allocates the consideration in the contract to the lease and non-
lease components based on their relative stand-alone prices. However,
for leases of real estate for which the Group is a lessee, it has elected
not to separate lease and non-lease components and instead accounts
for these as a single lease component.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a
present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net present value of the
following lease payments:

fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any
lease incentives receivable

variable lease payment that are based on an index or a rate,
initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date

amounts expected to be payable by the Group under residual
value guarantees

the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is reasonably
certain to exercise that option, and

payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term
reflects the Group exercising that option.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contp)

2.28 Leases (Cont'd)

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension
options are also included in the measurement of the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in
the lease. If that rate cannot be readily determined, which is generally
the case for leases in the Group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing
rate is used, being the rate that the individual lessee would have to pay
to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value to the
right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment with similar terms,
security and conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group:

where possible, uses recent third-party financing received by the
individual lessee as a starting point, adjusted to reflect changes
in financing conditions since third party financing was received

uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free interest rate
adjusted for credit risk for leases held by the Group, which does
not have recent third party financing, and

makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g. term, country,
currency and security.

The Group is exposed to potential future increases in variable lease
payments based on an index or rate, which are not included in the
lease liability until they take effect. When adjustments to lease
payments based on an index or rate take effect, the lease liability is
reassessed and adjusted against the right-of-use asset.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance cost. The
finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease period so as to
produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance
of the liability for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:

the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability

any lease payments made at or before the commencement date
less any lease incentives received

any initial direct costs, and

restoration costs.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contp)

2.28 Leases (Cont'd)

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of the
asset’s useful life and the lease term on a straight-line basis. If the
Group is reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option, the right-of-
use asset is depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful life. While
the Group revalues its land and buildings that are presented within
property, plant and equipment, it has chosen not to do so for the right-
of-use buildings held by the Group.

Payments associated with short-term leases and all leases of low-value
assets are recognised on a straight-line basis as an expense in profit or
loss. Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less.

Lease income from operating leases where the Group is a lessor is
recognised in income on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Initial
direct costs incurred in obtaining an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the underlying asset and recognised as expense
over the lease term on the same basis as lease income. The respective
leased assets are included in the balance sheet based on their nature.
The Group did not need to make any adjustments to the accounting
for assets held as lessor as a result of adopting the new leasing
standard.

2.29 Dividend distribution

Provision is made for the amount of any dividend declared, being
appropriately authorised and no longer at the discretion of the entity,
on or before the end of the reporting period but not distributed at the
end of the reporting period.

2.30 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where
there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and the
Group will comply with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and recognised in the
income statement over the period necessary to match them with the
costs that they are intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to the purchase of property, plant and
equipment are included in non-current liabilities as deferred income
— government grants and are credited to the income statement on a
straight-line basis over the expected lives of the related assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont’d)

For the year ended 31 December 2019

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk
(including foreign exchange risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk. The Group's overall risk management programme focuses
on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise
potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance. Risk
management is carried out by management of each individual entity
within the Group.

(@) Marketrisk
(i)  Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates internationally and foreign exchange risk arises
from commercial transactions, recognised assets and liabilities and net
investments in foreign operations, primarily with respect to the Hong
Kong dollar ("HKD").

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging policy.
The Group manages its foreign exchange risk by closely monitoring the
movement of the foreign currency rates.

The foreign exchange is mainly as a result of foreign exchange gains/
losses on translation of Hong Kong dollar-denominated financial
instruments held by PRC entities whose functional currency is
Renminbi and translation of Renminbi-denominated financial
instruments held by Hong Kong entities whose functional currency is
Hong Kong dollar. If the respective functional currency of the Group's
entities had strengthened/weakened by 5% against the relevant
foreign currencies, with all other variables held constant, the profit
before income tax for the year ended 31 December 2019 and 2018
would increase/decrease as follows:
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (conrp)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont'd)
(@) Market risk (Cont'd)
(ii)  Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises from long-term borrowings.
Borrowings obtained at variable rates expose the Group to cash flow
interest rate risk which is partially offset by cash held at variable rates.
Borrowings obtained at fixed rates expose the Group to fair value
interest rate risk. The interest rates and repayment terms of the Group's
borrowings are disclosed in Note 21. As at 31 December 2019 and
2018, most of the non-current borrowings were at fixed interest rates
and the operating cash flows are substantially independent of changes
in market interest rates. The current debt level of the Group is relatively
low and the exposure to the fair value interest rate risk is limited.

The management of the Group monitors the interest rate exposure
regularly. The Group has not used any interest rate swaps to hedge its
exposure to interest rate risk.

(b) Creditrisk
(i)  Risk Management

Credit risk is managed on group basis. Credit risk arises from cash and
cash equivalents and deposits with banks and financial institutions, as
well as credit exposures to wholesale and retail customers, including
outstanding receivables and committed transactions.

Cash at bank and short-term bank deposits are deposited with high-
credit-quality financial institutions. The Group has policies that limit the
amount of credit exposure to any financial institution. As at 31
December 2019, majority of the bank deposits are placed with state-
owned banks and listed financial institutions, which are at lower credit
risk.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont’d)

For the year ended 31 December 2019

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (conrp)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont'd)
(b) Credit risk (Contd)

(i)  Impairment of financial assets
Trade and bills receivables

The Group applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring
expected credit losses which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance
for all trade and bills receivables, including those classified to amounts
due from related parties.

Based on shared credit risk characteristics, the assessment of a
significant increase in credit risk is performed on either an individual
basis or a collective basis. When the assessment is performed on a
collective basis, the expected loss rates are based on the
corresponding historical credit losses experienced within this period.
The historical loss rates are adjusted to reflect current and forward-
looking information on macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of
the customers to settle the receivables.

Measurement of expected credit loss on individual basis
The trade receivables relating to customers with known financial
difficulties or with significant doubt on collection of receivables are
assessed individually for provision for impairment allowance. As at 31
December 2019, the balance of loss allowance in respect of individually
assessed receivables was RMB10,434,000 (2018: RMB4,922,000).

Measurement of expected credit loss on collective basis
Expected credit losses are also estimated by grouping the remaining
receivables based on shared credit risk characteristics and collectively
assessed for the likelihood of loss allowance for each group. During the
year ended December 31 2019, the impairment provision of bill
receivables is close to zero, because they have a low risk of default and
the issuer has a strong capacity to meet its contractual cash flow
obligations in the near term. Taking into account the nature of the
customer, its geographical location and its ageing category, the
remaining trade receivables are grouped to two classes and applying
expected credit loss rates to the respective gross carrying amounts of
the trade receivables.
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RAESEEABFRARAEMRER
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #EZE=F—NF1+=A=+—HIEFZ

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (contp) 3. BXRARERE @
3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont'd) 3.1 S e IR )
(b) Credit risk (Contd) (b) AR @

(ii)  Impairment of financial assets (Cont'd) (i) £ EER R AE &)
Trade and bills receivables (Contd) JEW IR R 1R ()

At 31 December 2019 Expected loss rate Loss allowance

R-B-NF+=-RA=t+—H BHRAR BARE

RMB’000
ARBT T

The Company and domestic subsidiaries 2 A R B R T A 7

Within 4 months PA1E A LA 0.3% 1,048
Over 4 months but within 1 year PU1E B = — 3.3% 3,734
Over 1 year but within 2 years —F & — 4 15.0% 11,043
Over 2 years but within 3 years —&F & =4 42.6% 9,266
Over 3 years —F A | 100% 9,875

34,966

Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine & 1= & E &

Within 4 months P& A AR 0% -
Over 4 months but within 1 year PU{E A & —4F 4.0% 344
Over 1 year but within 2 years —F & —4F 4.0% 215
559
Please refer to Note 15 and Note 36(e)(i) for details. S5 B2 MR 15 MM EE 36(e)() ©
Other financial assets at amortised cost AR A GT BB A2t & E

For other financial assets at amortised cost including those classifiedto ¥R B S K AT ENEMEREE (RS
amounts due from related parties, the Group recognises a loss 9 fBRIEWEEE AT RNEHRH D) - ANEHF
allowance equal to 12-month expected credit losses unless there has 1B #2128 BB HR{= AL EITETE - BRIES
been a significant increase in credit risk of the financial assets since  FBE\f& B PR MER B ZBEIE I - BB E(E
initial recognition, in which case the loss allowance is measured at an  FABHIFYTEHRIE L sHIRIBELBYE - HE -
amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses. During the yearended —HWE+-_A=+—HILFE ' BEEEIRE
31 December 2019, the impairment provision is determined based on  #5 12{& B FEER(Z BB L#E T2 - TEH= A
the 12-month expected credit losses which is immaterial. BETEK -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont’d)

For the year ended 31 December 2019

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (conrp)

3.1 Financial risk factors (cont'd)
(b) Creditrisk (Cont'd)
(i)  Impairment of financial assets (Cont'd)

Bill receivables at FVOC/

The Group applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach which uses a lifetime
expected loss allowance for bills receivables at FVOCI. During the year
ended 31 December 2019, the impairment provision of bill receivables
at FVOCl is close to zero.

(iii)  Financial assets at FVPL

The entity is also exposed to credit risk in relation to wealth
management products that are measured at FVPL. The maximum
exposure at the end of the reporting period is the carrying amount of
these investments (RMB31,680,000 ; 2018: RMB29,000,000).

() Liquidity risk

The Group's policy is to maintain sufficient cash and cash equivalents
or have available funding through adequate amount of committed
credit facilities to meet its working capital requirements. The amounts
of borrowings and undrawn credit facilities at the balance sheet date
are disclosed in Note 21 and Note 37 respectively.

Trade and bills payables, amounts due to related parties and other
payables are normally expected to be settled within one year after
receipt of goods or services, while generally no specific credit period is
granted by the suppliers.

o BF W 5 ek fit ek (%81)
RE-F-NE+ZA=+—FILFE

3. BRERERE®

3.1 B LB R &K )

(b) =R @

(ii) & B E EH) R E (&%)

KA IEEGEAREEZE T AEME S K
HIEN Z %

NEE B R A BN B A iR A 2E B BB oSk M S
HiE - BURARBEFEEEEFH T AEM
fRa s A e I R IR R B 17 4B HA MY T8 B
BEEgE -HE_E—-NE+=-_A=+—8”
FFE UAREBEFE8EEFHT AEM
REWENEWNEETBHEREALT AT -

(iii) UAREBETEAREH T ABRHE

MEE
TEREARAAABET=EHEEFH AL
mMEVERBRBREARR - REHK =
REBENRARRKOAELERENEKREE
(B AR 131,680,000 + =B Jle=i
R #29,000,000 7T) °

() HREMMERRE
AEBNBRRERERACNRSIRESEE
Y SR BN A (S EEE ILNESS
CHRMEHEELESTRKNAEAE NEER
BRA - BREME2 P TARE - MR
BHEEREEENEI7R FUEE

o

—REH - HEBTERTREERY B
EEERMERERE - BB AQRHKIA
KREMENTBEERIEYAERBEDN
—FRX -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z=—F—NFE+=A=1—HIFFE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (conrp) 3. BERREBEREw

3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont'd) 3.1 B s &R a0

(c) Liquidity risk (Cont'd) () REIMERE @

The table below analyses the Group's financial liabilities into relevant Ti’%?ﬂﬁﬁ’\ﬁﬁ BremaE &R 1@ Ezloksl
maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the balance  HiZA R - RIEHEEEERXHZ2A R EIHH
sheet date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in E’]ﬂﬁ%ﬁﬂ FHEITON - ERAEE E’J‘:E%Eﬁ
the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. REUHBEMERIRBRE ©

Over 1year Over 2 years

but within but within

Within 1 year 2years 5 years Over Syears
—FUR —FE-F “EZRE EEHUL
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT AREFT ARETT

At31December2019 —ZE—-hE+-A=+—H
Trade and bills payables & BR 7% Z1& 630,693 - - -
Amounts due to related parties &1 BEE# 2\ &) 2R 100,549 - - -
Other payables E 1 {3 511,113 - - -
Borrowings f& 192,124 937,355 259,635 50,488
Lease liabilities & & & 43,684 24,104 33,194 7,174
1,478,163 961,459 292,829 57,662

At31December2018 ZE—-\E+-A=+—H

Trade and bills payables FE{$ Bk X % Z 1 665,038 = | g
Amounts due to related parties & BES 2\ 7] 208 82332 - 2 -
Other payables E At fE 5% 228881 < - -
Borrowings f& 3% 229,298 30,221 833,095 93,289

1,205,549 30,221 833,095 93,289

Except for the bonds included in borrowings, the carrying amounts of R &R A A Tf‘f%’:% REENSREE
the Group's financial liabilities approximate their fair values as the HIBREBEAUE AR BE @ R EIS T
impact of discounting is not significant. EK o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont’d)

For the year ended 31 December 2019

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (conrp)
3.2 Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to
maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, provide returns
for shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to repay borrowings.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This ratio
is calculated as total borrowings divided by total equity. Total
borrowings included “current and non-current borrowings” as shown
in the consolidated balance sheet. Total equity was shown in the
consolidated balance sheet.

Total borrowings f& FX 42 58
Total equity 4z 4#2%E
Gearing ratio & f& b &

£ B 1 5 ek fit e (%81)
RE-F-NE+=AS+—AILFE

3. BRERERE®

3.2 B4 E B
AEENESEERR  2REXREEfE
BLE - UARKRIRERIHRA AL MERR
BAREMZABE  RREFHEENER
EBLUREE A o

RTHEFAFBERER  AEEAEESH
BEXNTREORMNEE RARRRESR
A BITHRIHEEEAREET o

Aﬂ

AEEMARBHLREREER I RiZ
RRIEFARFE R AR ARFE - (EREE
EEHEERBRMAIIN DR KIFERBIE
R BBBR/EHEERBRMT -

As at 31 December

R+=—RA=+—H
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT R AREETIT
1,363,769 1,111,477
7,414,574 7,276,849
18.4% 153%
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z=—F—NFE+=A=1—HIFFE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (conrp)

3.3 Fair value estimation

The Group's financial assets include cash and cash equivalents, short-
term bank deposits, receivables, FVOCI and FVPL. Financial liabilities
include payables, short-term borrowings and long-term borrowings.
Except for long-term borrowings, the carrying amount of the financial
assets and financial liabilities approximate their fair values due to their
short maturities.

Below analyses the Group's financial instruments carried at fair value by
level of the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value.
Such inputs are categorised into three levels within a fair value
hierarchy as follows:

Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets
or liabilities (level 1).

Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that is, as
prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2).

Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable
market data (that is, unobservable inputs) (level 3).

Details on the fair value measurement for bonds, FVOC| and FVPL are
set out in Note 21(b), Note 13 and Note 14 respectively.

3. BRERERE®

3.3 A sefeEfasEr
AEEemEENERAEBRREREARESE
EBY - MERTER - BRFIE - LAaAE
Bt 2 BHEZFT AEMEES WS RARR
EBEFEAHEZFH T ABENEREE M
TREBEEEEMNNE  RHEXRMEHE
Ko BERBEFIIN AEENEREENS
MEEHAREIHEYRE  BitEmEE
HEE AR EBERET -

AT RIBERHE A T BEMN G ERM T ATE
RANBANER DT AKEZAAEE
ARSI A - GLBARBAAEERE
AFRBRIMTN=E :

HREEXABREERTHHRECK
RHE)(E 1) °

BRTF1BAERENRESN  ZEEM
BENABEENEMEA - I RER(E
B ) sk (AR B B1%) (£2 ) -

BEMBEL KR BRMSEEN
WA BIEATERBA) (F3E)

E% WARBEFEBEEH:T AL ML
AR ERMEENMUARBESTEAHE
i ABRNERMEENAABEFBES R
FHIIRHIETE21(0) ~ BIFE13FOPIEE 14
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 &% —

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on
historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future
events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future.
The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal to
the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
addressed below.

(@) Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less estimated cost to completion and
selling expenses. These estimates are based on the current market
condition and the historical experience of manufacturing and selling
products of similar nature. It could change significantly as a result of
changes in consumer preferences and competitor actions in response
to severe industry cycles. Management reassesses these estimations by
each balance sheet date.

(b) Impairment of financial assets

The loss allowances for financial assets are based on assumptions
about risk of default and expected loss rates. The Group uses
judgement in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to
the impairment calculation, based on the Group's past history, existing
market conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the end of
each reporting period. Details of the key assumptions and inputs used
are disclosed in Note 3.1(b).

(c) Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in numerous jurisdictions.
Significant judgement is required in determining the worldwide
provision for income taxes. There are many transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain. The
Group recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based on
estimates of whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will impact the current and deferred
income tax assets and liabilities in the period in which such
determination is made.

B D S8 25 3 i e ()

E-NFH+ZA=+—HIFFE

4. [ S EHG R B

BT HE SRR AN TREBERLR
MEMRFZETHE  BREEHIBERTE
SEARREMNSERA -

$’$I1T5E?H’Eﬁ1ﬁ“*ﬁﬂfﬁ““ )
HETIEES ’J"\Eﬁiﬁ\,\ﬁf’% %*HH 2
?E?W%Aﬁ@lTﬂﬁﬂﬁlifﬂﬁféﬁ?ﬂ%%ﬂ@
RREEEL BERFH BN G MRR R T

(@) 0T 52 B
FENAERFENRENBERBBRESD
WA EE  RAFERORAREEE
A o ZFEMETTIER B AT SR Kk BE R
HERBEMNEER - BrEERREE
EHNNERBRFET REREBRRITELS
MERME TR ERE L - EREREE
S FEAR B EM AR S M

(b) 4 ih% % Wi

T R0 B B R BHE R E Y E AR B A1 FE B
BARERNBREMAER - AEBEEMEBRE
MRBAENEAGE  BERASEUTE
5 MAMBIKEURRSREBHROATE
MEEETETHE - AEBAERNBRER
Mg AMBEFBERERHIFES D) o

() PifiBi
AEEFEELERERBRBMNAEN - £
BEERIRME %R%é‘f%ﬁﬁ CEEERERY
o B X GNAER P RN RIEHEE
FEEETEEN ANEBBREBEHERE B!

RSN RV (AT - SRR S E AT IR B #E
REE - ML FEHNRERBRREARZY

nEﬁ*E”J@%ETH lit EERBEEFERILE
BEHRNEHREMSHEENERE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z=—F—NFE+=A=1—HIFFE

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Directors in the Board of Directors are the Group’s chief operating
decision-maker. Management has determined the operating segments
based on the information reviewed by the Directors in the Board of
Directors for the purposes of allocating resources and assessing
performance.

The Directors in the Board of Directors consider the business from an
operational entity perspective. Generally, the Directors in the Board of
Directors consider the performance of business of each entity within
the Group separately. Thus, each entity within the Group is an
operating segment.

The reportable operating segments derive their revenue primarily from
(i) the manufacture and sale of Chinese medicine of the Company in
Mainland China (the “Company” Segment), and (i) Tong Ren Tang
Chinese Medicine engaged in manufacturing, retail and wholesale of
Chinese medicine products and healthcare products, and provision of
Chinese medical consultation and treatments outside Mainland China
and wholesale of healthcare products in Mainland China (“Tong Ren
Tang Chinese Medicine” Segment).

Other companies are engaged in processing and purchasing of
Chinese medicinal raw materials, sales of medicinal products, medical
services and advertising, etc. They do not form separate reportable
segments as they do not meet the quantitative thresholds required by
IFRS 8.

The Directors in the Board of Directors assess the performance of the
operating segments based on revenue and profit after income tax of
each segment.

5. oEMEE

EXeEER/AEENTIERRE - BIEE
ERECEFTSEFTEZANDEERMT
ERROBEBEELENE -

EXeEENRKLERAEMERSTNLR -
—RmE EFREFEREESEARARE
BEBHXRR - A SEASEEHZ —

BLEDER -

BERLLEDHHORATERAN : VAR F
ERBAMEEMHEE T EER([FQH ]
2ER) - (i) F{= 2 B BB SME S AP BLE MM
REGWLE ZTERBBIREPBEDE
R ARt ERER((R-EEZE] H
B

Hi AR EEEMI R B M - %o
HE  BERGNESEER - ARTHE
BIFR B S E A B RA TN EREER
Ko AMTMEREBNRSE DB

EZe 5 RBRANMBENBEFEESL S
D EBHYERIR -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z=—F—NF+=A=+—HIFE

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (conrp) 5. EbfEE w

The segment information provided to the Directors in the Board of HIE-_Z—NE+_A=1+—HIEFE ' [
Directors for the reportable segments for the year ended 31 December T E & % HI2H G IR E H LAY D ZE L0

2019 is as follows: &
Tong Ren
Tang Chinese All other

The Company Medicine Segments Total

N BLEEE  HEEEID At

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

AR¥TR AR%BTR ARBTR ARBTR

Segment revenue 2 SB4TA 2,798,841 1,262,714 1,064,585 5,126,140
Inter-segment revenue 2 B4 A (93,600) - (556,091) (649,691)
Revenue from external customers X B SN P RIMA 2,705,241 1,262,714 508,494 4,476,449

Timing of revenue recognition Yt A B2 05

Ata point in time £ X — B2 2,705,158 1,212,240 476,373 4,393,771
Over time £~ RARER 83 50,474 32,121 82,678
2,705,241 1,262,714 508,494 4,476,449
Profit for the year £ FI 231,858 507,630 1,902 741,390
Interest income | EHA 10,545 37,905 1,309 49,759
Interest expense | 8.3 (33.427) (3,702) (3,896) (41,025)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment B REEY) - BRI XENE (43,986) (14,197) (32,639) (90,822)
Amortisation of right-of-use assets £ F i 4 B4 (3,940) (45,155) (5,806) (54,901)
Amortisation of other long-term assets -1 & H1 & R4 (1,627) (10,382) (2,330) (14,339)
Provision for impairment of inventories 77 & Bk B (& 5T 12 (24,165) (6,319) (18,130) (48,614)
Provision for impairment of receivables 5k (& &1 17 (12,146) (2,992) (4,975) (20,113)
Share of profit/(losses) of investments accounted for using the equity method
FEREREARNREN N/ (BB HE 279 (1,735) - (1,456)
Release of foreign currency translation differences upon liquidation of a joint venture
AEMFEEMAR NERRTEER - 846 - 846
Income tax expense FT75 % & F (77,268) (98,886) (5,961) (182,115)

Segment assets and liabilities 7 S E EF & &

Total assets B & 5,545,840 2,812,631 2,111,499 10,469,970
Investments accounted for using the equity method & A A SRR & 9,066 16,612 - 25,678
Additions to non-current assets” FEiR E) & FE A2 N1 206,991 34,205 303,747 544,943
Totalliabilities & & 2,264,221 328,404 462,771 3,055,396
m Excluding investments accounted for using the equity method, financial 1 TEEIREREZAERNIESE £ T AEMELER

instruments and deferred income tax assets. BIEE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z—F—NF+-A=+—HILFZ

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (contn) 5. ZEMMER @
The segment information for the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-—ZE—NE+-_A=+—RHIEENH
is as follows: HERWT -
Tong Ren
Tang Chinese All other
The Company Medicine Segments Total
NG ACERZE  AtEEsH @it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFTL ARBTT ARETT AREFTL
Segment revenue 73 AEYA 3,215,806 1,284474 1,051,793 5552073
Inter-segment revenue 7 EE4A (33,987) = (458448) (492435)
Revenue from external customers 7 B MR % F BMA 3181819 184474 593,345 5059638

Timing of revenue recognition Yt AT A% i

Ata point in time £ £ — R 22 3,181,819 1231679 550,264 4963,762
Over time FE X — I RARER - 52,795 43081 95,876
3,181,819 1,284474 593,345 5059638
Profit for the year FE F1 459353 509,080 37420 1,005,853
Interest income A SHA 10016 20505 1,285 31,806
Interest expense 7l 8 3 it (12082) (16) (2.866) (14964)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 55 /& RiEEY) « BE KL ENE (33071) (20103) (22663) (75837)
Amortisation of prepaid operating lease payments T 48 & 1t 1 S 7R 2 55 (1,901) (459) (1.271) (3631)
Amortisation of other long-term assets 21 & #1 & R (1171) (5552) (2243) (8966)
Provision for impairment of inventories 77 & Bk B (& 5T 12 (26525) (1,204) (16521) (44,250)
Provision for impairment of receivables 28 Ef& 5t (2213) - (3842) (6,055)
Share of profit/(losses) of investments accounted for using the equity method
FEREREARNREN NG/ (BB HE 276 @14) - (138)
Release of foreign currency translation differences upon liquidation of a joint venture
AERFEEMAR INERRTEER - (1442 - (1,44
Income tax expense FT5H & (89,068) (101,233) (10916) (201,217)

Segment assets and liabilities 20 & EME &

Total assets 1 & # 5116939 2782233 187069 9,769,866

Investments accounted for using the equity method R R E ARRIIR & 8787 17,682 - 26469

Adaitions to non-current assets!” JE R EV A RO SE A0 182,720 45,063 3423 451,206

Total liabilties @R & | 184659 126454 519973 2493017

m Excluding invéstménts accounted for using the equity method, financial T’E%E%ﬁmﬁ)\gﬁﬂ’ﬁxﬁ SR T B TR AT
instruments and deferfed income tax assets. BHEE -

\
A\
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont’d)

For the year ended 31 December 2019

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (conrp)

Sales between segments are carried out at arm'’s length. The revenue
from external parties reported to the Directors in the Board of Directors
is measured in a manner consistent with that in the income statement.

The amounts provided to the Directors in the Board of Directors with
respect to total assets and liabilities are measured in a manner
consistent with that of the financial statements. These assets are
allocated based on the operations of the segment and the physical
location of the asset.

Revenues from external customers are derived from the sales of
medicine and provision of services. The breakdown of sales of medicine
by region is provided in Note 25.

The total of the non-current assets other than financial instruments and
deferred income tax assets located in Mainland China is
RMB2,415,712,000 (2018: RMB1,980,384,000), and the total of these
non-current assets located in other countries and regions is
RMB423,351,000 (2018: RMB346,666,000).

During the 2019 and 2018 financial year, revenue from two customers
each accounted for ten percent or more of the Group’s total external
revenue. These revenues are mainly attributable to the Company
Segment and Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine Segment. The
revenues from these customers are summarised below:

£ B 1 5 ek fit e (%81)
BE=F-NE+=AS+—ALFE

5. EbfEE w

DR FMHERE AN R ZRANETT < @
EEEETMEIBBMAREN B RAD
WA—BEZE R -

MESSEFRHEAHREENRAGENS
B RRREMBHRR -—BORETN - 1t
FEEREBED BRKETE BRI IEE
g i

KANBE P W AR B ZmiE & KRR
H o ERHEDE DT KIFE25 PR ©

URFBERGReMEENMNEEMGHE
EZINERDEELERERSARK
241571200075 = =T — A SA
1,980,384,0007C ) * ML A E A Bl R K& b & &Y
hEIERBE EARE A A AR 423351,000
T(ZE—N\F : AR 346,666,0007T) °

TE-NFRZZE-N\FREZZEFHK
ABMAEEREIINBEFLPHNBKRABTS Z
TR E c ZZFERAETEREARRA D KA
CEREESI - REZZERF AR
e

2019 2018

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥ T ARETT

Entities under control of ultimate holding company B #%3% A% A &) Fr 2= i 79 & 88 959,408 1,119,901
Customer A Group B A& 540,294 583,586
1,499,702 1,703,487
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z—F—NF+-A=+—HILFZ

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (conrp) 5. EEE @

Change in accounting policy EiR s Y

The adoption of the new leasing standard described in Note 2.1.1.1a)  BRAR BT 5E 2.1.1.1() 7 T2 & 2 Bl ¥ AN 5 5 2=
had the following impact on the segment disclosures in the current  BIEETREZZWNT o

year.

Profit before Segment

incometax  Segment assets liabilities

R PSRRI DEPEE DEEE

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTT ARETT ARBTT

The Company 282 &) (44) 1,555 1,599
Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine [E]{= & B %% (2,524) 86,819 88,525
All other Segments EAth 375 5 20 (456) 9,391 9,847
(3,024) 97,765 7]

Comparative segment information has not been restated. As a  tYEHR D 2[{= B A HEITE M o F it - J:%_‘ﬁﬁ
consequence, the segment information disclosed for the items noted I EH S Z 2 HE F—FAIFENEE
above is not entirely comparable to the information disclosed for the  5gZAJ £, o

prior year.
6. LEASEHOLD LAND AND LAND USE 6. FHE K+ Hbfi I AE
RIGHTS

The interests in leasehold land and land use rights represent prepaid & +# &z T+ #(F RS RIBEMN KL HHE
operating lease payments and their net book values are analysed as ~ FXIBFMEBREEFE @ &SR0 :
follows:

2019 2018

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥T T ARBTFT

Opening net book amount S ¥ 8R I /F1E 164,370 152,193

Adjustment for change in accounting policy (Note 2.1.1.1) @ st BUR B E (KisE2.1.1.1) (164,370) =

Restated at 1 January R — A — HE a1 - 152,193

Additions 30 - 15,803

Amortisation # 5 & A - (3,826)

Disposals /& 32 - (429)

Exchange differences [E ¥, = %8 - 629

At 31 December R+ = A=+—H - 164,370
As at 31 December 2019, no (2018: no) land use rights are pledgedas  MNZE—NF+ZA=+—H ' B(ZFT—N
securities for the Grodx{_s.iﬁank borrowings (Note 21). EF o) T H{E R REE AR ITE AR (KM

5X21) o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont’d)
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z=—F—NF+=A=+—HIFE

7. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 7. EREKEEY -~ MFE M

Buildings,

freehold land and

leasehold land
heldunder  Equipment and Office
finance lease machinery  Motor vehicles equipment

25
JgRLt

EELH BERE BH1A i kIR fit
RVB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
ABBTL  ARBTR  ARMFIT ARETR ARETm ARRTR

At1January 2018 R=E-\F-A -

Cost LA 689,977 582,235 34937 57804 990935 2,355,888
Accurmulated depreciation 23T (224626) (375,509) (24749) (39,805) 3 (664085)
Accumulated impaiment JHB2E/ (5,042) (1188) - 21) - (1750
Net book amount BRI 5 460309 194883 10,792 17378 990935 1674297

Yearended 31 December 2018 528 - NET-B=T-RALEE

Opening net book amount & 185 (& 460309 194883 10792 17378 990935 1674297
Additions 321 36540 4857 762 9111 374535 425805
Transferred from (P ER T2 & A 7513 15,548 1297 1218 (25576) -
Disposals /52 (619) (1,339) (120 (112 - (2082)
Depreciation 77 & (26247) (37831) (3409) (8354) e (75837)
Exchange differences 3 £ % 6431 429 = 140 = 7,000
Closing net book amount B3R BR L 5 (& 48391 176651 932 19381 1339894 2009183

At31December 2018 R=F-N\E+ZA=1-H

Cost AR 741935 574715 35381 67807 13398%4 2759752
Accumulated depreciation Z5HTE (252,781) (386,036) (26,055) (47812) = (712,684
Accumulated impaiment JiE2Ef (5209) (12028) - (634) < (17885)

Net book amount BRI 5 483,031 176651 9326 19381 1339804 2029183
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #EZE=F—NF1+=A=+—HIEFZ

7. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 7. BEKEZEY - WE R w

(CONT'D)

Buildingsand  Equipmentand Office
Freehold land machinery  Motor vehicles equipment cp Total

BFR

KA¥RLH BERE E8IR HORE ERIR aif
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARRTR  ARBTR  ARMTR  ARWTR  ARRTR  ARRTR

Yearended 31 December 2019 BZ-E-NET-B=T-RALEE

Opening net book amount EE4TER AT/ (E 483,931 176,651 9326 19,381 1,339,894 2,029,183
Adjustment for change in accounting policy (Note 2.1.1.1) Bt BUREE (Biz21.11) (74,777) - - - - (74,777)
Restated at 1 January 18— A — A Zi 409,154 176,651 9326 19,381 1,339,894 1,954,406
Additions 1 3217 7395 1,210 4,068 421,706 437,59
Transferred from (P £ T2E A 1,086,336 627,843 5973 16473 (1,736,625) -
Disposals /5% (819) (1,459) (183) (1,082) - (3,503)
Depreciation #7& (28,380) (51,554) (3,105) (7,783) - (90,822)
Eichange diferences [ 5 Z 5 3,007 254 16 217 - 3,584
Closing net book amount B3R BT /& 1,472,605 759,130 13,237 31,314 24,975 2,301,261

At31December 2019 R=E-AE+=A=1-H

Cost BR R 1,733,657 1,183,409 41462 85,234 2,975 3,068,737
Accumulated depreciation 251475 (261,052) (412,161) (28,225) (53,518) - (754,956)
Accurnulated impaiment il E £ - (12,118) - (402) - (12,520)
Net bookamount BRI %(E 1,472,605 759,130 13,237 31,314 24975 2,301,261

Depreciation expenses were charged to the consolidated income JFEZRESHIERFT|RUOT -
statements as follows:

2019 2018

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR%T R ARETTT

Cost of sales 85 A A% 69,049 50,182
Distribution expenses $4 & & 7,995 11,199
Administrative expenses & ¥ £ Fi 13,778 14,456
90,822 75,837
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont’d)

For the year ended 31 December 2019

7. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(CONT'D)

During the year, the Group has capitalised borrowing costs amounting
to RMB20,617,000 (2018: RMB19,467,000) on qualifying assets.
Borrowing costs were capitalised at the weighted average rate of its
general borrowings of 3.06% (2018: 3.10%).

As at 31 December 2019, bank borrowings are secured by land and
buildings with carrying amount of RMB9,438,000 (2018: RMB9,562,000)
(Note 21).

8. LEASES

(@) Right-of-use assets

At31December2018 R=—ZF—N\F+=-H=+—H
Adjustment for change in accounting policy (Note 2.1.1.1)

£ B 1 5 ek fit e (%81)
RE-F-NE+=AS+—AILFE

7. FERNEZREY - BE R @

ERFEHR  EENEGEREEEEARE
FRAEENR20617000T(ZF— )\4F :
AR ®19,467,0007T) ° B ARE — K E
FREYINHE ST 1 FE R 2R 3.06% KETERNE (=
Z—)\F :310%) °

TR B e = e IR e S
BEEEEARE 9438000 (ZE—N\FE : A
R #£9562,0007T) B £ i &2 48 F1E & 4 (K
¥21) o

8. HE
(@) 8 PR A

Leasehold land
e+
RMB'000
ARETTT

Total

A
AR

Buildings
BF
RMB'000
ARBTT

RMB'000
ARETT

SETBEEE (Fiak21.1.0) 119,628 243407 363,035
At 1January 2019, asrestated R —ZE— L F—HA—H > il 119,628 243,407 363,035
Additions 38 il 20,866 72,520 93,386
Disposals J3 4> (414) (538) (952)
Depreciation #T& (46,286) (9417 (55,703)
Exchange differences [ ¥, Z= %8 2,299 1,934 4233
Closing net book amount Hi R iR F{E 96,093 307,906 403,999
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #EZE=F—NF1+=A=+—HIEFZ

8. LEASES (contp)
(b) Lease liabilities

8. MHEw
(b) A1

31 December 1 January
2019 2019
—E-hEF —E—NF
+=A=+—8 —H—H
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARETTT
Lease liabilities (Note 35(c) & & & (FI5E£35(0)
Current 7 &) 40,322 40,260
Non-current JE/7E &) 59,649 82,808
99,971 123,068
(c) The total cash outflow for leases in 2019 was RMB95,921,000. () 2019FERMBEEXLENBEEREEA

(d) The Group’s leasing activities and how these are
accounted for

The Group leases various property, plant and land use rights. Rental
contracts are typically made for fixed periods of 6 months to 20 years,
but may have extension options as described in Note (e) below.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide
range of different terms and conditions. The lease agreements do not
impose any covenants other than the security interests in the lease
assets that are held by the lessor. Leased assets may not be used as
security for borrowing purposes.

(e) Extension options

Extension options are included in some property leases across the
Group. These are used to maximise operational flexibility in terms of
managing the assets used in the Group's operations. The majority of
extension options held are exercisable only by the Group and not by
the respective lessor.

A ¥ 95,921,000 7T °

() 7SS o A L 55 1B B I it o B

AEBHEETTHE BMEMIMERE -
HEARABERETHR 6MAZE20FT
E R EE TXMiE e Ml nEHERE
& -

HEHMREESRHENER DETEK -
WA RE B & TR R G - HEHHET
FBESHBAARSENEEEENERNEZ
SNIEZRA) - HEBETSBIEEFIER -

(e) HUHLEFEHE

AEENMYBHERE R S EHEERE -
NEASBEEMBNEEEETERAE
B S E@EMBE RN - AEBEREHARI
DEHEERERAEETE  MIFMERE
B AR ATTHE
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z=—F—NF+=A=+—HIFE

9. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 9. WMIEEE

Patented

technology,

Contractual trademark
customer licence and
relationships computer

Goodwill and others software
BRI
EFERE BEER
BERERHM STEREG &%
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETTT ARETTT

At1January 2018 R—Z—\E—fA—H

Cost A 44442 29,118 12,939 86,499
Accumulated amortisation 2 &t #5 = (4,390) (6,640) (11,030)
Net book amount BR EI/FE 44,442 24728 6,299 75469

Year ended 31 December 2018 BZE=—E—-N\F+-A=+—-HLEE

Opening net book amount EA ¥R FE 44442 24728 6,299 75469
Additions 3 = = 3,008 3,008
Amortisation 35 2 = (5552) (1,963) (7515)
Exchange differences [ 5 Z %8 1992 1036 - 3,028
Closing net book amount EiR BRI {E 46434 20212 7,344 73,990

At31December 2018 A= E—\E+-A=1+—H

Cost AN 46,434 30,583 15,947 92,964
Accumulated amortisation 2 5284 = (10371) (8603) (18,974)
Net book amount BRI /FE 46434 20212 7,344 73990

Yearended 31 December 2019 BZE - N &E+-A=1+—HLEE

Opening net book amount HA ¥R R & 46,434 20,212 7,344 73,990
Additions 451 - - 3,695 3,695
Disposals J&i 4 - - (37) (37)
Amortisation % $5 2 F - (10,381) (2,330) (12,711)
Exchange differences [& 5, Z %8 968 247 - 1,215
Closing net book amount H R AR & 47,402 10,078 8,672 66,152

At31December 2019 R=E—h&E+=A=+—H
Cost AR 47,402 31,136 19,596 98,134
Accumulated amortisation 2 5485 - (21,058) (10,924) (31,982)

Net book amount B E1 /¥ & 47,402 10,078 8,672 66,152
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z=—F—NFE+=A=1—HIFFE

9. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (contp)

The goodwill acquired in the acquisitions of Honour Essence and Tong
Ren Tang Chengdu during 2015 is allocated to each unit respectively.
As at 31 December 2019, goodwill allocated to Tong Ren Tang Chinese
Medicine Segment and other segments is RMB44,269,000 and
RMB3,133,000 respectively. The recoverable amounts of these CGUs are
determined based on value-in-use calculations. These calculations use
cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved by
management covering a five-year period. Cash flows beyond the five-
year period are extrapolated using estimated growth rates of 3% and
0% for Honour Essence and Tong Ren Tang Chengdu respectively.
Other key assumptions used for value-in-use calculations include 16%
(2018: 16%) and 12% (2018: 12%) discount rates applied to the cash
flow projections of Honour Essence and Tong Ren Tang Chengdu
respectively.

Management determined annual volume growth rate for Honour
Essence ranging between -7% to 12% (2018: 1% to 5%), covering over
the five-year forecast period to be a key assumption. The volume of
sales in each period is the main driver for revenue and costs. The
annual volume growth rates are based on past performance and
management's expectations of market development. The discount
rates used are pre-tax and reflect specific risks relating to the relevant
business.

Amortisation expenses were charged to the consolidated income
statements under administrative expenses and cost of sales.

9. EBEEREw

BT —AFWEREREZMELCEKEE
i%ﬁ%?%J‘miiﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁo

A_TE-NF+ZA=+—H8 ' SERIIRFE
il#“ﬂﬂﬁ@%ﬁﬂﬂmﬁﬁ 3 RlA A
R % 44269,000 70 A1 A ¥4 3,133,000 7T © iﬁi
ENETHIRODSBREFHERTE
SEARAFABAERESR=TE8 {TKFEE.IETHZ
ﬁmﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁoﬁF 2 S5 MEICE/K
R BZAFHAIRERE D BB 3% K& 0%
FfEEHIEREEHESE - REESMELCE
REBEFRAEENGTERERNEMmBARR
HERFEAERSRETEADBIER 16% (=
T—)\F 16%) 212%(=F — J\F : 12%)
HIREIRE o

EIEEREALZE S AF Y REENFH
ERERLE TEZ N (ZE—N\F  1%2
5%) = — EERER - SHNEERKRAM
RANFERFHZE - HEWLREEREA
ARFANEEESMSERNBHMTE -
FIER MBI R ARAILL X - WRMAEETT
¥HBTRE -

BHEREAHABERAFTATEZRNE
KR ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z=—F—NF+=A=+—HIFE

10. SUBSIDIARIES

Material non-controlling interests

As at 31 December 2019, the total non-controlling interest is
RMB1,887,319,000 (2018: RMB1,960,197,000), of which
RMB1,570,962,000 (2018: RMB1,681,109,000) is for Tong Ren Tang
Chinese Medicine. The non-controlling interest in respect of others is
not material.

Set out below are the summarised financial information for Tong Ren
Tang Chinese Medicine that has non-controlling interests that are

material to the Group.

10. HFAARIMHE
CIWNE Xy kiR £
R-B—AE+-A=+—8 ' JEiehiEsE
mE AR A AR 1887319000 (=ZZF—/\
F£: ANE¥1960,1970007C) * HP AR ¥
157096200 mC( = & — )\ F£: A B ¥
1,681,109,0007C) BRI E B %% - EfhH
HIFEFEHI RS T ER o

BA T B 8 22 7 5 B 2B K 0 SRR A 25
BT R E -

Summarised balance sheet BN
Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine
E{= = B %
As at 31 December
W+=HA=+—H
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ TR ARET T
Current &
Assets & 2,369,653 2,410,179
Liabilities & f& (276,406) (127,212)
Total current net assets 7 20/ & B 44 %8 2,093,247 2,282,967
Non-current JER B
Assets & = 442,978 372,054
Liabilities & & (58,767) (5,194)
Total non-current net assets FE7 B H & E 4258 384,211 366,360
Non-controlling interests FE12 il |4 #E 25 (95,076) (103,917)
Net assets JF & B 2,382,382 2,545,910
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #EZE=F—NF1+=A=+—HIEFZ

10. SUBSIDIARIES (conro) 10. HTAAKE @
Summarised statement of comprehensive income AW

Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine

[ER =

2019 2018

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR%T R ARBT T

Revenue YZ A 1,262,714 1,284,474

Profit before income tax Bk A5 %% Al 718 606,516 610,313

Income tax expense FT{S 7% & FH (98,886) (101,233)

Profit for the year 4 [& FIJ 507,630 509,080

Other comprehensive income E b4z & W zs 49,104 106,914

Total comprehensive income 47 & Wz & &1 556,734 615,994
Total comprehensive income allocated to non-controlling interests

frE W am D BL 2 IR St R 352,677 388,930

Dividends paid to non-controlling interests J& B 3% f<F F JF4% i) [ b 25 462,825 97,303
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z=—F—NF+=A=+—HIFE

10. SUBSIDIARIES (contp) 10. HTFAAIMEE @
Summarised statement of cash flows BEeRBERWHE

Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine

[E1= E Bl %

2019 2018

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥ T ARETT

Cash generated from operations % & /& Eh UK 2 A9 IR & 490,297 601,795

Income tax paid X1 B FT1S 5% (5,408) (112,728)

Net cash generated from operating activities & ‘& E BN U E K IR & 2 /5 58 484,889 489,067
Net cash generated from/(used in) investing activities

REZRSWE, ()R REFHE 735,277 (506,209)

Net cash used in financing activities & E B S (N HIR &R 2 F5E (773,230) (146,468)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Re kR SEWHFEM CRd) 446,936 (163,610)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 38 & &R & E B MK F W54 58 481,762 627,296
Exchange gains on cash and cash equivalents 38 & 3R & Z(E Y& 55115 17,904 18,076
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 3R & & 38 & L EY M F KRR EE 946,602 481,762

The information above is the amount before inter-company DA B EUER B AN R KNS5 o
eliminations.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z=—F—NF+=-A=1+—HILFE

11. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING
THE EQUITY METHOD

1. HEREARNRE

As at 31 December

Wihz=H="+ =H
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREFT
Joint ventures (Note (a)) & & 122 (Fit 5% (a)) 16,612 17,682
Associates (Note (b)) B = 1b % (KF3E (b)) 9,066 8,787
25,678 26,469
(@) Interests in joint ventures @ REBLEZWZ
The Group has interests in a number of individually immaterial joint ~ ANEFE#HE A A TEBITE AR S 21> /)
ventures. The following table analyses, in aggregate, the movement of 2§ o NROMANEF S LFAEZELEL 0 HE
the carrying amount of the Group's interests in these joint ventures, E’]% HEHESSMEAZES S ENE

and its share of results, other comprehensive income and
commitments of these joint ventures.

H iR & Woan &g o

2019 2018

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥T T AREFT

At 1January A—A—H 17,682 17,359

Share of losses for the year fE 1l & [Z 18 2K K015 58 (1,735) 414
Release of foreign currency translation differences upon liquidation of a joint venture

BEXBEMBR 2 INERKEE 846 (1,442)

Exchange differences JMNE& ¥R 3% = 28 (181) 2,179

At31December R+ —A=+—H 16,612 17,682

The Group's share of joint ventures’ commitments 2S5 B fE{h & & (b 2 & 1D 58 4,733 4,389

Notes: Hiat -

(i) The joint ventures are private companies and there are no quoted (i)
market prices available for their shares.

(ii) There are no contingent liabilities relating to the Group's interests in the (i)
joint ventures.

(i) Details of the joint ventures are set out in Note 1 to the consolidated (iii)
financial statements.

SECERIFLETAR - HRMDEETISRE -

WEAPASERAALECEERNREEME

BhXOFMERCES FHMBREMEE T
%LM&E@, o
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z=—F—NF+=A=+—HIFE

11. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING 1. BHEREABERNRE @
THE EQUITY METHOD (conrp)

(b) Interests in associates (b) JABREMEZ LR
The Group has interests in a number of individually immaterial ~ZANEBEEHF & TEBITE A SN A/
associates. m o

2019 2018

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR® T ARETTT

At 1January R—A—H 8,787 10,480

Share of profits for the year FE{5 & & F B A D 58 279 276

Liquidation of an associate B & (b 35 & - (1,969)

At31December R+ =HA=+—H 9,066 8,787
Notes: Bifet

()  The associates are private companies and there are no quoted market () EtEEAIELTAT @ ERMDEATIBRE -
prices available for their shares.

(i) There are no contingent liabilities relating to the Group's interests in the (i)  WEAEAREEZAMACEERNNEEE -
associates.

(i) ~ Details of the associates are set out in Note 1 to the consolidated (i) HePEMNFEMAEREESHTERRME1H
financial statements. F LA FE o
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #EZE=F—NF1+=A=+—HIEFZ

12. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY  12. &/t T H (38 H])

As at 31 December

i = (= o =
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ TR ARBT T
Financial assets £ B & &
Financial assets at amortised cost SABEBRAX ANGT 2 M & B & B
Trade and bills receivables FE U BR 7 & & 961,680 1,048,988
Amounts due from related parties Ji& 4z BB A 5508 242,927 202,025
Other financial assets at amortised cost LA SRR At EMH MM S R E E 25,755 53,273
Short-term bank deposits 58 Hi$R 1777 3¢ 859,454 1,538,125
Cash and cash equivalents 3R & K IR € £ EY) 2,990,645 1,904,036
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
UARBEAEEEZFH T ABENCREE 31,680 29,000
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
URnBEFEAEEH AR MEEKENSREE 37,150 155,380
5,149,291 4,930,827

As at 31 December

N A= s

2019

RMB’000
ARBT R

Financial liabilities £ R & &
Liabilities at amortised cost AB K AT EH B E

2018

RMB'000
ARETT

Trade and bills payables F& 1 BR 5t & = 4% 630,693 665,038
Amounts due to related parties &1~ BA B A &) 3 IE 100,549 82,332
Other payables E At f& 1< 5K 511,113 228,881
Borrowings f& X 1,363,769 1,111,477
Lease liabilities T & & f& 99,971 =
2,706,095 2,087,728
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z=—F—NF+=A=+—HIFE

13. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 13. LA A= H HEH AR
THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE b % B i i 1Y) 4 S
INCOME
Financial assets at FVOCI comprise: NARBESEEEZE T AEMIEE NS
NEMEERE
(@  Equity securities which are not held for trading, and which the  (a) ZN&= B E YA MR 21 0] B 2 12
Group has irrevocably elected at initial recognition to recognise T DR T AR IER 5 iR E
in this category. These are strategic investments and the Group oz EMEEBRBNERERE W
considers this classification to be more relevant. BAREERAEE—DHEENRE -
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ T ARKETIT
At 1January A—A—H 13,553 12,804
(Loss)/gain recognised in other comprehensive income
(BR) /FIBt AT MiRE s (3,947) 127
Exchange differences [& 5 Z= %8 233 622
At31December A+ =B =+—H 9,839 13,553

The equity investments at FVOCI is denominated in HKD. The fair value AR R BET= B EEFHzt A M4 4 Wam
is within level 1 of the fair value hierarchy (Note 3.3). MERIKENEEE - ANBEEALE
BEERNE—EA(MEE33) -

(b)  Part of bills receivable where the contractual cash flows are  (b) SRR EREEANE A RNEFEBKIE

solely principal and the objective of the Group's business model RAEFEUREBAREBESRENEED
is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling Lo EIMEL -

of these assets.

2019 2018

RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TF T ARBTT

Bills receivable FEX E# 27,311 141,827

Y|

The bills receivable at FVOC is denominated in RMB. The fair value is ~ AR R BEFTE2 B EEFH T A H g4 WS
within level 3 of the fair value hierarchy (Note 3.3). NEKRZEENAREAE - AABEEAN
BEERANE=ZEAN(MHE33) -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z=—F—NF+=-A=1+—HILFE

14. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

Wealth management products 32 81 2 &

14, DA fo (EMERHR H 3L 3 A S
25 1) 4

As at 31 December
IRT=EIEar=—1=

2019 2018

RMB’000
ARBT

31,680

RMB'000
ARBTT

29,000

Guaranteed wealth management products held by the Group mainly
with floating rates bear expected interests at approximately 2.9%
(2018:3.1%) per annum as of 31 December 2019. The underlying
investments were mostly debt instruments with AA above credit
ratings.

The fair values are based on cash flows discounted using the expected
returns based on management judgement and are within level 3 of the
fair value hierarchy. Changes in fair values of these financial assets are
presented in “Other income and gains/losses, net” in the income
statement.

Ni EFEEMNRN LB NS HBTER &
—E-NAF+ZA=+—BIMFEKREX

%*J2.90/o(:%'E J\E :31%) c REERKE

BERTLREAMNU FNEBIRETEA

7,

RABEREEEREHE ARKRSRAMRE

- BRARNBEEANE=H sREE
MAREBEEZESERBERE b ERF
"/ 18K FRIDIR -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z=—F—NF+=A=+—HIFE

15. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 15. FEWIR 3K M 2245

As at 31 December

ir=E ==k
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® T AREET T
Trade receivables J& Y BR 7K 608,481 462,030
Bills receivables &I Z & 392,398 608,514
1,000,879 1,070,544
Less: provision for impairment J& : J8{EZE#5 (39,199) (21,556)
Trade and bills receivables, net JEU BR X M 248 - H1E 961,680 1,048,988

The carrying amounts of trade and bills receivables approximate their
fair values.

Retail sales at the Group's stores are usually made in cash or by debit or
credit cards. For wholesale to distributors, the Group normally grants a
credit period ranging from 30 days to 120 days. As at 31 December
2019 and 2018, the ageing analysis of trade and bills receivables based
on invoice date was as follows:

YRR L FENEIERIEAREE -

AREBTEHE—RIUES B FHEH
RER UM EEBEL TF0B8=120H
MR R-_ZT—NWEF+A=+—HBEK=
T—N\FE+-_A=1+—H EUREREERE
BEEZAPNRETIOT

As at 31 December

BE= H=5F=H
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T AREFTT
Within 4 months PH{E A LAA 777,601 857,710
Over 4 months but within 1 year PU1& A &= —F 120,628 152,335
Over 1 year but within 2 years —F & —4F 66,053 48,283
Over 2 years but within 3 years —fF & = 27,677 6,002
Over 3 years ZF M E 8,920 6,214
1,000,879 1,070,544
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B E=F—NWF+=-HA=1—HIFE

15. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (contp) 15. FEWHR 3K M 2248 )

As at 31 December 2019, trade receivables of RMB39,199,000 (2018: WMR—_ZE—hE+—-_A=+—H ' EKEZE
RMB21,556,000) were provided for impairment. Movements in the  5H12 7 AR #39199000 (=& —/\F : A

provision for impairment of receivables were as follows: R 21,556,000 7T ) R (B ZEM » FE UL FRORLE ZE
HREEIT -

2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ T ARETIT
At 1 January R—H—H 21,556 17,881
Provision for impairment Ji{E 512 17,634 3,675
Exchange differences 4MNEE 3 3% Z= 58 9 =
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 39,199 21,556

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the  7EZRE HH - EEREHN RS REREAE A -
carrying value of trade and bills receivables mentioned above. The i GBI N EENEREBE  AN&EH
Group does not hold any collateral as security. TEEEMEAS KRS o

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and bills receivables are 7 £ [ fiE Y BE 2% &% Z= 42 19 BE T (B {BLA T 41| 89

denominated in the following currencies: EHE

As at 31 December

N = SarE
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARET T
RMB A R #& 873,311 1,002,163
HKD /& #& 120,219 66,430
United States Dollar 3£ 7T 6,229 1,898
Others EAth, 1,120 53

1,000,879 1,070,544
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z=—F—NF+=A=+—HIFE

16. INVENTORIES 16. #&

As at 31 December

et =i Fl

2019 2018

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥T ARETT

Raw materials FR 4%} 1,089,113 992,928
Work-in-progress #E = & 507,516 454,670
Finished goods Z X ih 817,979 983,489
2,414,608 2,431,087
Less: provision for impairment J& : JB{EZE#S (92,824) (69,926)
2,321,784 2 0mlG]

The cost of inventories recognised as expense and included in “cost of  JZERN AN IER BE BRI A [HERK AN | 1Y
sales” amounted to RMB1,517,416,000 (2018: RMB1,632,110,000). SR ARKE1517416000L( ZB— N\ :

AFR#1632,110,0007T) °

The impairment loss on inventories and written off of inventories s T e e e e [ e i

included in the “cost of sales” amounted to RMB48,614,000 (2018: A [$HEKA | W EFEREBENRTGEER B ERED

RMB44,250,000) and RMB25,716,000 (2018: RMB20,525,000) for the year ~ Bl| /3 A R #486140007C (— E— N\E : AR

ended 31 December 2019, respectively. 5 44,250,000 7T ) 1 A R # 25716000 L ( = &
—\F : AR¥205250007T) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #EZE=F—NF1+=A=+—HIEFZ

17. DEFERRED INCOME TAX 17. PEAEFT 15 HA

Deferred income tax is calculated on temporary differences under the  IEIEFTET =iZ B E)E N E = & A 78 5
liability method using the tax rates which are expected to apply at the — [O] B¢ ET s = BRREE AR XR14E o
time of reversal of the temporary differences.

The analysis of deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax  ERIEFTEF B EEHELTSH A BN DT
liabilities is as follows: IS -

As at 31 December
ol =H ==l
2019 2018

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARMT T ARETT

Deferred income tax assets: {&EiE P15 & 2
— Deferred income tax assets to be recovered after 12 months

BB+ —E AR E R REEREE 16,132 2,538
— Deferred income tax assets to be recovered within 12 months
Er-EARNNERELEMSHEE 45,228 35,329
61,360 37,867
Set-off of deferred income tax liabilities pursuant to set-off provisions
ZRE R EFEENEEMSHARE (20,589) (282)
Deferred income tax assets, net J5 & iE AT 1554 & &= 40,771 37,585

Deferred income tax liabilities: #EFEFA 15 & (& :
— Deferred income tax liabilities to be settled after 12 months

BiE T —EARZNNEEMEHAR (17,759) (4,188)

— Deferred income tax liabilities to be settled within 12 months
TTZEARINNELEMEHAE (8,852) (1,773)
(26,611) (5,961)

Set-off of deferred income tax assets pursuant to set-off provisions
LRI HRE TR BEME R EE 20,589 282
Deferred income tax liabilities, net JF iR IE AT i B & (6,022) (5679)
Deferred income tax assets, net IEIEFT S5 & @ SR {E 34,749 31,906
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z=—F—NF+=A=+—HIFE

17. DEFERRED INCOME TAX (contp) 17. B IEFTAERL )

The movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities during the  FERNELEFFSEHEEMEBECORE ZEHEH
year, without taking into consideration the offsetting of balances within ~ AJ #E [A] — %% (& N 85 ) RO FHan | -
the same tax jurisdiction, is as follows:

Deferred income tax assets W& WL 15 B A
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARETT
Beginning of the year F #1f#4%E 37,867 31,057

Adjustment for change in accounting policy (Note 2.1.1.1)

SEIBEREE (ME21.10) 24,619 -
Restated at 1 January A — A — HE {8 62,486 31,057
(Charged)/credited to income statement (f&52),/ B st 18z (1,764) 6,372
Exchange differences [ %, Z= &8 638 438
End of the year G R &R ¥ 61,360 37,867
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B E=F—NWF+=-HA=1—HIFE

17. DEFERRED INCOME TAX (contD)

17. BREFTAEFL )

Deferred income tax assets (Cont'd) U % o7 P B A (a0
Unrealised
Other profit
provisions, resulting
Provision for  depreciation from
termination and intragroup Lease
benefits amortisation transactions liabilities Others
£EAD
BEET SEAEEE XIELEN
HRER RfESE AERNE HEAE Hits CE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTT ARBTR ARETT ARBTRT ARETR
At1 January 2018 R=ZE—NF—F—H 255 9,321 20,787 = 694 31,057
(Charged)/credited to income statement
(f&id) /B s (71) 5277 1,085 - 81 6372
Exchange differences [E i, = 5 - 0) 440 - 2 438
At31 December 2018 R —E—\F+-A=+—H 184 14,59 2312 = 775 37,867
Adjustment for change in accounting policy (Note 2.1.1.1)
SEBRER (Fz21.0) - - - 24619 - 24619
Restated at 1 January A — A — B &4 184 14,59 22312 24619 775 62,486
(Charged)/credited to income statement
(&%) / Eim (5) 7,563 (8618) (4,270) 3616 (1,764)
Exchange differences [& 5, Z %8 - 5 161 463 9 638
At31 December 019 R —E—AF+-FA=1+—H 129 22,164 13,855 20812 4400 61,360
Deferred income tax liabilities Y& 92E ;£ B £1 4

2019

RMB’000
ARBT

2018

RMB'000

ARETT

Beginning of the year & #) 4 58 5,961 5,657

Adjustment for change in accounting policy (Note 2.1.1.1)

SETECREE (Fi5E21.0.0) 24,619 A

Restated at 1 January A — A — HE {4 30,580 5,657

(Credited)/charged to income statement (E'52) &85 (4,532) 122

Exchange differences [& %, = &8 563 182
26,611 5,961

\ X
End of the year £ REA
g S
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For the year ended 31 December 2019

17. DEFERRED INCOME TAX (contD)

Deferred income tax liabilities (cont'd)

Accelerated tax
depreciation
allowance

Bk iz iz
RERE
RMB(000
ARETT

O B 5 e 3 B (46)

E-NFH+ZA=+—HIFFE

EE—

17. BWAE T 5L a0
Y 92E P 4588 £ 4 a0

Deferred income
tax liabilities
arising from
business Right-of-use

combination assets

EHAH
EENELE
FrEsas

RMB'000
ARETT

ERELE
RMB000

ARBTT

&F
RMB000
ARETT

At1January 2018 R=E—N\E—F—H 3685 972 = 5,657
Charged/(credited) to income statement f& 3t/ (&3 ) 182 409 (287) = 122
Exchange differences [ % Z%8 168 14 = 182
At31 December 2018 R=E—\F+-A=+—H 4262 1699 - 5961

Adjustment for change in accounting policy (Note 2.1.1.1)

SEHBMEEE (M7E210.0) - - 24619 24619
Restated at 1 January R — A —B &tk 4,262 1699 24619 30,580
Charged/(credited) to income statement fE i3,/ (&2 ) 1828 695 (505) 4722) (4532)
Exchange differences [E 3 =58 107 1 455 563
At31 December 2019 R=E—NE+ZA=+—H 5,064 1,195 20352 26611

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax loss carry-forwards to
the extent that the realisation of the related tax benefit through future
taxable profits is probable. The Group did not recognise deferred
income tax assets of RMB15,376,000 (2018: RMB15,299,000) in respect
of losses amounting to RMB74,467,000 (2018: RMB76,274,000) at 31
December 2019. At 31 December 2019, these tax losses have no expiry
dates except for the tax losses of RMB29,356,000 (2018: RMB39,685,000)
which will expire between 2020 and 2039 (2018: between 2019 and
2038).

HAOEMNEBEERRAEEMEHREENE
B SR IRE BR A] RS E A Y AR 2R B R TR A E
MERMABABREFNEZMER - RZE—N
¢+—H_+ BASEWEIRTFEEBA

FRMET74.467:000 75T = )\ s shg e
7627400070 ) MRIBELEFTSHREEARK
15,376,000 7C (= — N\F : AR® 15,299,000
T RZFE-—AFE+-_A=Z+—R8 ' ' BAER
#29356000L( — F — N &F: ARKE
396850007 I EBEENR _S_TF 5
—EAF (22— —E-NFE_ZT

NE: =
=\F) RS - AR EBRY EDIHA -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #EZE=F—NF1+=A=+—HIEFZ

18. SHARE CAPITAL

18. AR

As at 31 December

R+=A=1+-H
2019 2018
Number of Nominal Number of Nominal
shares value shares value
grin 42 BRAEE BingE BHEE
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET ARETT
Total share capital A 1,280,784,000 1,280,784 1,280,784,000 1,280,784
Issued and fully paid 2 37737 B &2 Z A
— Domestic shares with a par value of RMB1 per share
NER  BREEARE 1T 652,080,000 652,080 652,080,000 652,080
— H shares with a par value of RMB1 per share
HiX - BREEARE T 628,704,000 628,704 628,704,000 628,704
1,280,784,000 1,280,784 1,280,784,000 1,280,784

Domestic Domestic
shares H shares Total shares H shares Total
RER HiR I NER HIR af
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR%TT AR¥TR AR¥Tx | ARBTE AXBTE ARETE
At1 January Rw—HA—H 652,080 628,704 1,280,784 652,080 628,704 1,280,784
At31 December R+ —A=+—H 652,080 628,704 1,280,784 652,080 628,704 1,280,784
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For the year ended 31 December 2019

19. RESERVES

(@) Capital reserve

Capital reserve represents the difference between the amount of share
capital issued by the Company and the historical net value of the
assets, liabilities and interests transferred to the Company upon its
establishment and net premium on issue of shares upon listing of the
Company and issuance of additional shares.

(b) Statutory reserves

The Company sets aside 10% of its net profit after income tax, before
distribution of dividend to shareholders, as stated in the financial
statements prepared under PRC accounting standards to the statutory
surplus reserve fund. Approximately RMB55,246,000 (2018:
RMB51,208,000), being 10% of the net profit after income tax as stated
in the financial statements prepared under PRC accounting standards,
was transferred to the statutory surplus reserve fund as at 31 December
2019.

In accordance with the amendment of the Company Law of the PRC
on 27 October 2005 effective from 1 January 2006, it is not required to
accrue for statutory public welfare fund since the year 2006. The
balance together with statutory surplus reserve fund can be used to
offset accumulated losses or convert as share capital of the Company.

(c) Tax reserve

According to the preferential enterprise income tax policy for new
technology enterprises (“NTE") under the old PRC Enterprise Income
Tax (“EIT") regulation (effective before 1 January 2008), an NTE located
in a designated area of Beijing Economic and Technological
Development Zone was subject to EIT at a preferential income tax rate
of 15%. Moreover, upon approval by the relevant local tax bureau, the
Company was entitled to full exemption from EIT from 2000 to 2002
and 50% reduction from 2003 to 2005. An amount for exemption and
reduction has to be appropriated to a non-distributable tax reserve.
However, the utilisation of the exempted tax is restricted to specified
purposes and not distributable to shareholders.

o BF W 5 ek fit ek (%81)
RE-F-NE+ZA=+—FILFE

19. fitifhi

(@) A

BN RN R B BT R AR AN & R B0
VREANEE  BEMEDRNESLIFEDN
Z8 - ARE EHRM EmRBEITHRES
M ERRIEFEE

(b) 5 fifi il

AR EFREPESETELRE 2FFH
MI0%BENEERBBATEE R_E— L&
+—A=+—8 ' ARBREHPHSER
RERBEBFAEN10%IRECAEEBATE
& A ANR¥S55246000 T (ZF— \F :
AEH#51,2080007T) °

BER-_FETERAF+A-TEHEFTIRN=
TEXRE—A—BREITH(PEARLMN
BATLE)  AARINR -_EENERETIHE
EERTE - ARBETE R Atk HIK
TRBATEE —HANBEBEREE QR

() HBIHSE
BEFPBHEMSHET(RZ2ZEZEN\F—HA
—BURIEB HE M XMEHER
BURMBBERTE MR R B TR
AN EMCEBERNMEHRE
BHERI5% BERB@M IR BILE -
KRB _EETFEE_ZT_FELEH
TEMERN —EE=FEE_ZTHEFE
REBMTESRH - B L =% = /¥+
BRI ARABELE T DENERES
VERREE BT TERARNIRERS o
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19. RESERVES (conrp)

(d) Foreign currency translation differences

Foreign currency translation differences reserve arises from currency
translations of all group entities that have a functional currency
different from the RMB being translated into the Group’s presentation
currency of RMB.

(e) Other reserve

Other reserve mainly includes reserves arising from the issuance of
additional shares by subsidiaries and disposals to non-controlling
interests without change in control.

20. DEFERRED INCOME — GOVERNMENT

19. {0

(d) AP
SNEFTEEREEREETOMEERIE
AOTRRARENINGEEERBERARE
BE R ARBRAZR -

(e) Fefibufififli
HtREBEEIE2EARN FRREERN RTE
BUREZENEN T ARERED) -

20. RFEWA — BUF Fl B

GRANTS
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T AREFIT
Beginning of the year & #1158 83,680 93,787
Government grants received 7% 4F I 2] & B £ #8 B) 8,065 12,632
Amortisation in the income statement (Note 27) FE AU 28 4 58 (B 27) (15,253) (22,739)
End of the year & R &R 58 76,492 83,680

The ending balance of the government grants are relating to:

FARBTHBIERFEEIATIAE 188 -

As at 31 December
RTr=EEEar=[¢

2019 2018

RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARETT

Research and development expenditure #fF 755 %% 52 H 4,385 9,691
Property, plant and equipment /= &Y  BiE K& 46,510 51,931
Land use rights == tb{# i 4 21,041 16,277
Other expenditures EAth 37 4,556 5,781

76,492 83,680
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z=—F—NF+=A=+—HIFE

21. BORROWINGS 21. &

As at 31 December

R+=HA=+—H
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%T R AREFTT
Non-current JE7 Bl
Corporate bonds (“bonds”) (Note (b)) A al&E% ([f&% |) (5 (b)) 816,326 798,908
Bank borrowings 817 &7k
— Secured - 48
— Unsecured &3 407,245 112,375
1,223,571 911,331
Current ;i 8
Bank borrowings $R17 & 3K
— Secured 18 3,000 3,000
— Unsecured 51 - 160,000
Add:  Current portion of non-current unsecured bank borrowing
B EEMIERBRITEROENEE D 105,149 5,146
Current portion of non-current secured bank borrowing
EAIRIEM B IRITESRA BN ER AL 5 49 -
Borrowings from a related party (Note 36(e)) #£ BBt A =& A8z IB (M s 36(e)) 32,000 32,000
140,198 200,146
Total borrowings f& FA 48 58 1,363,769 1,111,477

Certain secured bank borrowings are secured by land and buildings of 2843 3 FR{E ZR DA AN & B &) + # AAEFEREE (B
carrying amounts of RMB9,438,000 (2018: RMB9,562,000) of the Group B A R #9438000 T ( —E— \E : ARK
(Note 7). 9,562,000 7T ) AR (FH7E7) »
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21. BORROWINGS (contp)

(@) At 31 December 2019 and 2018, the Group'’s borrowings would
be repayable as follows:

21.

(@

8 3K 0

A EE— | S B = SR S el
—N\F+ZA=1+—8 " KEEEZRD
EEHAT ¢

As at 31 December

B ik =t

2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARBTT
Within 1 year —%F BAIA 140,198 200,146
Between 1 and 2 years —HF & — 4 921,475 5,194
Between 2 and 5 years —F E A 251,947 814,345
Over 5 years LA £ 50,149 91,792
1,363,769 1,111,477

(b)  In 2016, the Company issued bonds with aggregate principal (b)) ARBRZZE—NFELBEHFRZF
amount of RMB800 million and a maturity of five years with a BII8BLES EEFENER295% -

nominal interest rate of 2.95% per annum, which are listed on
the Shanghai Stock Exchange. According to the current market
environment and the Company’s circumstance, the Company
decided on 19 June 2019 to raise the coupon rate of the bonds
to 4.35% at the end of the third year of the current bond term.
The coupon rate of the fourth year and the fifth year (from 31
July 2019 to 30 July 2021) is 4.35% and constant. The fair value of
bonds as at 31 December 2019 amounted to RMB811,600,000
(2018: RMB796,143,000) which is determined by reference to
published price quotations and within level 1 of the fair value
hierarchy (Note 3.3).

The carrying amounts of other borrowings approximate to their
fair value.

HIR BSF - REEAMMISRENMD
A EREBR AR _E—AEXA
TABREERAPESFFERFEIFR
FRAABEFNEBEA EE435% - A
AEEEFERNE4FMESF(=F
R N e B = e
=+R)NEBEMEE435%  WEFE
HMEAFMESFEETE - R_F
—NWE+=-_A=+—8 " QAREFHLD
AEBEA G ARES11,600000T(=F
—N\F : AR¥ET796,143,0007T) * BETY
LPEREEEET  BAAEBEERW
F— K (HI5E33) °

H

L fERHPREEERE AR EERT -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z=—F—NF+=A=+—HIFE

21. BORROWINGS (contp) 21. B @
(© The carrying amounts of the Group’s borrowings are (c) AEBEEFNEBEIL N E® 58
denominated in the following currencies: fiL :

As at 31 December

INAP=E=ar—12

2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARET T
RMB A R #& 1,362,825 1,110,408
Macanese Pataca ®F97T 895 1,021
Australian Dollar & K F| 25 7T 49 48
1,363,769 1,011,477

(d)  The average interest rates (per annum) are as follows: d) FHEFERPT :
2019 2018

Bonds f& %

— RMB AR ¥ 3.008% 3.008%

Other borrowings H fth f& X
— RMB AR 3.200% 3.255%
— Australian Dollar A Fl 58 7T 4.890% 5.224%
— Macanese Pataca J2F37C 0.000% 0.000%
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #EZE=F—NF1+=A=+—HIEFZ

22. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES 22. MEATHRGR M R
As at 31 December 2019, the ageing analysis of trade and bills payables R—_Z—HhE+-_A=+—H ' ENEZX
based on invoice date and financial position was as follows: ZRIBE R ZE B BB AR R 8BRS o AT 0
N
As at 31 December
Wih=H=+=H
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%ET R ARETFT
Within 4 months PH{&E A LA 490,012 475392
Over 4 months but within 1 year PU1# A 2= —4F 87,107 101,996
Over 1 year but within 2 years —F & — 4F 30,415 86,236
Over 2 years but within 3 years —F & =4 22,197 529
Over 3 years =4 LA E 962 885
630,693 665,038

Trade payables are unsecured and are usually paid within 120 days of ~ EfBEFNMEIE(R - WB EEEZ 120K A F
recognition. DA 5t o

The carrying amounts of trade and bills payables are considered to be ~ H A HIREE @ ENEBERNEZENEREE
the same as their fair values, due to their short-term nature. WHEARE N BEESE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z=—F—NF+=A=+—HIFE

23. OTHER PAYABLES 23. HAth S 2K

As at 31 December

R+=HA=+—H

2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T ARETT
Payable to vendors of construction, machinery and equipment FEf 2% & T2 238,251 64,494
Provision for sales discount and promotion expenses T IE$H EME L EEHEEE 86,189 64,252
Advances from customers TE UK 62,795 51,297
Indirect taxes payable Ji& 22 & 5 #1 48,506 23,869
Service fee payable &1 AR 75 & 21,845 13,552
Labour-union expenditure and education funds T2 & & M THE K& 20,464 20,842
Interests payable &1 F| &8 14,500 9,833
Research and development payable &1 iff 3¢ 5 3% & 11,662 8,920
Payment for land use right E{sT 3t 3% 7,870 7,870
Non-controlling interests payable &< 4> &% 58 Z 1B 7,843 7,929
Accruals for travel expenses TE1E 2 Jik £ 5,888 671
Deposits received EfHRFE & 5,426 6,476
Dividends payable &1 % ] 3,493 474
Others EA 45,351 44,410
580,083 324,889

24. SALARY AND WELFARE PAYABLES 24. JEAT T Mo Am F) 2

As at 31 December

REFSH=+H
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%T R AREFTT
Salary payable JEff T & 62,235 91,951
Welfare payable F& 1< & Fl & 1,048 1,019

63,283 92,970
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z—F—NF+-A=+—HILFZ

25. REVENUE 25. LA
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥ T AREETFIT
Sales of Chinese medicine products FP %52 &7 §5 & U A
— Mainland China 7R B A 3D 3,443,104 4,041,543
— Qutside Mainland China FA E fth Bl 5 & b [= 951,826 923,834
4,394,930 4,965,377
Advertising service income & &5 FRFS A
— Mainland China 72 # B A3 32,053 43,018
Service income ARFEUZ A
— Mainland China 5 H B8 ;A3 6,790 7,244
— Qutside Mainland China 7 £ 1th Bl 5% & b & 42,458 43618
49,248 50,862
Royalty fee income fn {5 FR AL A
— Outside Mainland China P E BB 5% K b & 218 381
4,476,449 5,059,638

The Group has recognised the following asset and liability related to  REB BRI TEEZE S B A B EEM
contract with customers: AafE:

As at 31 December
IRTr=EEar=[E

2019 2018

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT

Contract liabilities — Service income & [ & & — RIEU A 1,934 4324

The Group has not recognised any contract assets related to contract ®
with customers as at 31 December 2019 and 2018

There is no significant changes in contract liabilities during the year HE_Z—NLF+= )EJ +—HIEFE &
ended 31 December 2019 REBEREEERE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont’d)

For the year ended 31 December 2019

25. REVENUE (contp)
Revenue recognised in relation to contract liabilities
The following table shows revenue recognised in relation to contract

liabilities in the year ended 31 December 2019 and 2018 related to
carried forward contract liabilities at the beginning of the year.

Revenue recognised that was included in the contract liability balance
at the beginning of the year

REYEERNESRBEERNKA

£ B 1 5 ek fit e (%81)
RE-F-NE+=AS+—AILFE

25. WA @
ERANESREEEBENKRA

TRAAINEEZ_F-NE+A=1—H
RZB-N\F+ZA=+—BLEEDHER
MESRBEEBNKRATEFVEEES
RaEBERNKATE -

As at 31 December

NP A ==l

2019

2018

RMB’000
ARBT R

RMB'000
ARBTIT

2,475 3751

26. FINANCE INCOME AND COSTS

26. B W M 2

2019 2018

RMB’000
ARBT R

RMB'000
ARETT

Finance income 81 #§ Uk
Interest income 71| B A 49,759 31,806
Exchange (losses)/gains, net [ 3, (825 ) /Ui zs, JF 58 (1,920) 225
47,839 205
Finance costs 81715 & F
Interest on bonds &% Fl & (45,685) (24,035)
Interest on bank borrowings $R1TE X F| B (11,656) (10,396)
Interest on lease liabilities TH & & &7 2 (4,301) =
Less: amounts capitalised on qualifying assets (Note 7)
W B EREEENMEEE (H7) 20,617 19,467
(41,025) (14,964)
Finance income, net B %5 % - 7F 58 6,814 17,067
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z=—F—NF+=-A=1+—HILFE

27. EXPENSE BY NATURE 27. R RYEE B NET IR
Operating profit was arrived at after charging/(crediting) the following: 3| & BEEE,(E:2) BATHE -

RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T AREFTT
Raw materials, merchandise and consumables used R4 % ~ 4 5 KB #E Gn E AE 1,404,752 1,545,463
Change in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress
EXGREEERNTFEES 112,664 86,647
Employee benefit expense (Note 28) B T #& 75 % (Ff 5t 28) 827,041 851,793
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (Note 7)
FBENGEEY) - BB MREITE (HEE7) 90,822 75837
Amortisation of prepaid operating lease payments (Note 6)
TRt E IR (MHite) - 3,631
Amortisation of right-of-use assets (Note 8) {5 FA # & 2= 54 (FizE8) 54,901
Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 9) /2 & E #k §4 (M 5E 9) 12,711 7,515
Amortisation of other long-term assets £ fth & Hi & &= 8 55 1,628 1,457
Provision for impairment of inventories Tfﬂ%f’fﬁﬁﬁﬂ% 48,614 44,250
Provision for impairment of receivables fEU FAIB R AR E R TR 20,113 6,055
Operating lease rental 424 1 & 2 - 97,771
Expenses relating to short-term leases %2 EiFH & & 45,321 =
Variable lease payments not included in the measurement of lease liabilities I
AEHENFEER(TREREEAE) Y 956 -
Auditor’s remuneration % 2% &l B &
— Audit services 1% E RS 9,186 7,156
— Non-audit services 3F#Z ZAR 7 400 258
Research and development costs 2 fiff ¢ 2 & F @ 28,316 27,835
Loss on disposal of non-current assets 3ER B) & /5 IR 18 K 3,387 1,850
Amortisation of deferred income — government grants (Note 20)
EEWA - BUR il B RO B8 81 (B3 20) (15,253) (22,739)
Processing costs i T & 259,119 279,506
Advertising and promotion expenses & & & & @1 E & 189,541 301,678
Transportation i &) £ 45,175 58,647
Repair and maintenance #E & & R & 54,707 34,479
Utilities KA} Rz #HB% 37 1 90,319 67,741
Other taxes HALFE & 43,328 56,668
f Variable lease payments represent the amounts which are [ AEHENKEEREETEEEESL

calculated based on percentages of revenue generated by
certain retail outlets that exceed their fixed rentals.

L Excluding employee benefit expense, depreciation and @
amortisation expense. The research and development costs
including employee benefit expense, depreciation and
amortisation expense were RMB61,248,000 (2018:
RMB55,889,000).

MRAZRBD A ERBHEBEEHES
HE R °

BREREIGMNHAS ELKEHEE
B efEtiERMMEREERAA
F¥61.24800075( === A S ARKKE
55,889,000 7T) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z=—F—NF+=A=+—HIFE

28. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE 28. B TARFIBH X
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T AREFTT
Salary and wages T & 604,225 617,512
Staff welfare & F| & 40,790 59,851
Housing fund (Note 34) (£ = Afa & (MI5E34) 51,214 45,340
Contribution to pension schemes (Note 33) B K& 7% (FH3E£33) 130,812 129,090
827,041 851,793

The five individuals whose emoluments before individual income tax ~ NEERNEBE AFSHRAIHFS RS M AL
were the highest in the Group for the year include one (2018: one) A+ BFE—(I(ZZE—N\F: —f)EE " T
director and no (2018: no) supervisor whose emoluments are reflected i (ZZF— /\F : T ) ES MM EE
in the analysis presented in Note 32. The emoluments payable to the — Mf7E 32 B D AT B o R E X F H 400
remaining four (2018: four) individuals during the year are as follows: M (ZZE—N\F : Ui) ATHEESIT :

2019 2018

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T T ARET T

Basic salaries, allowances and bonuses Z AN Bl & ~ JERE M 8% 5,593 515
Contribution to pension scheme 3E/R & L FX 166 82

‘ 5,759 5,597
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #EZE=F—NF1+=A=+—HIEFZ

28. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (conrp)

The emoluments of these individuals fell within the following band:

HKD1,000,001-HKD1,500,000 (Equivalent to RMB880,001-RMB1,320,000)
Y& 1,000,001-1,500,000 7T (#8574 A R ¥ 880,001-1,320,000 7T.)
HKD1,500,001-HKD2,000,000 (Equivalent to RMB1,320,001-RMB1,760,000)
75HE 1,500,001-2,000,000 7T (A8 ZE M AR ¥ 1,320,001-1,760,000 7T.)
HKD2,000,001-HKD2,500,000 (Equivalent to RMB1,760,001-RMB2,200,000)
75HE 2,000,001-2,500,000 7T (A8 ZE 7 AR ¥ 1,760,001-2,200,000 7T.)
HKD2,500,001-HKD3,000,000 (Equivalent to RMB2,200,001-RMB2,640,000)
7 HE 2,500,001-3,000,000 7T (A8 Z 7 A KR # 2,200,001-2,640,000 7T)
HKD3,000,001-HKD3,500,000 (Equivalent to RMB2,640,001-RMB3,080,000)
&5 3,000,001-3,500,000 7T (FE 55 1A A R ¥ 2,640,001-3,080,000 7T)

28. B TA& | B 32 )
HEATHMES AL TEENAZA :

2019 2018
2 -
2 4

Among the above four (2018: four) individuals, there are four (2018:
three) individuals whose emoluments were paid by Tong Ren Tang
Chinese Medicine and its subsidiary for the year.

None of the five highest paid individuals of the Group waived any
emoluments and no emoluments were paid by the Group to any of
such individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or
as compensation for loss of office.

RERE A (ZF—/\F : @) AL
B (ZF—\F : =) ATHFMEHR
CEBRENEFRAIXM -

PRAMRESHFALILRREERMME - K
SEYEAAVREHATZNHSELE
BEREMARNEENME - R EBORE

f& -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z=—F—NF+=A=+—HIFE

29. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 29. FrigFiE i

Pursuant to the Corporate Income Tax Law of the PRC effective from 1  HRIBFEEH —_EZENF— A —HHTHRH D ZE
January 2008, enterprises with a High/New Technology Enterprise  FTBFIAI T - B MO ELHZ=H 15%
("HNTE’) status are able to enjoy a preferential tax rate of 15%. Forthe HJFTE BRI R « WNIES I M D E -

entities without the HNTE status, the PRC income tax rate is 25% (2018:  FRISFiF K & 25% ( —F— )\ F : 25%) ° i &
25%). As of 31 December 2019 and 2018, the Company and certainof —ZE—HAF+-_A=+—HBHE=-_Z—/\F
its subsidiaries have obtained the HNTE certificate. Consequently, their  +=H =+—H » KA & R 2D F A 72 B

applicable income tax rate in 2019 is 15% (2018: 15%). BEFEMtEREE At P F—
E-NFEAMBRMERISN(ZE—N
F 1 15%) ©

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2018: IR AN F E (LT B FE - F A& & F

16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for the year. ZREGER SRR AE165%( —F—/)\F :
16.5%) °

Income tax on overseas profits has been calculated on the estimated & INE FI| 2 Fi IR R AR F [E (L5 ER T A B
assessable profit for the year at the income tax rates prevailing in the 4k BR N £2 [ 48 & S 75 BT AE B SR sl b @& 2 3R 1T
tax jurisdictions in which the Group operates. BEAE o

2019 PIONES]
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T AREFT

Current income tax expense & HiFT15 5 &
— Mainland China & Bl Ay i 89,781 105,838
— Hong Kong &/ 89,130 96,423
— Overseas(excluding Hong Kong) /850 (T2 &) 5,972 5,206
184,883 207,467
Deferred income tax credit & EAT{S 5 & 1H (2,768) (6,250)
182,115 201,217
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z=—F—NF+=-A=1+—HILFE

29. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (cont) 29. Frig®i g A o

The tax on the Group’s profit before income tax differs from the ZANEBE LGSR AIFEAFIE Eﬁi}"’
theoretical amount that would arise using the weighted average £ == 82 FI) )& 4& FB &9 INAE 35 5 2= 03.7% (=
income tax rate of 23.7% (2018: 21.0%) to profits of the consolidated ~ — J\£E : 21.0%) MEE S RIERTHEEHN %%ﬁ
entities as follows: AR :

2019 2018

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT ARETIT

Profit before income tax & Fr 15 &% il K1 923,505 1,207,070

Tax calculated at domestic tax rates applicable to profits in the respective countries

EEBHEBROABRERNE MR EFERNTRIE 218,852 253,679
Tax effects of: FRIER £
— Income not subject to tax #EE #F 2 U A (6,451) (4:810)
— Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 1~ A] ##4 ~ & F 6,173 6,330

— Tax losses and temporary differences for which no deferred income tax assets
were recognised

RERREEFRSNHEENNBEEERERTEZRE 3,641 4,279

— Effect of preferential income tax treatments FT{S i B RB RN E (38,177) (58,986)

— Final settlements and payments [ &5 4 7% 290 479

— Others E A (2,213) 246

Income tax expense FT{S 7% & FH 182,115 201,217
30. EARNINGS PER SHARE 30. Ukt

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable ~ EFIRE AN 2 17 AR A 5] Fr A & (L F 5 E f\']
to owners of the Company of approximately RMB417,650,000 by the A R ¥ 417,6500007C * BR A HIE 1T E B
weighted average number of 1,280,784,000 shares in issue during the A% A 114192k B 1,280,784,000 PR 2R 5T & A

year.

The Company had no dilutive potential shares in 2019 and 2018. RARRIRZZE-NERZZF-\FULEERT
ZHEER D -

2019 2018

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT R AREET T

Profit attributable to owners of the Company #E 5 BIR AR Al fig & 417,650 677,815

Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue (thousands)

hnEF B BT E RS (T 1,280,784 1,280,784

Earnings per share ﬁ’iﬁ&ﬁ\ RMBO0.33 RMBO.53
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z=—F—NF+=A=+—HIFE

31. DIVIDENDS 312 E&E\

The cash dividends paid in 2019 and 2018 were RMB230,541,000 R_-_ZTE—NER_ZE— N \ERNLZMNHNR LK
(RMBO.18 (including tax) per share) and RMB217,733,000 (RMB0.17 &, ﬁj‘%lj BAR ei%%‘230,541,0007c(Hx}\E o3
(including tax) per share) respectively. 0187 (& )) B AR 217,733,000 7T (& B

ARE017TT(EF)) »

On 30 March 2020, the Board of Directors proposed a cash dividendin = R-_ZE-_EFEEFE=HF=+H ' == E%&LE

respect of the year ended 31 December 2019 of RMB0.16 (including R AR 016 (E ) IRZEEHZE —§ jli

tax) per share, amounting to a total of RMB204,925,440 , whichis +_-_A=+—HIIEERLKRE @ BEAE A

subject to the shareholders’ approval at the 2019 annual general R ¥204,9254407T c ZRE D ECTEREL =

meeting to be held on Thursday, 18 June 2020. These financial T -_ZF, XA+ N \B(EHM)EBFEHM=-=Z

statements do not reflect this dividend payable. —NEFERRBAFAGIE - AMBHRER
[RBR TR AR B, ©

2019 2018

RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TF T ARBTT

Interim dividend paid of RMB nil (2018: RMB nil) per ordinary share
FHIRERS SRARBOT(ZZE—/\F : BRAR¥0T) - =
Final dividend proposed of RMB0.16 (including tax)
(2018: RMBO0.18 (including tax)) per ordinary share
BRARHRE  SFRARK 16T ()
(Z2—N\F : BRAR®0187L(EH)) 204,925 230,541

204,925 230,541
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #EZE=F—NF1+=A=+—HIEFZ
32. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS  32. ® 3 N - H ) F| 25 FbE 25
AND SUPERVISORS

Directors’ and supervisors’ emoluments o 5 B
For the year ended 31 December 2019: BHE_ZT-NF+-_A=+—RHILFE:

Emoluments paid
orreceivable
in respect of
aperson'’s services
asadirector/
supervisor, whether Emoluments paid or receivablein respect of director's/
of the Company supervisor's other services in connection with
orits subsidiary the management of the affairs of the Company or
undertaking its subsidiary undertaking
FrES/E2
(FEREARS,
HFRRLR)
RUBHDLA REBANTRHT ARLRNEH
B RUANES /EEREMHIBUNHE
Employer's
contribution to
Discretionary Allowances and aretirement
Fees Salary bonuses benefits ® benefit scheme Total
RIEA N
fig e Riggsn RERER® ExHR @it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
N R KRBT AE¥T R AR®T T ARBTR N R

Chairman EE 5
Mr.Gu Hai Ou® BB B 7 £ - - - - - .
Mr. Gao Zhen Kun ¥ SR £ Y - - - R . _

Executive directors $1{TEE

Mr. Huang Ning EE 4 - - - - - -

Mr. WuLe Jun REE & - - - - - -

M Wu Qan RfER T - - - - - -

Mr. Wang YuWei® TR £ £ - 1214 847 45 50 2,156

Ms.Fang JiaZn BF 2T - 490 pI}) Iy} 50 824

Independent non-executive directors B TEE

M. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen T RIB% 211 - - - - 11

Ms. Chan Ching Har, Fiia R B X £ Mm - - - - M

Mr.Zhan Yuan Jing ER# 5 4 100 - - - - 100

Supervisors £

M SuLi &AL - - - - - -

Mr. Wu Yi Gang RASE £ 100 - - - - 100

Mr.Dong Ke Man ER 5 & - 368 121 Iy} 50 581

Notes: Bifet

(1) Bonuses are accrued according to current year's results, which willbe (1)~ AR AERIE ?éff %%E{?Eﬁ%?&%f@/\ BfEH - W
paidin the following year after Board of Directors’ approval RIRFLESSRERBEN -

(2)  Include housing and car allowance 2 BEEEEM&KEM

(3)  Appointed on 11 June 2019 B) RZZE-NAFAAT—BEXZEE

(4)  Resigned on 11 June 2019 @ RZZE-AFASAT—HRME

(5)  Chief executive of the Company 6  ARELE
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z=—F—NF+=A=+—HIFE

32. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS  32. # = M B S (W F) 25 A HE 25 (a0
AND SUPERVISORS (conrp)

Directors’ and supervisors’ emoluments (Cont'd) o B B N (a0
For the year ended 31 December 2018: -3 S ) AR T e e e 2 ||

Emoluments paid
Or rece

e supervisor's other
orits subsidiary the management of the
undertaking

Employer's
contributionto

Salary d e Total

Chairman EER
Mr. Gao Zhen Kun S iS55 4 4 1 5 2 / .

Executive directors $TEE

Mr. Huang Ning ¥ EZ 4 = - - - - -
Mr. WuleJun ¥ RES LAY - - - - - -
Ms. Wu Qian ® REZ LY - -
Mr. Wang Yu Wei ® T8 fE 5040 - 1283 83 45 5 1%
Ms.Fang Jia Znl BEE XL - 514 4 Iy 55 855
M. Gu Hai Ou BB 50 - - - - - -
Mr.Rao Zu Hai ® 28 £ 9 - - - - - -
M LiBn D&% 40 - - - - - -

Independent non-executive directors B U7 EZ

M Ting Leung Huel, Stephen T SIB4%A 03 - g 1 £ 0
M Chan Ching Har, iz R A B R L 102 2 4 5 : 0
M. Zhan Yuan Jing # ERF £ 50 - - . E 5
Miss Tam Wai Chu, Maria S35/ M2 9 102 - z < ! 10
M. JinShi Yuan © S 7525 ) - = * L 50

Supervisors £

Ms, SuLi “ &RFTZ LY - . - 3 i v
Mr WuYi Gang REAB 100 - - 2 . 100
Mr.Dong Ke Man © E 52 5546 0 - 35 12 Iy 55 604
Ms. MaBao Jian® SRR L0 " ) X . ; 5
Ms. Ding Guo Ping® T BI 4 £-9 - 45 - - 41 466
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z=—F—NFE+=A=1—HIFFE

32. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
AND SUPERVISORS (contp)

Directors’ and supervisors’ emoluments (Cont’d)
Notes:

(1) Bonuses are accrued according to current year's results, which will be
paid in the following year after Board of Directors’ approval

) Include housing and car allowance
(3)  Chief executive of the Company
(4) Appointed on 12 June 2018

5] Resigned on 12 June 2018

6) Elected on 12 March 2018, with effect from 12 June 2018

No directors and supervisors waived any emoluments and no
emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the directors and
supervisors as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of position.

No payments or benefits in respect of termination of directors’ and
supervisors' services were paid or made, directly or indirectly, to or
receivable by any director or supervisor; nor are any payable.

No consideration was provided to or receivable by third parties for
making available directors’ or supervisors' services.

There are no loans, quasi-loans or other dealings in favour of the
directors and supervisors, their controlled bodies corporate and
connected entities.

Saved as disclosed in Note 36 and elsewhere in these financial
statements, none of the directors and supervisors had a material
interest, either directly or indirectly, in any transactions, arrangements
and contracts of significance relating to the business of the Group, to
which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party, and which
was subsisting at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

32. ERLEFNF MR @0

o0 B B ()
Bt

(1) ARARBEFREARRSGEEARES I
RIRFREESHEREN -

Q BREREERMNEH

3 ARKELE

@ MR=ZB-NFAAT-BREIREL
G =T Ny SO e F AR

6 R-ZE—\F=ZA+-—HEE:
+—HAEK

—F—

NEISH

RAARWEEERNEERETMAIE @ &
BN ER AR BT EE K E S A
© - tERRSIINAKREE 2 EE) S E AR
HEE) S A RER (S o

AEEATEEZIMERNESMESRKRILE
PR (AR A M (A1 EL S A (SR EL B 1) RO RER ©

AEEAYERNEEMESRERB MRS
=77 A ER B TR

AEEAYEBESNES  EFNEFEH
X EFEBBERZIER  EEFTULHE
X 5 AMIEE

AR BRTEF G 36 A MR EME D -
FEARFER  AREMERTETAP R
AEBZEBMARABZEENEZTHEREX
REEETREEARDCERRS &
HAEMR -
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33. RETIREMENT AND TERMINATION
BENEFITS

Pursuant to the PRC laws and regulations, the Group is required to
make monthly contributions to various retirement benefit schemes
organised by the relevant provincial and municipal governments for
the Group's employees in the PRC at rates ranging from 22% to 24%
(2018: 22% to 28%) of the employees’ standard salaries, of which 14%
to 16% (2018: 14% to 20%) is borne by the Group and the remaining
portion is borne by the employees.

The Group's subsidiaries in Hong Kong participate in a Mandatory
Provident Fund scheme (the “MPF scheme”) in accordance with the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance of Hong Kong (the
“MPF Ordinance”’). The only obligation of the Group with respect to
the MPF Scheme is to make the required contributions under the
scheme. These defined contribution schemes are responsible for the
pension liabilities of the employees. The Group’s contributions to these
defined contribution schemes are expensed as incurred.

In addition, the Group provides termination benefits to certain
employees up to their normal retirement age as set out in Note 2.22(c).
The carrying amount of the relevant provision as at 31 December 2019
was approximately RMB863,000 (2018: RMB1,228,000).

34. HOUSING FUND

The Group's full-time employees in the PRC participate in a state-
sponsored housing fund (“Fund”). The housing fund can be used by
the Group's employees for purchasing houses, or withdrawn upon
their retirement. The Group is required to make annual contributions to
the Fund based on certain percentages of the employees’ salaries. The
Group's liability in respect of the housing fund is limited to the
contributions payable in each period. For the year ended 31 December
2019, the Group contributed approximately RMB51,602,000 (2018:
RMB45,665,000) to the Fund.

B D S8 25 3 i e ()

E-NFH+ZA=+—HIFFE

33. R IRAEF Ko B r i P
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& AR¥1,2280007T) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #EZE=F—NF1+=A=+—HIEFZ

35. CASH FLOW INFORMATION 35. HamERER
(@) Reconciliation from profit before income tax to (@) B r 45 B8 i A 1 B A % 4G B 3] B
cash generated from operations: £ Ui ik VB B 3R
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARBTT
Profit before income tax Bk FT1S &4 A1 F1) 923,505 1,207,070
Adjustments for: FHEEIEH :
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (Note 7)
FEREEY - BERZHTE (M) 90,822 75837
Amortisation of prepaid operating lease payments (Note 6)
B I E IR (5T e) - 3,631
Amortisation of right-of-use assets (Note 8) {5 FA # & =k 54 (P sk 8) 54,901 =
Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 9) 4 2 & 2= & 48 (F5E9) 12,711 7,515
Amortisation of other long-term assets E-th & 53 & = ## £ 1,628 1451
Provision for impairment of inventories 17 & Bk (B XE #5512 48,614 44,250
Provision for impairment of receivables fE U K IE R (B 5112 20,113 6,055
Loss on disposal of non-current assets JE37i 81 & 2 5 I2 18 5k 3,387 1,850
Amortisation of deferred income — government grants (Note 20)
EIEN A — BT #6 B A8 85 (BT 5% 20) (15,253) (22,739)
Interest income (Note 26) &I B U A (Bf5E26) (49,759) (31,806)
Interest expense (Note 26) | 837 i (M 26) 61,642 34,431
Exchange losses/(gains) (Note 26) & 5 182k (Mas ) (T 5E 26) 1,920 (225)
Share of losses of investments accounted for using the equity method (Note 11)
FHRREREARNRENERNRE (MiE11) 1,456 138
Release of foreign currency translation differences upon liquidation
of a joint venture (Note 11)
GECFEEEMBER 2 INETE =58 (1) (846) 1,442
Other income and gains, net E iz R F15 - /F5E (902) (558)
Operating profit before working capital changes & & & < & Bl fi] 2 #& & Fl) ) 1,153,939 1,328,342
Changes in: &8} :
Inventories 17 & (3,694) (95,654)
Trade and bills receivables & BR 7 & Z 4 69,665 95,231
Amounts due from related parties [i& 4% B8 8% A 5 FE (41,980) (13,819)
Other financial assets at amortised cost LA SRR At EMH SR E E 27,518 (53,283)
Prepayments and other current assets T8 5k R EL R B & 2= (87,685) 71,805
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
URAREBEAEEEZSH AR MGEARENEREE 114,516 (141,827)
Trade and bills payables F& 1< BR 2k &2 Z % (34,345) (33377)
Other current liabilities HAth ;B & (& 47,848 (18,700)
Amounts due to related parties J& 1~ B8 B A &) ZX B (54,129) 85,528
Proceeds from government grants & ZE YA - BT 4 B 2,396 5,660
Cash generated from operations &% &% B) I 2| MR & 1,194,049 1,229,906

L] \.‘
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z=—F—NF+=A=+—HIFE

35. CASH FLOW INFORMATION (contp) 35 HEREERERFE w
(b) Analysis of the balances of cash and cash (b) B4 KB40 aUT R

equivalents and short-term bank Deposits

As at 31 December, cash and cash equivalents were denominatedin = R+—-"HA=+—H ' & RN EEBEYIRE
the following currencies: YR

As at 31 December

R+=B=+—H
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARETIT

Cash at bank and in hand B8 & K& ER1T/E BATE =X

RMB A R #& 2,005,623 1378417
HKD & & 894,389 450,035
United States Dollar 7T 25,579 11,677
Australian Dollar 8K F)25 7T 18,510 15,166
Singapore Dollar T 03 7T 12,452 10,501
Macanese Pataca Y2F97T 10,142 13,396
Canadian Dollar I & AT 9,973 8,558
New Zealand Dollar #7 P55 7T 7,351 4,637
UAE Dirham P B 2§ 3 hr 1 2,709 2.275
European Dollar BXJT 1,750 2,263
South African Rand & FERI 4 965 4,270
Brunei Ringgit YR 45 432 86
Korean Won #7T 303 294
Swedish Krona I B 53 BA 167 1,187
Swiss Franc fw 5% BB 145 948
Polish Zloty )% B 24 78 12 89 289
Great British Pound ZE4% 55 30
Czech Koruna #7272 BA 1 7
2,990,645 1,904,036
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #EZE=F—NF1+=A=+—HIEFZ

35. CASH FLOW INFORMATION (conrp) 35. Bl&eEREE w
(b) Analysis of the balances of cash and cash (b) BL4 B B4 58 M i 0 BRAT A K
equivalents and short-term bank Deposits (Cont'd) (#1)

Bank deposits with original maturities of over three months were  [RIATF X HAPR ER 8 = 8 A BRI TE R R A
classified as short-term bank deposits and denominated in the (2 EASRTTTFEN » IEERES|RIOT -
following currencies:

As at 31 December

INar=ESar—=
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T AREETFIT
RMB A R #& 42,793 34,909
HKD & #& 797,638 1,482,191
Canadian Dollar J1€ AT 8,976 8,369
Singapore Dollar #7 03 7T 8,626 9,269
United States Dollar £ 7T 800 759
Australian Dollar 8 A 25 7T 351 224
New Zealand Dollar ¥TP8E T 270 2404
859,454 1,538,125

As at 31 December 2019, the cash in hand balance of the Group was RZF—NEF+-A=+—8 ' x&EEF
RMB1,096,000 (2018: RMB1,599,000). Cash at bank and short-term bank 2R & 8R %8 A A R ¥#5 1,096,000 7T (ZF — \ 4 :
deposits balance of the Group was RMB3,849,003,000 (2018: A R¥1,599,0007T) ° AL B R1T1F K52 5
RMB3,440,562,000). Management did not expect any losses from non- X1 T 17 s ER R /3 A FR# 3,849,003,000 L (= F
performance by those banks. — N\F : AR#3440,562,0007T) - BEIEER
RAEFFFHRBEARRRE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z=—F—NF+=A=+—HIFE

35. CASH FLOW INFORMATION (contp) 35. HEMEREE w

(c) Reconciliation of cash flows from financing activities (c) S NE W) A A Y B A B B
This section sets out an analysis of cash flows of financial liabilities from — ZN &1 &k 1) & (@& 23 A Ffr§ll 7N E’] EE8EHME

financing activities and its movement for each of the year presented. ERREMEN D ITFNE
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® T ARETTT
Gross debt — fixed interest rates #8{&# — & | & (928,720) (919429
Gross debt — variable interest rates 42 &F 7 — F B) &K (435,049) (192,048)
‘ (1,363,769) ’ (1,111,477)

Borrowings Borrowings
due within due after Lease
1year 1year liabilities Total

—FRIMER —FRIAMER REAE At
RMB(000 RMB(000 RMB000 RMB000
ARETT AREBTT ARETT ARETT

Liability from financing activity as at 1 January 2018

RZZE—-\E—A—HEBEHNEE (209,800) (915,480) & (1,125,280)
Cashflows & i 2 14,800 (549) = 14251

Foreign exchange adjustments [ % ;5% = (13) = (13)
Other changes £ A &) (5,146) 4711 = (435)

Liability from financing activity as at 31 December 2018

RZE-\GE+-A=+—RELFINEE (200,146) (911,331) = (1111,477)
Adjustment for change in accounting policy (Note 2.1.1.1)

SEHBREE (£ 21.0.0) < - (123068) (123,068)
Restated at 1 January /A — B —H &l (200,146) (911,331) (123,068) (1,234,545)
Cashflows HE T E 165,146 (400,000) 45343 (189511)
Acquisition — leases ¥ 1 — & - - (20,866) (20,866)
Foreign exchange adjustments [ 3 3% = (20) (2301) (2321)
Other changes ! Hfth & &) 17 (105,198) 87,780 921 (16497)

Liability from financing activity as at 31 December 2019

RIE-NE+ZA=T—HEREHNEE (140,198) (1223571) (99.971) (1463,740)
M Other changes are non-cash movements, mainly including " HtE 8 AIIREEEH  TEEEAR
RMB105,198,000 non-current borrowings reclassified to current @5 105,198 000 T REAERENDEERD
portion and RMB20,739,000 finance costs due to the adjustment B EFERNEEMEFEGT ATB
of coupon rate of corporate bonds (Note 21(b)) and lease & A A R % 20,739,000 7T (Kt 7E21(b) &

modification. HEBK -
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36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Related parties include the Group and its subsidiaries, other majority
state-owned enterprises and their subsidiaries directly or indirectly
controlled by the PRC government, other entities and corporations in
which the Company is able to control or exercise significant influence
in making financial and operating decisions and key management
personnel of the Company as well as their close family members.

The ultimate holding company is beneficially owned by the State-
owned Assets Supervision and Administration Commission of People’s
Government of Beijing Municipality, so it is a state-owned enterprise
and is controlled by the PRC government, which also owns a significant
portion of the productive assets in the PRC. In accordance with IAS 24,
“Related Party Disclosures”, state-owned enterprises and their
subsidiaries, other than the ultimate holding company and its
subsidiaries, directly or indirectly controlled by the PRC government
are also defined as related parties of the Group.

A portion of the Group’s business activities are conducted with other
state-owned enterprises. The Group believes that these transactions
are carried out on normal commercial terms that are consistently
applied to all customers. For the purpose of related party transactions
disclosure, the Group has identified, to the extent practicable, those
corporate customers and suppliers which are state-owned enterprises
based on their ownership structure. It should be noted, however, that
substantially all of the Group’s business activities are conducted in the
PRC and the influence of the PRC government in the Chinese economy
is pervasive. In this regard, the PRC government indirectly holds
interests in many companies. Many state-owned enterprises have
multi-layered corporate structure and the ownership structures change
over time as a result of transfers and privatisation programs. Some of
these interests may, in themselves or when combined with other
indirect interests, be controlling interests. Such interests, however,
would not be known to the Group and are not reflected in the
disclosures below. In addition, a portion of the Group's revenue from
sales of goods are of a retail nature to end users, which include
transactions with the employees of state-controlled entities while such
employees are key management personnel and their close family
members. These transactions are carried out on normal commercial
terms that are consistently applied to all customers. Due to the volume
and the pervasiveness of these transactions, the Group is unable to
determine the aggregate amount of these transactions for disclosure.
Therefore, the revenue from sales of goods disclosed below does not
include retail transactions with these related parties. However, the
Group believes that meaningful information relating to related party
disclosures has been adequately disclosed.

During the year, the Group had the following material transactions
with related parties, which were entered into at terms mutually agreed
with these related parties in the ordinary course of business.

36. BB T35

B BRAEERTETAR - At
BRFEZIEZEHINEEEERE TR
Al B AR B ARE N H AT B IE=RK
B MERTE 2 AR A RAKRATF
FAREEA B MM FIRBEZINREKE -

RRBNFEERARBIERT ARBKTE
BEEEBEEZRBEXARA  FIUES
—REALE  XERTERF - RETEH
BAGRERELLMUHEE - REBERSE
ISR 24 5% [BRES T ER | - BRRRIER AR
ETBF AR  BEERAERKPERFE
HOEMEELEMEFRARBRER /AN
KBRS -

AEEN—HOEFAPHREREMEBLE
ETH AEERS/BFIRHEENEER
RASERAEP B ERERREETT
B ST RSEE BN AEBER
TREARBREEERIBREB LR
FFEMER - BREFSIENE  ~&EE
B E 2R AR EIE T BT A BB
HPRBEREEREEMRANTE - Ut
TEBNEEEERZ ARINER - FEE
BEEBERERERE ML EZE L REAM
BREE o FLEaE AT NEM LA EZE
=BT EIEE - BR - AEBEEHIN
S HE LR BRI RIREIA TRES - Ut
Sh REBENWARR D RERRAPER
RH5MRYE ZBEAFRARTEMLE MR
%o MELBERATBRERECXERE
BABRMPBREDNNRKEKREZRS -
HERXHREREFEARAEBMERES, —
HOERBRGTETH AR EERFH
BHEERLREARHERKN  NEBEERKE
HEXZNEFTEER - Bt U THRENH
SERANSRT T HEK S HAERNE
SUEORS - A NEBEREEEEET
BEREAEENEEEFIRDNEE -

AEEAEBBEBRRARBWNINEARS °
BLRF RN —REFBIETIR LRI A7)
5 E M IRFETTHY -



36.
(@)

A ENEBEREBARAA o ZFJuFEER %

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont’d)

For the year ended 31 December 2019

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (conrp)

Transactions with the ultimate holding company

Transactions with the ultimate holding company during the year are
summarised as follows:

Trademark licence fee (Note () B2 # FH & (B 7E ()

Rental expense (Note (i) b {5 B & (K7 (i)

Property leasing expense (Note (iii)) ¥ 2 & & A (B &L (iii))

Additions to right-of-use assets ¥ &) {5 A& & &

Interest on lease liabilities F & & &F 5% H

36.

(@)

£ B 1 5 ek fit e (%81)
RE-F-NE+=AS+—AILFE

B T 2 5 oo
Bl J5 2 PR B N V) 28 B

REFEFEZERARNZZWT

2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT ARBTIT
3,250 2,642

- 2,364

8,510 4,995
1,669 -

247 -

Notes:

(0]

A licence agreement was renewed on 28 February 2013 between the
Company and the ultimate holding company whereby the Company is
allowed to use certain trademarks and trademark logos (collectively,
“Trademarks”) of the ultimate holding company.

The licence agreement is effective from 1 March 2013 to 28 February
2018. Upon the expiration of the licence, if the ultimate holding
company successfully renews the right to use the Trademarks and if the
Company fully complies with the terms and conditions of agreement
and requests to continue to use the Trademarks, the ultimate holding
company shall renew the agreement with the Company.

A licence agreement was entered on 28 February 2018 between the
Company and the ultimate holding company whereby the Company is
allowed to use Trademarks of the ultimate holding company. The licence
agreement is effective from 1 March 2018 to 31 March 2021. In case of
the extension of the agreement, the Company can apply three months
prior to the expiration of the licence and renew the licence agreement
with the ultimate holding company. The annual licence agreement fee is
RMB3,000,000 with an annual increase of RMB300,000 thereafter.

wisz :

ARRER=ZT—=F=-A=+/\BEHREK
ARBEZE—HBEERFTERE - Fik - ARFE
AEARKERARNEREEEREEL (0 [
Bl -

LaERERBRE-F —=F=A—BEE=
T N\F_A-F+ /Bt FAERMBE &
REERABRNEZEHENEREES A
AABREREBTZA RLRHERER LS
REOER  RRERARREARARERFAS
A e

RATBERZZE—NE= A=+ /\HHERKIER
REIEHF L —HERERTAIER - Eit - &
AR AME A SRARIE IR A B REIZ - BEIZ(E A HR
Bl =5 — == El—(gfjlles sy 4= = 5
=t+—Hit WEERFEARHE  AQRAES
EEHAI = EARE R BRKIERAR ST
EIREERTFAAR - —B— \FEEEZEH
HFOARESEAAREI0E T UETETIE
AREEETT ©
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36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (conrp)

(@)

Transactions with the ultimate holding company
(Cont’d)

Notes: (Cont'd)

(ii)

(iif)

A land use right leasing agreement (the “Old Agreement”) dated 6
October 2000 was entered into between the Company and the ultimate
holding company. Pursuant to the agreement, the total area leased to
the Company is approximately 49,776.35 sg.m. The land is located in
Beijing, the PRC, with a lease period of 20 years commencing from 6
October 2000. The annual rental is calculated at a rate of RMB53.95 per
sg.m. Any adjustments to the annual rental shall be made at the market
rent, provided that such adjustment shall not exceed 10% of that of the
previous year. On 1 January 2006, an amendment was made to reduce
the total area of the land leased to 43,815.15 sg.m., the remaining clauses
on the Old Agreement still remain effective.

On 25 January 2017, the Company and the ultimate holding company
entered into a property leasing framework agreement, pursuant to
which, the ultimate holding company has agreed to lease and procure
its other members to lease certain premises to the Group for its
productions and operations, including but not limited to office premises,
warehouses and staff quarter, for a term of three years commencing
from 1 January 2017 to 31 December 2019.

On 19 March 2019, the Board has resolved to revise the annual caps for
the continuing connected transactions under property leasing
framework agreements of the Group as the lessee for the year ending 31
December 2019, based on the total value of right-of-use assets related to
the leased property. Please refer to the announcement of the Company
dated 19 March 2019.

On 30 December 2019, the Company renewed the property leasing
framework agreement with the ultimate holding company, for a term of
three years from 1 January 2020 to 31 December 2022.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, rental expense and property leasing
expense are only related to the short-term leasing expense recognised on a
straight-line basis and leases for which the underlying asset is of low value (if
applicable) under IFRS 16 (For the year ended 31 December 2018, rental
expense and property leasing expense represented the total leasing expense
under IAS 17).

36.
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(iii)
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For the year ended 31 December 2019

36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (conrp) 36.

(b) Transactions with the subsidiaries and joint (b)
ventures of the ultimate holding company

£ B 1 5 ek fit e (%81)
BE=F-NE+=AS+—ALFE

B T 2 5 oo

Bl s eI A T A W BB B A
XMWY

Sales of Chinese medicine related products (Note (i) 5% A 2548 B8 &= i (B9 () 927,411 1,078,396

Purchases of Chinese medicine related products (Note (ii))

PR 2R R E M (MR GD)
Sole overseas exclusive distributorship (Note (iii)) /& 9MN& SR AL 85 (1= (iii))
Advertising services income (Note (iv)) /& & BRFE WA (B FE (iv))

Property leasing expense (Note (a)(iil)) Y12 & & A (M 5E (a)(iii))

2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETT
155,773 146,224
50,511 60,367
31,997 41,505
3,873 3,687

Notes: Bat -

(0] On 29 September 2016, the Company renewed the distribution (i)
framework agreement with the ultimate holding company. Pursuant to
the renewed agreement, the price of the products to be sold by the
Group to the ultimate holding company’s subsidiaries and joint ventures
shall not be lower than that charged by the Group to other independent
third parties and shall be determined in accordance with a reasonable
cost plus a fair and reasonable profit margin: (1) the reasonable cost shall
be determined by reference to the cost of the raw materials, the cost of
labour and the manufacturing expense etc,; and (2) the profit margin
shall be determined by reference to the prevailing market and the then
market price for comparable products in the related industry, and the
profit rate of the products of the Group in the past years of not
exceeding 50%, which is in line with the previous gross profit rate of the
Group. The renewed agreement was approved at the extraordinary
general meeting of the Company on 16 December 2016 and for a term
of three years from 1 January 2017 to 31 December 2019.

On 16 October 2019, the Company renewed the distribution framework
agreement with the ultimate holding company with similar pricing
policies. The renewed agreement was approved at the extraordinary
general meeting of the Company on 16 December 2019 and for a term
of three years from 1 January 2020 to 31 December 2022.

RZZT—ARENA=ZTHA  KRAREFZEEER
AEVETHEIERERZ  RIBZER e
EEBHEFTRRERATNFARIRE S
ZEREBERENMERAEEREMBE=HH
EZEE  WRABKAMNATFEEFBERETE
WBBERALBREM KA - AT RAEER
TEETE RQABXRS2BHEBITENLERZ
BERMERERMBEERIRAERERBEFE
TiBiE50% (EAEEBEEMER—) 2FBHX
METE - B HHECERRAR T —RNF+=
A+ A BFAMBREERNASHE  BH=F
e esie—nptae JEl lafas i bl L eEaE ]
=Er=Fo
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36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (conrp)

(b)

Transactions with the subsidiaries and joint
ventures of the ultimate holding company (cont'd)

Notes: (Cont'd)

(ii)

The Company renewed a master procurement agreement with the
ultimate holding company on 29 September 2016. Pursuant to the
agreement, the subsidiaries and joint ventures of the ultimate holding
company can supply to the Group the products that are required for the
Group's production, sale and distribution. The price procured by the
Group from the ultimate holding company’s subsidiaries and joint
ventures shall be negotiated by the parties on an arm'’s length basis. The
ultimate holding company shall not supply the products to the Group (1)
at a price higher than that of the products of the same type and quality
offered to the Group by independent third parties or the prevailing
market price; (2) if there is no comparable market price available for the
relevant materials/products, the price shall be determined based on the
integrated cost plus not more than 15% surcharge, and in any event, the
price for such procurement shall not be higher than terms offered by
independent third parties to the Group. The renewed agreement was
approved at the extraordinary general meeting of the Company on 16
December 2016 and for a term of three years from 1 January 2017 to 31
December 2019.

On 16 October 2019, the Company renewed the master procurement
agreement with the ultimate holding company. Pursuant to the
agreement, the subsidiaries and joint ventures of the ultimate holding
company can supply to the Group the products that are required for the
Group's production, sale and distribution. The price procured by the
Group from the ultimate holding company’s subsidiaries and joint
ventures shall be negotiated by the parties on an arm’s length basis. The
ultimate holding company shall not supply the products to the Group (1)
provided that the relevant products satisfy the pharmacopoeia of the
PRC standard and the internal quality standard of the Company, and
under the premise of equal quality, the price shall be negotiated and
agreed by the parties based on the market price for procurement with
fair market competition and public offer, which shall be determined with
reference to the prevailing market price of comparable products
negotiated and provided by at least two independent suppliers in the
same or surrounding areas; (2) if the relevant products are only available
from specific suppliers due to content, special requirement or market
resource limitations, reference shall be made to the price offer of
suppliers and book comparable price; and (3) under the premise of equal
quality, the price to be paid by the Group for the procurement of the
relevant products shall not be higher than that available from
independent third parties for similar products, or higher than the market
price, whichever is the lower. The renewed agreement was approved at
the extraordinary general meeting of the Company on 16 December
2019 and for a term of three years from 1 January 2020 to 31 December
2022.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019

36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (conrp)

(b)

Transactions with the subsidiaries and joint
ventures of the ultimate holding company (cont'd)

Notes: (Cont'd)

(iii)

(iv)

Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine renewed an exclusive distributorship
frame-work agreement with Parent Company on 8 November 2017, with
an effective period from 1 January 2018 to 31 December 2020, pursuant
to which, Tong Ren Tang International Natural-Pharm, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine, is appointed as the sole
overseas distributor of the Parent Company, for the purpose of the
distribution of the relevant Tong Ren Tang branded products supplied
by Parent Company (“Relevant Products’) outside the PRC. The price of
the Relevant Products supplied shall not be higher than the wholesale
price of the Relevant Products sold to the wholesale customers in the
PRC and shall be determined with reference to the then prevailing
market price. The renewed agreement has been approved by the
extraordinary general meeting of Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine on 1
December 2017.

On 29 September 2016, Tong Ren Tang Century Advertising renewed
the advertising agency framework agreement with the ultimate holding
company for a term of three years from 1 January 2017 to 31 December
2019. Accordingly, the fees for the provision of specific services by Tong
Ren Tang Century Advertising to the ultimate holding company or its
subsidiaries and joint ventures under individual implementation
agreement shall be negotiated and determined by the parties with
reference to the actual quotation offered by the advertiser, which is at
discount on the basis of its published price list, plus a reasonable fee for
the advertising agency service of Tong Ren Tang Century Advertising,
which is generally not higher than 15% of the quotation offered by the
advertiser.

On 28 February 2020, Tong Ren Tang Century Advertising renewed the
advertising agency framework agreement with the ultimate holding
company for a term of three years from 1 January 2020 to 31 December
2022. Accordingly, the fees for the provision of specific services by Tong
Ren Tang Century Advertising to the ultimate holding company or its
subsidiaries and joint ventures under individual implementation
agreement shall be determined with reference to the actual quotation
offered by third-party advertising providers on the basis of their
published price lists, plus a reasonable fee for the advertising agency
service provided by Tong Ren Tang Century Advertising (generally not
higher than 10% of the quote offered by third-party advertising
providers).
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36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (conrp)

(c) Transactions with other state-owned enterprises

In the ordinary course of business, the Group sells goods to, and
purchases goods from other state-owned enterprises based on terms
as set out in the underlying agreements, market prices or actual cost
incurred, or as mutually agreed.

The Group places deposits in and receives loans mainly from state-
owned financial institutions in the ordinary course of business. The
deposits and loans are in accordance with the terms as set out in the
respective agreements, and the interest rates are set at prevailing
market rates.

(d) Key management compensation

Key management includes directors (executive and non-executive) and
senior management. The compensation paid or payable to key
management for employee services is shown below:

36. BAWE T3 5

(c) BLICAb A7 A1 22 5)
FRERMEALENEERS  AEEMA
HfEEMEREBESY - BEXZER
HRE PR - B - PTEEMNERRK
A B AR B A IRSETT

EEERGTPAEENGERNEREERB
BESRBBEL - FRMERDRIESIA
REE - FXRNERBITH S RETE -

(d) FEAFBEA B35
TEEBAEBERTRIERNTEETNER
BEEABE REERBRAETEEEABXN
SENEBE T

As at 31 December

atr=H =iti=H
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ TR ARETTT
Salaries and other short-term employee benefits ¥ F1E {th 12 #{& & & F| 9,370 9,189
Pension costs — defined contribution plans FBRE KA — T REHFETE] 406 442
‘ 9,776 9,631
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #EE=—F—NF+=A=1+—HILFE

36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (contp) 36. B 7 8 5 e
(e) Balances with related parties (e) BHW A v\l A 2Kk hn i
As at 31 December, balances with related parties consisted of: Rt+-A=+—H BHARERGBEES

As at 31 December
R+t=A=+—H
2019 2018

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARET T

Amounts due from related parties (Note(i)):

P W BE B 2 B RRR (MR () -

Subsidiaries and joint ventures of the ultimate holding company
REERABNFRARGELE

Trade receivables f& Y BR X 183,286 139,800
Other financial assets at amortised cost LABEgRRK R 5T 2 FY H th & Rl & & 1,146 988
Prepayments TB 15 BR 5K 160 215

184,592 141,003

Other state-owned enterprises E i B A 1 3

Trade receivables &Y% BR 7K 49,624 48,330
Other financial assets at amortised cost SABE 88k Azt E M Hith & gt & & 8,871 12,907
Prepayments TE{ BR X 11,192 12,538

69,687 VS Tl

254,279 214,778
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B ZE=—F—NF+=A=1+—HILFE

36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (conrp) 36. BAWE T3 5
(e) Balances with related parties (Contd) () BHIBE A w15 2K 6% 4 )

As at 31 December
R+=—A=+—H
2019 2018

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARMTF T ARETT

Amounts due to related parties (Note(i)):

FE A3 BA R 2 R ROR (BEE () -

Subsidiaries and joint ventures of the ultimate holding company
BRERATNTFAARASLE

Trade payables FEf AR 3% 43,538 45,887
Other payables E b & {J 3% 29,513 4382
73,051 50,269

Other state-owned enterprises E B4 1> %

Trade payables &S BRE 5K 8,081 6,373
Other payables E At f& 15 5% 19,417 98,036
27,498 104,409

100,549 154,678

Lease liabilities:

HEEE:

Ultimate holding company B 425 i% A 7] 3,026 =

Borrowings from a related party (Note(ii)):
fe B B A A B FIE (MR (i)
Ultimate holding company x 422 % /2 8] 32,000 32,000
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #EE=—F—NF+=A=1+—HILFE

36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (conrp)

(e) Balances with related parties (contd)
Notes:

(i) The amounts due from/to related parties are unsecured, interest-free and
recoverable or repayable within twelve months.

As at 31 December, the ageing analysis of amounts due from related
parties based on invoice date was as follows:

36. BAWE T3 5

(e) BHBE 2 vl 45 2K ik ()
Wiz -

() R/ ENABARBERSS  EREERK
B YET—EARGEER -

RT-ZA=+—0 BREBARZEAREESR
BHRRE ST

As at 31 December

Natr=IH==1F
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®ET T ARETT
Within 4 months P91 A LA A 180,234 159,684
Over 4 months but within 1 year PU1E A = —4 56,066 46,318
Over 1 year —%F LA 24,739 13,057
261,039 219,059

Movements in the provision for impairment of amounts due from related
parties were as follows:

FEURBERE N R FORBE RO R EN LA T

2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TR ARETT

At 1 January ®—HA—H 4,281 1911
Provision for impairment Ji{{E 512 2,479 2,370
At31 December R+ =A=+—H 6,760 4,281

As at 31 December, the ageing analysis of amounts due to related parties
based on invoice date was as follows:

BRI T

RTZA=+—8 BNEBARREREER

As at 31 December

Wt+=B=+—H
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARBFT
Within 4 months P91E A LA 97,018 153,663
Over 4 months but within 1 year P98 A = — 4 2,143 141
Over 1 year —F LA 1,388 874
100,549 154,678

(ii) Borrowings from a related party are in the form of entrusted loans which (ii)
are unsecured, bear interest by reference to benchmark lending interest
rate published by the People’s Bank of China with moderate decrease
and repayable within one year.

% THE—FREE -

B ARERAEREERFANZRER B
RAE2ZHREARRTRPEREENEEE
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37. BANKING FACILITIES

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had aggregated banking facilities
of RMB586,859,000 (2018: RMB1,080,487,000) for loan and other trade
financing. As at 31 December 2019, the unutilised banking facilities
amounted to RMB536,810,000 (2018: RMB909,681,000).

38. COMMITMENTS

(@) Capital commitments

As at 31 December, the Group had the following capital commitments
which were contracted but not provided for:

37. SRAITRVE
R-ZE—AE+-A=+—8 ~&=EEH
AR ¥ 586,859,000 LRI TIEEREE (ZZT— N\
£ AR¥1,080487,0007T) * 8] AR E R
BEo5mE R-_FE—NEF+-_A=+—8"
AAZEREE A AR 536810000 T (=F
— )\ : AR¥909,681,0007T) °

38. Kt FHIE

@) WAKGH
R+—A=+—8 XEEABW T ERKE
EIEHRRANEERLNRE RNAEGE

As at 31 December

Ny B = el |
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARETTT
Property, plant and equipment 5 & X IZEEY) « /5 K& 215,523 245914
(b) Operating lease commitments (b) HWEBRERE

The Group leases various warehouse and factory premises under non-
cancellable operating leases.

From 1 January 2019, the Group has recognised right-of-use assets for
these leases, except for short-term and low-value leases as set out
below, see Note 8 for further information.

AEBUEEMEELERNBEE /T
BEHR A

B-Z-NF—A—HBE& A&EBEHERE
LHENEREEE - B N ZEHHE
EMEBEESRI - RS -

As at 31 December

s =R == H
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARBTFT
Not later than one year —F A 7,337 62,293
Later than one year and no later than five years — & £|| 1 - 59,747
Later than five years FL5F A - 4,801
7,337 126,841
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39. EVENTS OCCURRING AFTER THE
REPORTING PERIOD

(@) Impact of COVID-19

Following the outbreak of Coronavirus Disease 2019 (the “COVID-19
outbreak”) in early 2020, a series of precautionary and control
measures have been and continued to be implemented across the
country, including extension of the Chinese New Year holiday
nationwide, postponement of work resumption after the Chinese New
Year holiday in some regions, certain level of restrictions and controls
over the travelling of people and traffic arrangements, quarantine of
certain residents, heightening of hygiene and epidemic prevention
requirements in factories and offices, etc. Management has taken
relevant actions to minimise the unfavourable impact to the Group.
The Group will pay close attention to the development of the
COVID-19 outbreak and evaluate its impact on the financial position
and operating results of the Group.

(b) Acquisition of Beijing Tong Ren Tang Medicine
Processing Base

On 4 November 2019 and 30 December 2019, with the approval of the
Board the Company entered into the asset transfer agreement and
supplemental asset transfer agreement with the ultimate holding
company. The Company has agreed to purchase Beijing Tong Ren
Tang Medicine Processing Base (including land use right and building
ownership) with the consideration of RMB640,681,910 (tax inclusive),
which was approved and confirmed at the extraordinary general
meeting of the Company on 17 February 2020.

B D S8 25 3 i e ()

E-NFH+ZA=+—HIFFE

39. % S IR

(@) 7 280 5 PR 0 7 8 G S A

AT AR 8 B I A 1B (LA T 48 [ 3778 b &
EFDF_E_fiimE%lﬁﬁ &
Eﬁﬁﬁ?ﬁlf/ﬁﬁﬁilﬁalﬁ?ﬁ BET 2
BHEEERAFHBY  BobEFEHBTE
- ﬁLA/g\/}lLEﬂXL EIT—EEEMIE
#l - HETEABETRE B IBREHA
BRTHEEMPRERSE - E1RED HEUE

FEITE) - IAFE }WEEET%'JWE o NEE K
ZOBIHRRBERE) .J:HEE;TK%
[ B SRR %%%&%#HEE’JE“

o) WHEIEN H s g in T3 IEH
ZHE
R-E—-hF+—ANBR=_ZE—NAF+=
H +H KEESHE - $ a) B By AR 47
WATJ¢§F%§% ENEEEERT
o ARA|RIE IR E AR 640681,9107T
Cmmmﬁtﬁﬁﬁaﬂt;¢EMI§m
LEE(BELHFERE EEREVMMA
) P EEERRR T _FTF_A
T+t B BRAMRESFARSHELT ERK -

é%
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B ZE=—F—NF+=A=1+—HILFE

40. BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE 40. ~AIEEAMER KM@ 2B R
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY
Balance sheet of the Company An|EEAER

As at 31 December

R+=-—HA=+—H
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETTT ARETT
Assets &=
Non-current assets 3R BN & E
Leasehold land and land use rights F8 & = 3 & 4= 30 {5 F 4% - 74,920
Property, plant and equipment 5 B )R 3EEEY) - BB K& 1E 1,152,827 985,929
Right-of-use assets {5 FA#E & &= 74,577 =
Intangible assets & & &= 6,173 4,168
Investments in subsidiaries ¥ F 2 7] I & 1,383,154 858,784
Investments accounted for using the equity method & iz % A BRAVIE & 8,700 8,700
Prepayments for purchase of property, plant and equipment
PBENZEEY - BB RREENR 25,127 26,245
Deferred income tax assets & & FT 1555 & & 15,972 12,966
2,666,530 1,971,712
Current assets B & &=
Inventories 17 & 1,798,790 1,909,347
Trade and bills receivables f& U BR 7k & =& 728,852 816,003
Amounts due from subsidiaries f& U T2 71 FE 116,457 397,049
Amounts due from other related parties Jf& U Za B A &) 50 E 79,326 21,198
Other financial assets at amortised cost LA SRR ARGt 2N H S B E E 16,007 10,278
Prepayments and other current assets T8 7k &2 E 7R B & B2 10,182 15922
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
LAREBEFEBEEN T AEMGERENESREE 27,311 141,827
Short-term bank deposits 52 H$R 7717 3¢ 42,794 21,191
Cash and cash equivalents 3R & & 3R & FEY) 1,607,044 974,823
4,426,763 4,307,638
Total assets & E &5+ 7,093,293 6,279,350
Equity and liabilities 35 2 & {&
Equity attributable to owners of the Company 5B R A QA A A&
Share capital B 7% 1,280,784 1,280,784
Reserves (Note (a)) % (Fii 3t (a) 3,419,980 3,098,345
Total equity B &5t 4,700,764 4,379,129
Vi z

v \.‘
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #EE=—F—NF+=A=1+—HILFE

40. BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE 40. A EE AR MR ST R @
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY (contp)
Balance sheet of the Company (Cont'd) 2 ) B E AU R w0

As at 31 December

A e =Tl ]
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT
Liabilities & f&

Non-current liabilities 3E 7 81 & &
Borrowings f& 5K 1,222,826 910,408
Deferred income — government grants &4 A — B 4 B 39,294 47,571
1,262,120 957,979

Current liabilities REI & &

Trade and bills payables FEf BR 2% & Z % 373,975 395,601
Salary and welfare payables f&{ T & K 1@ 5| & 27,186 65,378
Amounts due to subsidiaries &S F 72 &) 518 127,445 49,854
Amounts due to other related parties J& <t B384 A 5] A 47,710 100,536
Current income tax liabilities & BT 157 & (& 16,419 21,190
Other payables H fib F& { 3¢ 399,075 222,683
Borrowings & 5K 137,000 87,000
Lease liabilities T & & 1& 1,599 =
1,130,409 942,242

Total liabilities 8 & & & 2,392,529 1,900,221
Total equity and liabilities # = & & B4 5t 7,093,293 6,279,350

The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the Board of AR EHREHEEEN T _TF=H

Directors on 30 March 2020 and was signed on its behalf. =+H#tE  IRRESSHEE -
Gu Hai Ou Fang Jia Zhi
ESE ERE
Chairman Director

EER EE
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 &2 —F—NF+=-HA=+—HILFEZ

40. BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE 40. AFIEEAMR MR EE K w
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY (contp)

Balance sheet of the Company (Cont'd) 2 ) B E AU R w0

(@) Reserve movement of the Company (a) AEEZEFHR

Statutory Statutory

Capital surplus public welfare
reserve reserve fund fund  Taxreserve Retained
(Note 19(a)) (Note 19(b)) (Note 19(b)) (Note 19(c)) earnings

EEBH
N1 NEE EEAEE  AHES
(MiE196) (ML)  (MEob)  (HE19) BEkE  EEAT
RMB00O RMB000 RMB000 RMB00O RMB00O RMB00O
ARBTE ARETL ARETE AR®TR ARETRL AR%TR

Balance asat 1 January 2018

RZE-\F—HA—HHE 414,100 440,904 45455 102,043 1,801,804 2,804306
Profit for the year F EF8 - - - = 511,772 511,772
Appropriation from retained earnings
RRMBHAE - 51,208 - - (51,08) -
2017 dividends paid to shareholders

of the Company
INFRRRR-_Z—+FERS - - - - (217,733) (217,733)

Balance as at 31 December 2018
R-E-)\F+-A=+—H#% 414,100 492,112 45455 102,043 2,044,635 3,098,345

Balance asat 1 January 2019

RZZE—-NE—A—BH#E 414,100 492,112 45,455 102,043 2,044,635 3,098,345
Profit for the year 2 & 1/} - - - - 552,176 552,176
Appropriation from retained earings
REOAHBRE - 55,246 - - (55,246) -
2018 dividends paid to shareholders

of the Company
YRAARERR_Z—\FERE - - - - (230,541) (230,541)

Balance as at 31 December 2019
RZZE-NE+=-R=1—EBHE 414,100 547,358 45,455 102,043 2,311,024 3,419,980
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